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Financial Summary

R E

RMB’000
AREE : T7T

Revenue

Gross profit

(Loss) Profit before tax

(Loss) Profit for the year

(Loss) Profit and total comprehensive
(expenses) income for the year

Loss (Earnings) per share
Basic and diluted (RMB)

REVENUE

RMB’000
AR : T7T

Television advertising services
Online advertising services
Qutdoor advertising services
Other advertising services

Total

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021 Year on year (%)
B F20224F HZE20219F
12A31H 12A31H
IEFEE IFFE R (%)
& 412,659 441,051 (6.4)
E7 10,627 17,299 (38.6)
B AT (E548) i A (32,073) 4,302 845.5
FAN(E1E) & (11,662) 463 (2,618.8)
FN (B8 BF &
2HE (A WasEsE (11,662) 463 (2,618.8)
BRER &)
ERREE(ARE) (2.85) 0.11 (2,690.9)
W =
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021 Year on year (%)
B F202245F HZE20219F
12A31H 12A31H
IEFEE IEFE R (%)
BRES RS 102,390 91,821 115
HTEERY 295,237 221,491 33.3
FINES RS 10,844 112,325 (90.3)
HihES RS 4,188 15,414 (72.8)
st 412,659 441,051 (6.4)

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022




Corporate Information
ATER

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Ms. Wang Xin (Chairlady of the Board)

Mr. Feng Xing (Vice Chairman of the Board) (resigned on 30 March 2022)

Ms. Li Na
Mr. Leng Xuejun (Vice Chairman of the Board)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Xue

Mr. Wu Ke

Mr. How Sze Ming

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Li Xue (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ke

Mr. How Sze Ming

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wu Ke (Chairman)

Ms. Wang Xin

Mr. How Sze Ming

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Wang Xin (Chairladly)

Mr. Wu Ke

Mr. Li Xue

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Leng Xuejun
Mr. Zhang Mengchi ACG HKACG

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. Leng Xuejun
Mr. Zhang Mengchi ACG HKACG

REGISTERED OFFICE
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PRC

1602, 13/F, Building 7

No. 63 Xidawang Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER AGENT
Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

Bx
HITES
ITMrtEFETE)

BESE (EFEEFT/E) (202253 A30 A &)
Fifzt+
REBERE (EFEFLE)

BYFHTES
FEELE
Kkt
ERAEE

BEREEY
FELLE (EE)
KREE
ERHALE

FHWEES
SR E (FE)
EFMEL
ERHLE

REZES
TRzt (E/E)
REEE
FEELE

RERR
RETESRE
RE I EACG HKACG

BEARWE
REBERE
SRE ML HEACG HKACG

AEMMPEE

190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman lIslands

PEIARREEEEBR

A

i)

BARG [ 79 K 2B B 6357 Ft
75%1E13/E 1602

ERIREXME
6

SRARER2485
RFTE B L40E

FERESTERMBFELEER
BFERE

Walkers Corporate Limited

190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman lIslands

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR



Corporate Information

== | 2D
AREER
HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR EEROBEERLDTE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited EBPREBFZLERAA
Shops 1712-1716 B
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre BT
183 Queen’s Road East SREARBEI183E
Wanchai AFFLT7IE
Hong Kong 1712-1716%
AUDITOR =B AT
Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited (formerly known as UniTax LEEHAEMEEMERAT RIBAESR «HE(FHB)
Prism (HK) CPA Limited) EAEES: Ti=1-NG)
Units 1903A -1905, 19/F, BEBENERDHE
8 Observatory Road, RN =B85
Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong 191£1903A-1905F
PRINCIPAL BANKS FEEREBIT
Bank of Beijing (Zhongguancun Haidian Park Sub-branch) b= ER1T (RN S RE X T)
2/F, Aigiyi Innovation Tower H
Haidian North 1st Street tREER
Haidian District AR —E
Beijing, The PRC BABEIIAE2E
Agricultural Bank of China Limited (Beijing Modern City Sub-branch) PR B ERTREER AT (LRBRAHZIT)
88 Jianguo Road =]
Chaoyang District b RERG =
Beijing, The PRC 2B P 8855
Fubon Huayi Bank (Tianjin Branch) EHE—RIT(REXT)
1/F, Xindu Building H
16 Weijin Road RKEMFARE
Nankai District, BRI 165
Tianjin, The PRC HERE1RE
STOCK CODE B
1640 1640
COMPANY WEBSITE NGIE Bl
www.reach-ad.com www.reach-ad.com
(the contents of the website do not form a part of this annual report) (LA B BN TR AN T 3R — 2B )
LISTING PLACE LB
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited BERBMERSBERAR
DATE OF LISTING EHmBEH
12 November 2019 201911 A12H

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022



Awards and Recognition
HRIFEREY

NN

PROFESSIONAL HONOURS AND AWARDS

Award-winning work:
Project Cooperation Case — The Three Winged Bird "LEGO Master” (=%
B(EERKRAD))

Award:
China International Advertising Festival Advertiser Gala — 2022 Annual
Gold Case for Integrated Marketing

Time period:
December 2022

Awarded by:
The Organising Committee for the China International Advertising Festival

Award description:

China International Advertising Festival is the most authoritative,
professional and national event of the advertising industry with the largest
scale and is the most influential of its kind in China. “CIFA Advertiser
Awards (E+%E48)” is the first high-standard award specifically created
for advertisers in China’s advertising industry. It is also a star-studded
industry ceremony during the China International Advertising Festival every
year. Based on related laws, regulations and policies in China and with
the guiding principle of “fairness, justice and openness”, it recommends
and selects high-quality cases within the industry that have innovative
spirit and significance to the advertising industry in China. The award-
winning work demonstrates the industry's recognition of the Company's
professional strength and services in integrated marketing.
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Chairlady’s Statement

PAST BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND FUTURE BUSINESS
OUTLOOK OR CORPORATE STRATEGY

In 2022, China's economic and social development was impacted by
multiple unexpected factors, both domestic and abroad, and the risks
and challenges were unprecedented. Internationally, the century-long
changes intertwined with the pandemic, coupled with the increasing
risk of stagnation in the world economy, causing more instability and
uncertainties. Domestically, the economy has been under increasing
downward pressure due to the recurrent outbreaks of COVID-19 and
the frequent occurrence of natural disasters such as high temperatures
and droughts, as well as the triple pressure of shrinking demand,
supply shocks and weakening expectations. As a result, the advertising
market was also weakened with sluggish overall demand and declining
consumer confidence, advertisers therefore took a cautious attitude
towards advertising spending, which contributed negatively to the Group's
business operations. According to data from CTR Media Intelligence, the
advertising market for the full year 2022 decreased by 11.8% year-on-
year.

Looking ahead to 2023, as the pandemic prevention and control
measures enter a new stage, the consumption environment and
consumer pattern gradually improve, market expectations and confidence
stabilise, and the policy support continues to gain effect, China's overall
economy is expected to rebound, yet the recovery process still faces a
series of challenges. The current international situation is complex and
severe, and a number of uncertainties still lie ahead for China's economic
development, which will put pressure and challenges on the development
of the advertising industry. Nevertheless, China's economy has strong
resilience, great potential and vitality, its long-term positive fundamentals
remain unchanged, and will continue to be the main stabiliser and source
of power for the world economy. To actively cope with market changes
and operational pressure, the Group will continue to implement a number
of measures to increase efficiency, meet market challenges, enhance
brand value for customers and strive to maintain stable operations during
the economic downturn.

In the face of market pressure, the Group will consolidate its strengths
in 2023 and focus on its existing advantages and core competencies.
We will continue to cultivate our TV advertising business, adhere to our
customer-oriented product and service strategy, maintain our existing
quality customers, strengthen the development of new customers,
and enhance the brand influence of our customers through efficient
communication of TV advertising. We will continue to strengthen our core
competency in content marketing and communication, and provide quality
communication services to our customers, offering tailor-made creative
content and communication solutions through program planning, content
placement, IP creation and on-site execution, empowering our customers'
brand value with innovative capabilities and maintaining our leading market
share in TV advertising. Meanwhile, the Group will combine its experience
and capabilities in content marketing and brand communication to make
further exploration in the field of content integration, actively seek more
in-depth cooperation opportunities through the development, investment
and operation of branded variety shows and IP direction, expand the ways
of cooperation with brands, and accelerate the continuous optimization
and development of the Group's business structure in the medium to long
term.
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Chairlady’s Statement

In terms of digital advertising and digital marketing, we will continue to
increase our Internet advertising services in line with the current trend
of Internet media development and advertisers' demand for placement.
Through big data and precision placement technology, we can optimise
the marketing efficiency of advertising and enhance the effectiveness of
our clients' Internet placement. Leveraging on our accumulated advantages
and experience in the marketing and communication of television content,
we will continue to enhance our integrated Internet service capabilities
through integrated digital content marketing on the Internet, providing
one-stop digital marketing solutions to our customers to enhance their
placement effectiveness and brand influence on the Internet.

With the continuous optimisation and adjustment of the pandemic
prevention and control policy, the society is rapidly returning to normalcy
and market demand will also resume gradually, and consumers will be
willing to spend more time outdoors. As outdoor advertising has played
a more brand-oriented advertising role for our corporate clients, we will
continue to adjust and optimise our business structure according to
the actual communication needs of our clients, and increase our brand
communication services in the outdoor advertising business to provide our
clients with a variety of scenes and integrated communication solutions
for scenes. At the same time, we will continue to explore and follow up
on new technologies, make use of them to explore new forms of media
advertising, develop new advertising businesses to open up market
space, provide new advertising value to our clients and explore new profit
growth points.

We are confident that we can continue to create value for our corporate
clients and society through our professional and efficient communication
services and operating strategies that keep pace with the times. We are
grateful for the continued support and trust of our shareholders and client
partners, and will continue to work with you to build the future together.

Wang Xin
Chairlady

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD AT

Market overview

In 2022, with increasing risks of global economic stagnation and slowdown
in growth, data from the National Bureau of Statistics shows that the
preliminary estimate of annual gross domestic product (GDP) in China for
2022 was RMB121,020.7 billion, an increase of 3% at constant prices
over the previous year. The overall advertising market was weakened by
the impact of the pandemic and the complex and challenging domestic
and international market environment, with advertisers adopting a more
cautious and retrenching strategy in advertising for risk aversion. The
advertising market declined by 11.8% year-on-year in 2022. In terms
of performance by month, the market continued to decline since the
beginning of the year, with a more pronounced decline on a month-over-
month comparison, and clear signs of recovery for the overall market
were seen in the second half of the year. However, as certain cities
were severely affected by the pandemic towards the end of the year,
the placement of many types of advertising channels was affected and
the market experienced more volatility again. As of December 2022, the
advertising market resumed growth as compared with the previous month.
(Source: CTR Media Intelligence, “China Advertising Market Overview
2022”"). With further optimisation of the pandemic prevention and control
policy and the introduction of consumer incentive measures by local
governments to enhance consumption capacity and create consumption
scenes, the overall consumer market has recovered steadily and the trend
is expected to continue in 2023. With the improvement of the market
environment, the advertising market will walk out from the volatile period
and head for another growth cycle in 2023.

Group overview

In view of market pressure, in 2022, the Group focused on its existing
traditional strengths and core competencies in content marketing by
integrating its strengths in a timely manner in accordance with the actual
advertising needs of its customers, while at the same time adjusting and
optimising its business structure to increase its online advertising services
and integrated marketing services, with a view to providing professional
and efficient content marketing and quality integrated marketing services
to our customers, thereby driving the steady growth of the Group.

Business review
TV advertising services

The Group provides professional and personalised TV advertising
solutions to its customers and with its long-standing relationships with
key suppliers, it is able to provide its clients with a wealth of cost-effective
communication resources, help them achieve excellent advertising effect
within their budget and maximise the effectiveness of advertising. During
the Reporting Period, in the face of the severe market environment under
the impact of the pandemic, we consolidated our strengths and upgraded
our TV advertising business to a more in-depth and comprehensive
communication service, optimised our media resources portfolio to
enhance our competitiveness, and strived to provide more precise and
effective personalised advertising solutions to our clients. During the
Reporting Period, the Group provided brand or product advertising
services to a well-known branded beverage seller and a leading household
appliance manufacturer in China, and gained recognition from various
well-known customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WD AT

In terms of content marketing business, the Group has been actively
improving its creative design and communication capability to complete
content placement ideas, content integration planning, secondary
communication marketing and implementation action plans for various
customers, so as to enhance customers’ brand value by content
integration. During the Reporting Period, the Group successively provided
services to major advertiser customers, including a leading home
appliances manufacturer in China with headquarter located in Qingdao
and a leading kitchen appliances manufacturer with headquarter located
in Ningbo. Project cooperation involves the cooperation between the
said leading home appliances manufacturer in China (headquartered in
Qingdao) and Shenzhen Satellite TV for holding a press conference on
the launch of a scientific knowledge program, and cooperation between
the leading kitchen appliances manufacturer advertiser with headquarter
in Ningbo and a provincial Satellite TV station in Shanghai on a large-
scale home refurbishment program. During the Reporting Period, revenue
from the TV advertising services business amounted to approximately
RMB102.4 million.

Online advertising services

In response to the current development trend of the Internet media and
advertisers’ demand, the Group continues to increase its online advertising
and communication services. Leveraging on the advantages of the online
media and new media resources matrix, the Group continues to enhance
its Internet integration services through big data and precise placement
technology, and provide customers with quality and effective digital
advertising resources and one-stop online marketing solutions. During the
Reporting Period, the Group served some of the large online mobile game
companies and other clients in China. With respect to their cooperation,
the brands achieved a better conversion rate in the placement of digital
media on the Internet, ensuring the sustainability of the clients” advertising
placements, which was highly recognised and appreciated by the clients.

At the same time, we fully explored the integrated needs of our
clients in the area of Internet communications, leveraging on our
accumulated strengths and experience in television content marketing
and communications, and enhanced our Internet variety show content
communication services, creating a strong binding between our successful
experience in digital advertising and traditional business to provide one-
stop integrated digital marketing solutions to our clients, enhancing
their communication effectiveness and brand influence on the Internet.
During the Reporting Period, our Internet variety show projects included a
reality show for observation of intimate relationship for a leading Chinese
household appliances manufacturer headquartered in Qingdao and the
world’s first scene-based brand with the first site-based theatre evening
show; a romance-observation variety show with the advertiser which is
China’s leading can and beverage manufacturer based in Xiamen, Fujian,
etc. During the Reporting Period, revenue from online advertising services
amounted to approximately RMB295.2 million.

ERARZHEB L - AEBEEGEAABRANERRES
B REZEPTERATEAAE  RABAKE -
REFBLWEREBERTE  BBARBARTPREAM
MEEE - RRSHRA - ARESRRER —H@sur
BEMTPEALHKBERELER K —HABLRERNE
AEFEREEREREIEP  FRIABAFNTRBE
FRAERREDN (RANURETE) NESTRRINEGE
BERAR BN EENANEMEH A NAIE - B
REMNETHFERRENRES TR LBARFEER
AR —EARREICEEENEE A - RIBEHERA
BEEEREEBRENA/ARE 1024 BET °

B FEERH

AEE BB AT E R ARENERBBMES TNRKE
Ko MBENMAEBMERESERERBENE - BEPKERR
MREREREENED  BBABUREBEERRRMN - 5
BRATMBEAREED  THATPRHABEBRA
BFESERAR—HANBEFTEHRRIR - RIREH
MR AEBEERRBEEN-LABBEFHEES &
TEHAR - B E T BB T RERNRKLE B8
ME(CRER  RETEFESRBHBEL  BEEF
S ERAIFER o

A TORBFCELBBEBEGNEATENR  BE
AREERNTRANR L HEFED LA - 585 AR
BRANEERYS  PHRFESESNERESRINEH
ETTENNGES  ARPRE—XNBTES L8
AAR RARFELBBENEERREMBEZEN - R
HEHMA - S REBRGBEIEE S1EF  PEELR
AERREE(HATUNES)NESTE—ERZHEK
BRBEEABHENAE URET2REESS REE
BEBERESHRSHENEIE : EBUAREEMNSP
B M TEBACEESTH—ERBHRERE
MEESSE - RREHEAR  EFESRERFHAAR
#2052 HEJT °

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®

9



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED T

Outdoor advertising services

The Group continued to strengthen and improved its market penetration in
the areas of outdoor display boards, LED display panels, lifts in buildings,
bus bodies and subway outdoor areas. With our high-quality outdoor
advertising resources and good connections with relevant suppliers,
we provide our customers with a variety of scenes and integrated
communication solutions for scenes. During the Reporting Period, the
Group placed outdoor advertisements such as bus bodies and LEDs for
a well-known household appliance manufacturer in the PRC (another
manufacturer based in Qingdao), a major Chinese oil refiner in the PRC
and a beer producer based in Qingdao.

As a result of the repeated outbreaks of the pandemic, outdoor advertising
was seriously affected by the lockdown and control measures in various
regions and home offices, advertisers were more cautious in placing
outdoor advertisements than in the past, and less budget was allocated
for outdoor advertisements of our customers or placements were
postponed, resulting in a significant drop in revenue from the Group’s
outdoor advertising business. During the Reporting Period, revenue
from outdoor advertising services business amounted to approximately
RMB10.8 million.

Other advertising services

Building on the stable foundation formed by its original diversified media
advertising services, the Group continues to develop and utilise resources
in new areas such as brand strategy design services, radio advertising
and magazine advertising to meet customers’ diversified advertising
needs. During the Reporting Period, the Group provided brand culture
IP strategy design and organised cultural bottle design and other related
communication cooperation projects for a well-known brand of cooked
water beverage seller.

As a result of the recurring pandemic in the PRC and the increasing
downward pressure on the Chinese economy, overall demand in the
consumer market was weak with declining consumer confidence. Against
this background, advertisers reduced their budgets for other diversified
ancillary advertising or suspended other advertising placements, resulting
in a larger decline in revenue from the Group’s other advertising business.
Revenue from other advertising services amounted to approximately
RMB4.2 million.

Financial review

Revenue and loss and total comprehensive income attributable to
the owners of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately

RMB412.7 million, representing a decrease of 6.4% from approximately
RMB441.1 million for the corresponding period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Revenue details for the Reporting Period are as follows:

1)

During the Reporting Period, revenue from TV advertising services
was approximately RMB102.4 million, representing an increase of
11.5% from approximately RMB91.8 million for the corresponding
period last year.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from online advertising
services was approximately RMB295.2 million, representing an
increase of 33.3% from approximately RMB221.5 million for the
corresponding period last year. The revenue for such business
increased, which was mainly attributed to the increase in the
advertising investment of the customers during the pandemic.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from outdoor advertising
services was approximately RMB10.8 million, representing a
decrease of 90.4% from approximately RMB112.3 million for
the corresponding period last year. As a result of the repeated
outbreaks of the pandemic, outdoor advertising was severely
affected by the lockdown and control measures in various regions
and the implementation of home office, advertisers were more
cautious in placing outdoor advertising than before, and outdoor
advertising budgets of our customers declined or were postponed,
resulting in a significant decline in revenue from the outdoor
advertising services of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from other advertising
services was approximately RMB4.2 million, representing a
decrease of 72.8% from RMB15.4 million for the corresponding
period last year. As a result of the repeated outbreaks of the
pandemic causing lockdown and control measures in various
regions and home offices, it was unavailable for other advertising
to have on-site communication, and customers had reduced
investment due to the pandemic, causing business delay or being
unable to proceed, leading to the significant decrease in revenue
from the other advertisement services of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the loss and total comprehensive expense
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately RMB11.4
million, while that of the corresponding period last year profit and total
comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately RMBO0.4 million.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin during the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit and gross
profit margin of approximately RMB10.6 million and approximately 2.6%,
respectively. The Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin for the
corresponding period last year were approximately RMB17.3 million and
approximately 3.9%, respectively. The Group’s gross profit margin was
lower than the level of the corresponding period, which is mainly due to
the uncontrollable factor (the pandemic) resulting in insufficient work from
all industries in China during the Reporting Period. In particular, Beijing has
a longer period under such impact, with measures regarding quarantine
at home for more than 40 days and the implementation of flexible work
system for two months following resumption of work. The decrease in
revenue was greater than the decrease in cost.

Other income, gains and losses

During the Reporting Period, other income, gains and losses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3.1 million, representing a decrease of
21.2% from approximately RMB3.9 million for the corresponding period
last year. During the Reporting Period, other income, gains and loss were
mainly attributable to subsidies received from the local government of
approximately RMB2.0 million and additional deductions of input tax on
value-added tax of approximately RMB1.1 million. Other income, gains
and losses for the same period last year were mainly attributable to the
subsidy received from the local government, fair value gain of financial
assets at FVTPL and the additional deduction of input tax on value-added
tax.

Selling and marketing expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling and marketing expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3.7 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 48.2% from approximately RMB7.1 million for the
corresponding period last year. The main reason for the decrease in selling
and marketing expenses of the Group was due to the Group’s business
operations being affected by the outbreak and escalation of the COVID-19
pandemic, leading to the reduction of 12 full-time staff as compared with
same period last year.
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Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s administrative expenses was
approximately RMB7.7 million, representing a decrease of 13.9% from
approximately RMB8.9 million in the same period last year. The main
reason for the decrease in administrative expenses of the Group was due
to the Group’s business operations being affected by the outbreak and
escalation of the COVID-19 pandemic, leading to the reduction of 12 full-
time staff as compared with same period last year.

Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, finance costs of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB6.5 million (same period last year: approximately
RMB11.9 million), representing a decrease of 45.5%, which was mainly
due to the change in part of the loan structure in 2022 caused by the
decrease in bank borrowings.

Provision for (reversal of) losses allowances of financial assets and
contract assets, net

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded provision for losses
allowances of financial assets and contract assets of approximately
RMB28.0 million (same period last year: reversal of losses allowances of
financial assets and contract assets of approximately RMB11.0 million),
which was due to the decrease of Group’s accounts receivable turnover
rate.

Income tax credit (expense)

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax credit was
approximately RMB20.4 million (same period last year: income tax
expense of approximately RMB3.8 million), which was primarily due to (j)
over-provision of income tax in prior years; and (i) deferred taxation as a
result of impairment of loss.

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expenses) income for the
year

The Group’s loss and total comprehensive expenses for the Reporting
Period was approximately RMB11.7 million (same period last year: profit
and total comprehensive income of approximately RMBO0.5 million). Save
for the influences from the aforesaid factors, it can be attributed to the
provision of bad debt for the decrease of the Group’s accounts receivable
turnover rate.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2022, the deferred tax assets were approximately
RMB10.5 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB3.5 million).

Trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables, prepayments
and other receivables amounted to approximately RMB426.3 million
(81 December 2021: approximately RMB341.1 million), representing an
increase of approximately 25.0% as compared to the previous year. The
increase in trade receivables was mainly due to seasonal fluctuations in
customer demand for the Group’s advertising services.
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Contract assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s contract assets were approximately
RMB131.7 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB23.5 million).

Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2022, trade and other payables of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB212.5 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB39.0 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 444.7%, which is attributable to the increase in partial
placements from customers. The revenue was stable.

Tax payables

As at 31 December 2022, tax payables amounted to approximately
RMBO.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB14.6 million),
representing a decrease of 99.0% as compared with the previous year. It
was mainly due to a decrease in the business volume of the Group.

Significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies

The Group had not executed any agreement in respect of material
investment or capital asset and did not have any other plans relating
to material investment or capital asset as at 31 December 2022.
Nonetheless, if any potential investment opportunity arises in the
coming future, the Group will perform feasibility studies and prepare
implementation plans to consider whether it is beneficial to the Company
and its shareholders (the “Shareholders”) as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB5.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB34.9 million) of which, substantially all was in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total assets was approximately
RMB574.2 million, of which equity attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately RMB206.3 million, non-controlling equity
was approximately RMBO.1 million.

Capital expenditure

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other significant
capital expenditure.

Contingent liabilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other significant
contingent liabilities.
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Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio increased from approximately 53.4% as at
31 December 2021 to approximately 56.9% as at 31 December 2022.
The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the sum of total bank and
other borrowings and lease liabilities by total equity as at the end of the
respective periods, and multiplied by 100%.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s business activities and operations are mainly carried out
in China where core transactions are conducted in RMB. The influence
by exchange rate fluctuations on cash flow or liquidity of the Group’s
operating business is very limited, therefore, the Group currently did not
engage in or intend to manage hedging activities of foreign exchange
rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign exchange activities to
secure the Group’s cash value as far as possible.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuations
in the prevailing market interest rates on bank balances and cash. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities. The Group’s policy is to maintain
short-term borrowings at prevailing market rates so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

Industry and Group outlook
Outlook

Looking ahead to 2023, with the continuous optimisation and adjustment
of the pandemic prevention and control policies, the society is rapidly
returning to normalcy and market demand will gradually pick up, so is
expected for China’s economy in general, but the recovery process
still faces a series of challenges. As the current international situation
is complex and severe, China’s economic development still faces a lot
of uncertainties, putting the development of the advertising industry
under more pressure and challenges. However, we remain confident
and optimistic about the medium to long term prosperity of the Chinese
economy, which will be the main stabiliser and source of power for the
world’s economic growth. We believe that with effective anti-epidemic
measures and favourable economic policies, China’s economy will
improve and sustain its growth and the advertising market is expected to
have more room for growth in 2023.

Amidst the changes in the economic environment and the advertising
industry and the pressure on its operations, the Group will continue to
adjust and optimise its business structure in 2023 in response to changes
in the pandemic and the actual communication needs of its customers,
expand its online advertising services and Internet integrated marketing
business, and further strengthen its core competitiveness in content
marketing and integrated communication.

BEELRELLE

REFNEERAMBLERH 2021 F12 A 31 HA53.4% +
FrZE2022F 12 A31 HH56.9% - BEABLH R HIR
FRFEEAR BV ERTT R H A 18 Z A R T & B BV AR FIRR LA A
25 WA 100% 2HE -

SME R

AEBZEFZOREEMEHEZEFE KFHUAR
ML?:IET?/D*% HRAEBKEER  RERELR
HESXEXRDTEIFEER - MAKERFIRKE
EE?ﬁEEE%EETHﬁAE’]H/%ﬁE REEGEE
ERINEED) - UBREREAEENHRSEE -

LTS

Efﬁﬁ B RAENBITMSNERPTE - AEEEY
R MEN KRG o NGB B R EHHEK

REBO R AN T @ 2 8 E AR RT MM E
m&%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ AREBNBRBRBITHISMNE G
5 ERE R A RAENERR -

TERFTEERE
RE

R 2023 £ %%f\%iﬁﬁ%T%%kﬂﬁ e
EE&%M@%%* MisHERBEESER - PELHE
ﬁﬁ%uh@% ﬁ@imL&W@% OB - B
RIER B E M - PERERREAEAEEESZ T
%ml% ERBESITENBEREEREMBE - BN
RS E P BB RAERFRIFEOMBAR - PELHE
HREEEREZNIZESRME AR - HABEEER
B REEAMAMTEBERRT - PREEERSSHE
IR - FEET 2028 FES M S HABRANEREM -

O ERIBMESITENER B LG EEN - 2023 F
REBEREZBZCBERANELFHERERES R B8
ARBEBLER  BRAOBEAESEERGE LA
ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁ% CiE— B b NA E MBS FENZL

BES o

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD AT

In terms of TV advertising business, we will continue to maintain our
core strengths in TV advertising and content marketing communications,
and continue to optimise our marketing strategy and media product mix to
enhance our competitiveness, maintain our existing quality clients, acquire
more new clients and enhance the brand influence of our clients through
effective TV advertising.

In terms of digital advertising and digital marketing, we will continue
to increase our online advertising services in line with the current trend
of Internet media development and advertisers’ demand for placement.
Meanwhile, riding on the strengths and experience accumulated by the
Group in TV content marketing and communications, we will enhance
the communication service of Internet variety show content. Through
integrated Internet and digital marketing, more efforts will be placed in
providing Internet integrated service and offer our clients with one-stop
digital marketing solutions, helping them to gain better outcome in placing
online advertisements and grow their brand popularity.

In terms of outdoor advertising, we will increase our brand
communication services for outdoor advertising according to the actual
communication needs of our clients, providing them with a variety of
scenes and integrated communication solutions for scenes. At the same
time, we will continue to keep abreast of new technologies, make use of
them to explore new forms of media advertising, develop new advertising
businesses for market expansion, provide new advertising value to our
clients and explore new profit growth points.
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Directors

Name

HE

Ms. Wang Xin
FRzt

Ms. Li Na
iy

Mr. Leng Xuejun
REPBEHRE

Mr. Li Xue

Mr. Wu Ke
REHEAE

Mr. How Sze Ming
EBREE

Age
Fie

45
455%

45
455%

40
405%

58
585%

35
355%

46
465%

Date of joining
our Group

MAZREER B H

August 2015
201558 A

April 2003
20034 A

September 2013
20135 9A

October 2019
2019 10H

January 2021
2021%1H

October 2019
20194 10A

B=

Date of appointment

as Director

ERERESAH

1 April 2019
201954 731H

25 January 2019
201941 A25H

25 January 2019
201941 A25H

22 October 2019
2019 10H22H

1 January 2021
20211 A1H

22 October 2019
20199F10H22H

Position/Title
BBt

Executive Director and chairlady of the Board
BITESRESEEER
Executive Director

HITES

Executive Director, vice chairman of the Board
and one of our joint company secretaries

WITESR EFQRETREMERARNEZ —

Independent Non-executive Director
BYIFRTES

Independent Non-executive Director

B IFITES

Independent Non-executive Director

B FRITER

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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Ms. Wang Xin (E£fiX), aged 45, is an executive Director, chairlady of the
Board and of the Nomination Committee of our Company. Ms. Wang Xin
is primarily responsible for overseeing business development and sales
matters of the Group. She was redesignated as an executive Director
on 29 April 2019, has been nominated as the chairlady of the Board and
of the Nomination Committee of the Company on 14 December 2021.
Ms. Wang Xin is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. She
is the sister of Ms. Wang Lei, one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Ms. Wang Xin has over 17 years of experience in the advertising industry.
From June 2005 to June 2015, Ms. Wang Xin has been the general
manager of Qingdao Zhongzhouxian Advertisement Co. Ltd.* (5 &
FERARE S AR A A]), a company which is principally engaged in the
advertising business, where she was responsible for overall management
of the company. She has been the executive director of Shanghai Kailun
since August 2015, where she is responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the company. Ms. Wang
Xin graduated from the PLA Nanjing Institute of Politics* (F B A RGN E
R BUAZPT) with a bachelor’s degree in economics and administrative
management in June 2014. She has been served as the executive
director of Beijing Ruicheng since January 2022, being responsible for
the overall management, business development and business strategy
implementation of the company.

Ms. Wang Xin also holds the following positions in the members of our
Group:

EFR&LL - 455% ' ARFRITES - EFSEFERIRERE
BE2XE IMEULTTEEEEEREBMERERERE
EET o HN2019F4 8200 AT ABITES - H20214F
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BEEIE - B2015F8 AR  HET LSIRUNITES -
BEZATNEETE « RBRBAREKERE - R20145F
68  IMELTEERFTFRARBHRER RBUASH « &
MEIERITHE RS L2 - 202291 A# - EEILR
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FREZLIFRAEER S R REEATRLA

Name Position held Principal roles responsibilities Date of appointment

=L FriER AL FEBBRBE BEEAH

Beijing Ruicheng Director (executive director from Overall management, business development 5 January 2022
January 2022) and business strategy implementation

bR EE(H2022F1 ARRAHITES) BEEE  EBERLEHREBRRR 202241 A5H

Shanghai Kailun Executive director Overall management, strategic planning and 5 August 2015

business development
EEslte BITES BREE KRB REBER 201568 A5H
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Ms. Li Na (Z=), aged 45, is one of our founders, an executive Director.
Ms. Li served as the chairlay of the Board and of the Nomination
Committee from 25 January 2019 to 14 December 2021. Ms. Li is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall management, strategic
planning and business development of the Group. She was redesignated
as an executive Director on 29 April 2019. Ms. Li has over 20 years
of experience in the advertising industry. Prior to joining the Group in
April 2003, she worked as a deputy director in Jinjuan Advertisement
Technology Co., Ltd* (&85 & EHER 1% B R A7), a company principally
engaged in the advertising and media business, from April 2000 to
November 2003, where she was responsible for marketing matters and
after-sales services. From June 2004 to October 2018, Ms. Li was the
legal representative of Beijing Ruicheng. From June 2004 to February
2016, Ms. Li was an executive director of Beijing Ruicheng. From February
2010 to February 2016, she was also the general manager of Beijing
Ruicheng. From March 2016 to October 2018, Ms. Li was the chairlady
of the board of directors of Beijing Ruicheng. Ms. Li was responsible
for the overall management of Beijing Ruicheng. Ms. Li graduated from
the Ecole Nationale des Ponts et Chaussées with an executive master’s
degree of business administration (specialising in aeronautics and aviation
management) which was co-organised by Tsinghua University, in October
2018. Ms. Li was awarded the “Ten Best and Most Influential Female
Advertising Person in China 2009-2010"™ (2009-2010F E R H & A/ &
DHEZMEESE A) jointly granted by the MBA School of Communication
University of China* (f BI{EH K E MBA £6%) and the Advertising
Magazine Office* (&4 & R) #s54t) in 2010 and the “China Advertising
Golden Vision Awards: New Ten Years Leaders in China’s Marketing”
(TRESEREN +F P EEHEREEAYAKRE) granted by the
Market Observation Magazine Office* (T35 #8554 7o4t) in 2011.

Mr. Leng Xuejun (82 E), aged 40, is an executive Director and one
of the joint company secretaries of our Company. Mr. Leng is primarily
responsible for overseeing the company secretarial matters and financial

matters of the Group. He was redesignated as an executive Director on
29 April 2019. Mr. Leng has over 9 years of experience in the advertising
industry and he joined the Group in September 2013. From September
2013 to February 2016, he was the business manager of Beijing
Ruicheng, where he was responsible for business development and
external liaison. From March 2016 to October 2018, he was a director of
Beijing Ruicheng, where he was responsible for the overall management,
business development and implementation of business strategies of the
company. He served as an executive director of Beijing Ruicheng from
November 2018 to January 2022, and was responsible for the overall
management, business development and implementation of business
strategies of the company. From March 2016 to November 2018, he was
the secretary to the board of directors of Beijing Ruicheng, where he was
responsible for company secretarial matters. Mr. Leng graduated from
the Nanjing University in the PRC and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
administrative management by way of distance learning in February 2009.
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Mr. Leng also holds the following positions in the members of the Group:

Name Position held

=1 FRAERAL

Beijing Ruicheng Director (Executive director since
November 2018)

IR

Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye Executive director

SRS HITES BEEl
Ruicheng HK Director
e 5 s kgt

Mr. Li Xue (£E), aged 58, was appointed as our Independent Non-
executive Director on 22 October 2019, and is responsible for providing
independent advice and judgement to the Board. Mr. Li is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Li has over 30 years of financial and accounting experience. From July
1987 to November 1995, Mr. Li worked as a lecturer in Shandong Linyi
Finance School* (LLIZR & ERfT 81 B 224%). He then worked as a lecturer in
the faculty of finance of Yantai University in the PRC from November 1995
to February 1997. Since February 1997, Mr. Li has been a professor of the
faculty of accounting of the Management College of the Ocean University
of China. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director of
Qingdao Holdings International Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0499)) which is principally
engaged in property businesses, where he is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advice to the board of directors; and an
independent director of Qingdao Gaoce Technology Co., Ltd.* (5 & &8l
BB AR A7) (@ company listed on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688556)) which is principally
engaged in the production of cutting machinery, where he is responsible
for providing independent judgment and advice to the board of directors.
Mr. Li was an independent director of SafBon Water Service (Holding) Inc.,
Shanghai ((E/8E 2K H BRAF]) (@ company listed on the ChiNext
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300262)), a company
principally engaged in water treatment from May 2022 to December 2022,
where he is responsible for providing independent judgment and advice
to the board of directors. Mr. Li graduated from the Shandong Economics
University in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 1987
and he graduated from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
in the PRC with a master’s degree in economics in January 1998.

Mr. Li is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (Bl & 51 A3 E) as well as a certified tax advisor
of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (Bl M #6015 &).
He has been a senior member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2015. He is currently a council member of the
Accounting Society of China (Bl € 5H2€) and a council member of the
Chinese Institute of Internal Audit (1 BIRZF 25517 ). He is also currently
a member of the Chinese Audit Society (B2 2) and a council
member of the audit education division of the Chinese Audit Society.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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Overall management, business development
and implementation of business strategies
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Overall management

Overall management

REEENREBRE RRIREEATRAL :

Date of appointment

EZRERY

4 March 2016 (resigned in
January 2022)

20163 A4 H (202241 A
BF(E)

7 December 2018
2018%12A7H

21 February 2019
2019%F2A21H
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Mr. Wu Ke (R #%}), aged 35, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 1 January 2021. Mr. Wu is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wu has extensive experience in corporate finance and investment.
From July 2012 to April 2016, Mr. Wu worked as a senior manager at
Zhongtai Securities Co., Ltd. (FZREFRMDBRAF], formerly known
as Qilu Securities Co., Ltd. (BEFE# AR F), a securities company in
the PRC where he was responsible for corporate finance, and mergers
and acquisitions related work. Mr. Wu is currently deputy head and
an executive director of the corporate finance department of Zhongtai
International Capital Limited, a corporation licensed under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”) and permitted to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activities.

Mr. Wu obtained a master’s degree in global economics from the
Shandong University in the PRC in June 2012.

Mr. How Sze Ming (%2 8), aged 46, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 October 2019. Mr. How is a
member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. How has over twenty years of experience in investment banking and
assurance and advisory industries. Mr. How had worked in the corporate
finance department of several renowned investment banks with PRC and
Hong Kong background, including CMB International Capital Corporation
Limited, ICBC International Holdings Limited and CCB International Capital
Limited.

Mr. How has held the following positions in the following companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. He has been: an independent non-executive
director of World-Link Logistics (Asia) Holding Limited (stock code: 6083)
since December 2015; an independent non-executive director of Forgame
Holdings Limited (stock code: 484) from January 2016 to April 2020; an
independent non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited
(stock code: 755) from May 2017 to January 2021; an independent non-
executive director of 1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited (stock code: 8495)
from November 2017 to August 2022; and an independent non-executive
director of Watts International Maritime Engineering Limited (stock code:
2258) since October 2018.

Mr. How graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Business Administration Degree (first class honour, majoring
in professional accountancy) in December 1999. Mr. How is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Senior Management

The senior management of our Group consists of our general manager
and our deputy general manager.

Date of joining

REER SR EIRE B AARIE M EIGLIRMENK -

Date of appointment

as a member of the Principal roles and

Name Age the Group Position/title  senior management responsibilities
BZERER
i Fix MAXREERBH BAY, WA EEERERS IEBBRBE
Ms. Lin Zi (PR£) a7 March 2004  Deputy general manager 29 April 2019 Assisting the general
manager to implement
our business strategies
MEZ+ ATBR, 200443 A EEGE S 201944 A29H BN 4RI B HER P 275

Ms. Lin Zi (M%), aged 47, is the deputy general manager of our
Company. Ms. Lin is primarily responsible for assisting our general
manager to implement our business strategies. She has been appointed
as our deputy general manager since 29 April 2019. Ms. Lin has over
20 years of experience in the advertising industry. Prior to joining the
Group in March 2004, she worked as a manager in Jinjuan Advertisement
Technology Co., Ltd* (& 8BS EERHER 7 AR A7), a company principally
engaged in the advertising and media business, from March 1998 to
December 2002, where she was responsible for media placement. She
then worked as a manager in Shanghai Prospect Advertising Co., Ltd (=
BRI S ESARAR]), a company principally engaged in the business
of placement of TV advertisements, from December 2002 to February
2004, where she was responsible for media placement and liaison with
media. From March 2004 to January 2021, Ms. Lin was the deputy
general manager of Beijing Ruicheng, where she was responsible for the
management of liaison work with media. Since February 2021, she has
served as the general manager of Beijing Ruicheng and is responsible
for the overall daily operation and management of the company. From
March 2016 to October 2018, she was a director of Beijing Ruicheng,
where she was responsible for the implementation of operating strategies
of the company. Ms. Lin graduated from the University of Science and
Technology of China with a bachelor’s degree in information technology in
December 1998.

Ms. Lin also holds the following positions in the members of the Group:

Name Position held

=L FRER L FTERBERBE

Beijing Ruicheng
bR

General manager
FErCSE BEATAFKSE
Beijing Ruicheng
B8

Deputy general manager
Bleig ST A TAEE
Shanghai Kailun
gt

General manager Overall management
RS BT

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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Daily operation of the company

Management of liaison work with media
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ERERMY

18 February 2021
202142 H18H

1 March 2004 (resigned in January 2021)
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5 August 2015
201558 A5H
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Ms. Lin was awarded the “Eighth China Advertising Golden Vision Awards:
Leader in China’s Marketing”™ (F/\[EFBEE T RBLIHEZEEE
A#) in 2016 jointly by the Advertiser Magazine (&4 £ ##54t) and the
Committee of the China Advertising Summit (B &4 T IESHE ).

Note:

(1) Mr. Feng has resigned as the general manager of the Company on 30 March 2022.
Joint Company Secretaries
Mr. Leng Xuejun

For the biography of Mr. Leng Xuejun, please refer to “Directors and
Senior Management- Directors” in this section.

Mr. Zhang Mengchi, was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary
of the Company on 14 December 2021. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
an assistant manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited.

Mr. Zhang holds a Master degree in Professional Accounting and
Corporate Governance from the City University of Hong Kong, and is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to attain its vision
and strategy. It is the Board’s role to foster a corporate culture with the
following core principles and to ensure that the Company’s vision, values
and business strategies are aligned to it.

1. Integrity and code of conduct

The Group strives to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance across all our activities and operations.
The Directors, management and staff are all required to act lawfully,
ethically and responsibly, and the required standards and norms
are explicitly set out in the training materials for all new staff and
embedded in various policies such as the Group’s employee
handbook (including therein the Group’s code of conduct), the
anti-corruption policy and the whistleblowing policy of the Group.
Trainings are conducted from time to time to reinforce the required
standards in respect of ethics and integrity.

2. Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to workforce
development, workplace safety and health, diversity, and
sustainability is one where people have a feeling of commitment
and emotional engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets
the tone for a strong, productive workforce that attracts, develops,
and retains the best talent and produces the highest quality work.
Moreover, the Company’s strategy in the business development
and management are to achieve long-term, steady and sustainable
growth, while having due considerations from environment, social
and governance aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Company has applied and, as disclosed
below, has complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having been made specific
enquiry, the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Composition of the Board
The Board currently comprises a combination of three executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors as below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ms. Wang Xin Mr. Li Xue
(Chairlady of the Board)

Ms. Li Na Mr. How Sze Ming

Mr. Leng Xuejun Mr. Wu Ke

(Vice Chairman of the Board)

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing its corporate value.

The Directors possess the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business
of the Group. The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship between members of the Board are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 17 to 23 of
this annual report. There are no relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) among
members of the Board.
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Chairlady and General Manager

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 under Part 2 of the CG Code,
the roles of chairman of the board and chief executive officer (the
duties as general manager) should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Since 30 March 2022, the roles
of chairman of the board and chief executive officer are held by Ms.
Wang Xin.

The Board believes that, in view of her experience, personal profile
and her roles in the Company, Ms. Wang Xin is the Director best
suited to identify strategic opportunities and as the focus of the
Board due to her extensive understanding of our business as the
chief executive officer. The Board also believes that vesting the
roles of both the chairman and the chief executive officer in the
same person has the benefit of (i) ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group, (ii) enabling more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning and execution of strategic initiatives of the Board,
and (jii) facilitating the flow of information between the management
and the Board for the Group.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this arrangement will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. Further, the decisions to be made by the Board
require approval by at least a majority of the Directors and that
the Board comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
which the Company believes that there are sufficient checks and
balances in the Board. Ms. Wang Xin and other Directors are aware
of and undertake to fulfill their fiduciary duties as Directors, which
require, among other things, that they shall act for the benefit and
in the best interest of the Company and will make decisions for the
Group accordingly.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
at the time when it is appropriate by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent, play
an important role in the Board. They possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management skill and
experience and have provided their professional advice to the
Board through regular attendance and active participation. Three
Independent Non-executive Directors have represented more than
one-third of the Board, they provide a certain degree of check and
balance and exercise independent judgement for safeguarding the
interests of the Shareholders and the Group as a whole.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term
of three years commencing from the respective effective date
of appointment and are subject to retirement by rotation at the
Company’s annual general meetings at least once every three years
in accordance with the regulations of the Articles of Association.
The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each Independent Non-executive Director in respect of his
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company has assessed the independence of
all Independent Non-executive Directors and confirmed that each
of them continued to satisfy the independence criteria under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and remained independent throughout the
Reporting Period.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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The Company also has at all times complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors and the appointment of an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Independent
Non- executive Directors represented at least one-third of the
Board and there will be a sufficiently robust and independent
voice within the Board to counter-balance any situation involving
conflict of interest and safeguard the interests of the independent
Shareholders.

Division of Responsibilities of the Board and the
Management of the Company

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. The main corporate
governance duties of the Board include (a) to formulate and
review the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to formulate,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) to employees and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees including
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. The Board has delegated the responsibility
as set out in their respective terms of reference which are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company to the
Board committees.

The management under the leadership of the general manager
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses and implementation of the strategy and direction set by
the Board.

To ensure the operational efficiency and specific issues are being
handled by relevant expertise, the Board delegates certain powers
and authorities from time to time to the management.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Code Provision C.5.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code prescribes that
at least four regular Board meetings should be held in each year
at approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
majority of Directors, Directors may participate in person or through
electronic means of communication.
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The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notice of not less than fourteen days is given
of all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with the
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda. For other
committee meetings, seven days’ notice is given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are despatched to the Directors or
committee members at least three days before meetings to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review these documents and be
adequately prepared. When the Directors or committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairlady prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached in the meetings,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and committee meetings are sent to
the Directors within a reasonable time after the date on which
the meeting is held so that they have an opportunity to request
amendments. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.

The Company has fully complied with the requirement under the
code provision C.5.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code to convene Board
meetings at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the Reporting Period, the members of the Board
have (i) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(ii) reviewed the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Company; and (jii) reviewed and monitored the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, during the regular board meetings. As at the date of
this annual report, the members of the Board have reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

The Company convened an annual general meeting on 6 June
2022 and five Board meetings during the Reporting Period. The
attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meeting of the Company during the Reporting Period are
set out below:

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board Meetings  General Meeting

Name of Directors eligible to attend eligible to attend

Ms. Wang Xin 5/5 11
Mr. Feng Xing ™ 01 0/0
Ms. Li Na 4/5 1/1
Mr. Leng Xuejun 5/5 11
Mr. Li Xue 4/5 1/1
Mr. How Sze Ming 4/5 11
Mr. Wu Ke 4/5 1/1
Note:

(1) Mr. Feng Xing resigned as an executive Director, vice chairman of the

Board and the general manager of the Company on 30 March 2022.
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The Board met five times during the Reporting Period for (i)
reviewing and approving the annual audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2022; (i) considering the change of the Chairlady of the
Board and the compositions of the Nomination Committee; and (i)
Change of Legal adviser and Auditor.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.7 of Part 2 of the CG Code, during
the Reporting Period, Ms. Wang Xin, Mr. Li Xue, Mr. How Sze Ming
and Mr. Wu Ke held one meeting without the presence of other
Directors.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision A.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code, including
(i) reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices and making recommendations to the Board; (i)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) to employees
and Directors; and (v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Board Committees

The Board has established Board Committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the Board Committees. The Company
currently has three committees under the Board, which are
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee. These committees operate in accordance
with their respective terms of reference established by the Board.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Audit Committee of the Company consists
of three Independent Non-executive Directors. As at the date of this
report, the members of Audit Committee are Mr. Li Xue, Mr. How
Sze Ming and Mr. Wu Ke. Mr. Li Xue currently serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The member of the Audit Committee, Mr.
How Sze Ming, holds the appropriate professional qualifications as
required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things,
to review and supervise the Company’s financial reporting process
and risk management and internal control system, nominate and
monitor external auditors and to provide advice and comments to
the Board on matters related to corporate governance.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Code provision D.3.3(e)(i) of Part 2 of the CG Code provides that
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall have the terms
that the members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee must meet
at least twice a year with the Auditor. The Company has included
such terms in relevant terms of reference, and thus complied with
the Code Provision D.3.3(e)(i) of Part 2 of the CG Code during the
Reporting Period.

BEEERNREHBMEBITRAEE - N)BHRE
AREBFEHE2021F12 A1 B It FEKEZFETH
BREAEEEHE202296 300 IF/NE B RKE
BRI E®RE  (EEARFTESS T FEMIESR
ZESMERK ¢ R B RA RN MR EAD -

RIFEEERTRIE — MO EXC.2.7HRE - 1Nl
SHE - IMEXL - FEELE GRERAREURR
MEERTT —RWRBEMERHEZ S

BRI

EEE A ETEEEATAE A0 KA 211K
FrEiat BB AR R EEEABER L E R
ERSRIER  (1BHREFREFRAIRERE
MBI EEEER  (FHRERARREH
BTERREERENBREER  (VERERER
BENEZNHRTEIRASRTFMWE) : RWE
BIAR RS TR ETIER RN AL EE QRS
B -

ExzET

EFg TREFZEGUERRAEEREEE
g o ARRBRA=—HEFFETLZEE  IEKE
g FHZESRIEEZEE® - ZFZEENH
RIZEF SRR REEE -

\

ERESE
ARBEKTBZEZES  WBR ETHEAIES.21
EREEERTAS T EMmBRIERE - AQEEZ
RECM-ZBUITERMAR  RAREBL
BZLZEEKEDRATELRE - EEHLERR
Bk - TEREBAETEANZESER - BRI
FHRBIEI N0 EI21ERTE BREESKE
BEASEMBHENEEER -

ERZEENIERE (HRPef) 2R kEE
RENABIRERFF RERER N AN IBEEREL
R RERINEZHED - WHERCXERFHNE
BEREFERHUEANER -

ERZENEERBRE R R RARFHE
SARER] -

P EEATRIE Z 55 T REXD.3.3(e)() M E
ERZETNRESRERIE KR - EREREE
CREBEHEES RS REREEITHE  KEX
ZESBEBFAREMELBITMAEH - AQA]
RS ERIIAE ERERE - EHi A RS R
BESTOEERSTHIE — 3o TAMEXED.3.3(e))
{& o

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

During the Reporting Period, four Audit Committee meetings were
held. The attendance records of the Audit Committee Meetings are
set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Committee Members Meeting(s)
Mr. Li Xue 4/4
Mr. How Sze Ming 4/4
Mr. Wu Ke 4/4

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed
the annual audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the unaudited interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022
with recommendations to the Board for approval; (i) conducted
an annual review on the risk management and internal control
system of the Group and monitored the auditing process with
recommendations to the Board on the risk management and
internal control system as well as monitoring the auditing process;
and (iii) reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board regarding the change of Auditors
and approval of the Auditors’ service fees.

On 31 December 2022, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held
to receive the auditors’ advice on matters that need to be brought
to the attention of the Group's audit work in 2022.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and paragraph E.1.2 of Part 2 of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company consists of three members. As at
the date of this report, the members of Remuneration Committee
consist of Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Wu Ke,
Executive Director Ms. Wang Xin and Independent Non-executive
Director Mr. How Sze Ming. Mr. Wu Ke currently serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the Reporting Period, one Remuneration Committee meeting
was held. The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
Meeting is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Committee Members Meeting(s)
Mr. Wu Ke 11
Ms. Wang Xin 11
Mr. How Sze Ming 11
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (1)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (2) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (3) either determining, with
delegated responsibility or making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management; and (4) reviewing and approving the matters
relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of each Directors and senior Management;
(iiy made recommendations to the Board in relation to the proposed
remuneration regarding the change of chairlady of the Board and
of the Nomination Committee; and (iii) reviewed the remuneration
policies, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
of the Board, and structure of the Directors and the senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing
Rules and paragraph B.3 of Part 2 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee of the Company with members are executive Director
Ms. Wang Xin, Independent Non-executive Directors Mr. Li Xue and
Mr. Wu Ke. Ms. Wang Xin currently serves as the chairlady of the
Nomination Committee.

During the Reporting Period, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held. The attendance records of the Nomination Committee
Meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Committee Members Meeting(s)
Ms. Wang Xin 2/2
Mr. Li Xue 2/2
Mr. Wu Ke 2/2
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and/or in senior management and
succession planning for Directors in particular the Chairlady of
the Board. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for (i)
reviewing the Board structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience, and diversity of perspectives) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
(i) developing and maintaining a policy for the nomination of Board
members which includes the nomination procedures or election
or re-election of Directors; (iii) developing and maintaining a policy
concerning board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”); (iv)
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and (v) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. During Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to (i) review the Board structure, size and
composition, and make proposed recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of the members of the Board in the forthcoming
AGM in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy of the Company
and the nomination policy of the Directors; (ii) accessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and (iii)
made recommendations to the Board on the change of chairlady of
the Board and of the Nomination Committee and the resignation of
executive Director.

Independent views of the Board

The Company has appointed Independent Non-executive Directors
in accordance with the independence criteria set out in the Listing
Rules, and proactively arranged Independent Non-executive
Directors to join various committees under the Board to assure
the Board and committees under which can obtain independent
perspective. Independent Non-executive Directors (same as other
Directors) are entitled to ask for further data and documentation
from the management of the Company on matters discussed at
Board meetings to enable such to make a full assessment and
to provide constructive and independent advice. The Board has
assessed the independence of all the Independent Non-executive
Directors on an annual basis pursuant to the independence criteria
set out in the Listing Rules to ensure their continued independence
of judgment.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
its approach to achieve and maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of our Board that are relevant to our business
growth. Pursuant to our Board Diversity Policy, selection of Board
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the
diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review our
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness and we will disclose the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy in Corporate Governance Report of the Company
on an annual basis.

The gender composition of the Board of the Company is diverse
and currently the Company has two female directors. As of 31
December 2022, the percentage of female members of the Board
was 33.3% and the ratio of female employees among all employees
was 66.7%. Our Company considers that the composition of our
Board satisfies our Board diversity policy and our Company has not
set any measurable objectives.
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As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the Board of the
Company is set out in the following diagram, and the biographical
details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Gender structure
Number of people and percentage (%)

1 BIRHEA B B D L (%)
16.7%
[ Female Director
THES 16.7%
66.7% l;AaaIe*Director
EMESR 1679

Age structure
Number of people and percentage (%)

FREBABRE D (%)
16.7%
= Aged 30-40
305%-405%
Aged 41-50 50.0%
415%-505%
S0MTEY Aged 51-60
515%-605%

PROCEDURE AND PROCESS FOR NOMINATION OF
DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the following procedures and process:

i. Selection criteria:

(@) the Nomination Committee shall consider suitability of
the proposed candidates for appointment as Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules, the Board
Diversity Policy and the policy for the nomination of
Directors;

(o) the character and integrity of the proposed candidates
for appointment as Directors;

(c) the Nomination Committee shall consider whether the
proposed candidates for appointment as Directors are
equipped with the skills and expertise required from
members of the Board, and the skills, experiences and
knowledge to make significant contributions to the
Group;
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Educational structure
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the Nomination Committee shall consider the re-
election of any Directors who are to retire by rotation
having regard to the re-appointment of Directors’
performance, ability to continue to contribute to the
Board and their participation in the Board;

compliance with the criteria of independence, in case
for the appointment of an Independent Non-executive
Director, as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with
regard to directors of the Company; and

any other relevant factors determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time
as appropriate.

Nomination procedures include:

(@)

the Nomination Committee shall formulate a selection
criteria list of candidates for directorship, the list will
consider the Board’s existing structure, scale, the
Board Diversity Policy and the needs of talent groups
and the Board, the candidates shall equip with the
characteristics of coordinating with the expansion of
the overall talent groups, experiences and expertise of
the Board;

the Company shall identify suitable candidates for
directorship through various channels, including
the recommendations from the Directors, the
Shareholders, the management or external head
hunting companies;

the company secretary must obtain the personal
information of the nominated candidates in
accordance with the regulations of rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules;

the Nomination Committee shall perform sufficient due
diligence on the individual candidate for directorship
and make recommendations to the Board for the
consideration and approval;

to ensure that on appointment to the Board,
non- executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out the expectation in terms of
time commitment, committee service and involvement
outside meetings of the Board;

in the context of re-appointment of any existing
members of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at the annual
general meeting;
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(@  the Board shall have the final decision on matters
related to the selection and appointment of
directorship; and

(h)  the Board shall recommend the retired director to
stand for re-election at the annual general meeting
in accordance with the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee. The appointment of retired
director is subject to the approval at the annual
general meeting.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management 8. ESKksHEEEM:

During the Reporting Period, executive Directors who are also the PGB - ANRARAR B INAITESRIE
Company’s staff are entitled to receive salaries, fees, discretionary HBESBEARR TN DB M A W E
bonuses and other allowance and benefits in kind according to ® e MBEEAREMERREYFG - BH
their respective positions taken on a full-time basis in the Company. BESNHREHANNEFER SRR AFRE 1382
Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for the 1408 BA F5 R KR MIzE14 ©

Reporting Period is set out in note 14 to the financial statements on

page 138 to page 140 of this annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of Part 2 of the CG Code, for the RIBREERTRIZE — DA FANEEEA 5% -
Reporting Period, details of the remuneration of senior management WMEMA - SREERE (BEERIN RFMERER
(except for Directors) by remuneration grade are as follows: I BNEEBIN T -

Remuneration band Number of individual
g E AE
RMBO to RMB500,000 ARBZTE AR¥500,0007T 1
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors 9. BECRE ERRER

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. The principal particulars of these service
contracts are (i) for a term of three years commencing from their
respective effective date of appointment until the day on which
the next general meeting of the Shareholders for re-election of
Directors is held; and (i) are subject to termination in accordance
with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed
in accordance with our Articles of Association and the applicable
Listing Rules.

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board subject
to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be determined
by the members in general meeting. Any Director so appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an annual
general meeting.
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At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the
number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third shall be the number of
retiring Directors. The Directors to retire in each year shall be
those who have been in office longest since their last re-election or
appointment but, as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
has been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
of the Company. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of
the relevant general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices may be lodged must be at least
seven days.

A Director is not required to hold any shares in the Company by
way of qualification nor is there any specified upper or lower age
limit for Directors either for accession to or retirement from the
Board.

From time to time the Board may appoint one or more of its
members to be managing director, joint managing director or
deputy managing director or to hold any other employment or
executive office with the Company for such period and upon such
terms as the Board may determine, and the Board may revoke or
terminate any of such appointments. The Board may also delegate
any of its powers to committees consisting of such Director(s) or
other person(s) as the Board thinks fit, and from time to time it
may also revoke such delegation or revoke the appointment of and
discharge any such committees either wholly or in part, and either as
to persons or purposes, but every committee so formed shall, in the
exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations
that may from time to time be imposed upon it by the Board.
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Training of Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

According to the trading records provided by the Directors, a
summary of training received by the Directors during the Reporting
Period is as follows:

Nature of

continuous

professional

development

Name of Directors programmes

Wang Xin

Li Na

Leng Xuejun A,
Li Xue

How Sze Ming

Wu Ke

W wwwm

Notes:

A: Attending seminar or trainings that are relevant to (i) Director’s duties
and obligations, (ii) New ESG requirements; (iii) notifiable transaction
and connected transaction; and (iv) the continuous professional training
for company secretaries in 2022 organized by SWCS Academy, which
mainly involves the general responsibilities of company secretaries, the
responsibilities of directors and senior managements, anti-corruption, etc.

B: Reading and watching relevant materials on the topics related to (i) the
Board and the Board's Governance Guidelines; (i) corporate governance
(including managing inside information); (iij) the CG Code, and (iv)
connected transactions.

All Directors have provided written record of the training they
received for the Reporting Period to the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management of the Company provides explanation and information
to the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of financial statements
and other information put before the Board for approval. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for preparation information and
representations contained in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the Reporting Period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flow for the
Reporting Period.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the International Financial
Reporting Standards have been adopted and appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board continues to
prepare the financial statements set out on pages 94 to 155 on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s external auditor, Prism Hong
Kong and Shanghai Limited (formerly known as UniTax Prism (HK) CPA
Limited), are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 89 to
93 of this annual report.

Auditor Remuneration

The management performs a review of remuneration to external auditor
on an annual basis. The fees for audit services have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee, and the fees for non-audit services, if any, are approved
by management.

For the Reporting Period, the fee paid/payable to the external auditor of
the Company, Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited (formerly known
as UniTax Prism (HK) CPA Limited) or its affiliated firm, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services is set out as follows:

Fz LB RARE
FEERZIRTE D) -

Audit and related service:
Non-audit service (Note):

Note: Non-audit services are interim report review services
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The executive Director, the vice chairman of the Board and one of the
joint company secretaries, Mr. Leng Xuejun (“Mr. Leng”) is an employee
of the Company. He is responsible for overseeing the company secretarial
matters and financial matters of the Group. Having regard to Mr. Leng’s
past experience in handling administrative and corporate matters, the
Board considered Mr. Leng has thorough understanding of the internal
management and business operations of the Group.

In addition, the Company has appointed Mr. Zhang Mengchi (“Mr.
Zhang”) as another joint company secretary to work closely with
and provide assistance to Mr. Leng in discharging his duties and
responsibilities as a joint company secretary and acquiring relevant
experience within the meaning of Rules 3.28 of the Listing Rules. Mr.
Zhang is an assistant manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, a corporate service supplier.

Mr. Leng is the primary corporate contact person of Mr. Zhang joint
company secretary, Mr. Zhang, in respect of corporate governance,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations related to
the Company and other matters, contacts Mr. Leng, and Mr. Leng is
responsible for reporting to the Board and/or the Chairlady of the Board.

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Leng and Mr. Zhang have each undertaken
over 15 hours of professional training which is in compliance with the
requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) of the Company, the
Company currently does not have any predetermined dividend payout
ratio. A decision to declare or pay any dividend in the future and the
amount of any dividends depends on a number of factors, including but
not limited to results of operations, financial position, working capital,
capital requirements and other factors the Board may deem relevant. The
Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Board has the
absolute discretion to decide whether to declare or distribute dividends
in any year. There is no assurance that dividends of such amount or any
amount will be declared or distributed each year or in any year.
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Any declaration and payment of dividends under the Dividend Policy will
be subject to the Board’s determination that the same would be in the
best interests of the Group and the Shareholders of the Company as
a whole. In addition, the declaration and payment of dividends may be
subject to legal restrictions or any applicable laws, rules and regulations
and the Articles of Association.

As of the Reporting Date, the Company was not aware of any
arrangements pursuant to which shareholders had waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

Information about the Company’s financial results, corporate details and
major events will be disseminated continuously through publication of
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports and press release.
All published information is promptly uploaded to the Company’s website
at www.reach-ad.com, for public access.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairlady of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees will be available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings. The external auditor will also
attend the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor independence.

The Company conducts regular review on the effectiveness of
communication policies with Shareholders and investors on an annual
basis and considers the relevant policies to be appropriate and effective.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

In accordance with article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
rights, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to process
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to The Board
Shareholders can also submit enquiries to the Board and send proposals
to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting to the Board by sending emails
to recpr@reach-ad.com or making phone calls to our investor hotline at 86-
10-85769398.

1602, 13/F, Building 7, No. 63 Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
the PRC.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there has not been any change in the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association. The Company’s
memorandum and articles of association are available on the website of
the Company (www.reach-ad. com) and that of the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

1. Accountability

The Board recognises its responsibility is to assess and determine
the nature and level of risks that the Group is willing to accept
in the process of reaching strategic targets, and to ensure the
Group establishes and maintains an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. This system is aimed
at managing and not eliminating the risk of not meeting business
targets, and will provide reasonable but not absolute guarantee that
major misrepresentations or business losses will not occur.

2. Governance Structure of Risk Management and Internal

Control

The Board is responsible for the assessment and determination
of significant risks and the effectiveness of risk management
monitoring for the year; the maintenance of an appropriate
and effective design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control system; making conclusions as
to the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system every year, after considering the work and review results of
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in the
assessment and monitoring of the risks encountered by the Group,
the design, implementation and monitoring and performance of the
relevant risk management and internal control system. It reports
to the Board after properly reviewing the Group’s annual risk
management and the effectiveness of the internal control system.

The management is responsible for the proper design,
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system as authorised by the Board, and the
confirmation provided to the Board as to the effectiveness of the
relevant system.

MESERHERREANERF

BRI 7] 35 B E & Ercpr@reach-ad.comsi B B 1% & & &
#786-10-85769398MEFGIR BT AR AEF SR LN
BRAG FIREZHEE -

FR B 4b B T A5 [ P K 2B BR 635 B 757 2 13/ 1602

EREMXMH

RIREEAR - AR 548 5 2 12 K40 K 40 A1) 37 4 38 A F ]
BE) o AN AR E R KM R AR R AR R B IS (www.
reach-ad.com) & B 32 A uf n] (- & ] o

EkEE R AR

1. BT
EECNEBESSRE NTHRETEEENRK
B B2 AT EEMN ARG RIZE - WHERSE
ERILEFEBELRAEINRBRERE RN EITR
o %%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ#ﬁ%% CENES B IZS
EER - MERERTEEEANKERAMKIBKRE
mé@ﬁ%%ﬁm%m

2. REREERABEEAERESE

EEe R RETFEERRRI EZRRE
BRI ﬁﬁﬁﬁém&ﬁ&%ﬂM T2 BB B
ERRS + aﬁ&ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ$ﬁ§
AEWIW& HERI%Z - BERE IR E AT
/\mLmﬁ/&‘E ﬁ;unﬁﬂ °

EREESA a%é%A?ﬁﬁ LR B AT 1)
R AKF ﬁZﬂ EEMAIBELERZFHHR
B B ERREBENS G EXERIAEESF
EREEBMAPELIERBNARIEE - AESS
e o

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&i%@%ﬁ%?’%%lmﬂ@%ﬁ
RANEEERGUETRENR BERER - I
RMEZSRHEABERETAMNER -

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

41



42

Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

The securities department is responsible for the coordination of
risk identification and assessment procedures, preparation of risk
assessment reports, bringing identified risks to the attention of the
Audit Committee, and reporting the actions taken in relation to
the management of such risks. Business divisions and functional
operations department are responsible, in accordance with their
duties, for identifying, assessing and responding to the risks relevant
to their individual departments, and carrying out risk management
procedures and internal control measures within the scope of their
respective business and functional operations areas. Each business
department identifies and evaluates risks and initiates risk response
measures in their respective areas.

The internal audit department is responsible for assisting the
Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system, and to conduct
independent assessments of the established risk management
and internal control system in accordance with the internal control
procedures.

Risk Management

3.1 Risk Management Objectives
The objective of corporate risk management is to manage
significant risks (including environmental, social and
governance risks) that the Company is faced with, and take
major responsive and monitoring actions on significant risks,
through the establishment of a proper organisational system
and management model. The specific objectives are as
follows:

o identify, assess, quantify, respond and manage all
current and future process of significant risks, and
contain them at all times at a level and in a scope
acceptable to management;

o establish a consistent and effective monitoring and
reporting system for all significant risks;

o provide reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations of external monitoring authorities, and that
various departments comply with relevant internal
rules and regulations;

. provide reasonable assurance that significant
measures to achieve the Company’s targets are
properly implemented.
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3.2

Major Processes of Risk Management

Risk management mainly includes four major areas: risks
identification, risks assessment, risks response and risk
monitoring and reporting.

Risks
identification:

Risks
assessment:

Risks response:

Risks
monitoring
and reporting:

each business and functional department
and its subsidiaries conducts, once in a
year, an identification of potential internal
and external risks in its respective
operation processes. During risks
identification, references are mainly
made to the impact the risks have on
the Company’s objectives, and major
problems or risk incidents in the business
activities for the past year.

according to the risks assessment
standards, each business and functional
department and its subsidiaries reviews
the risks identified, and assesses the
possibilities of occurrence and the
extents of impacts in order to screen out
the significant risks. The Group adopts a
combination of bottom-up and top-down
risk assessment procedures to fully
identify all of the Group’s significant risks,
which are then given rankings. Significant
risks are then reported to the appropriate
management level, Audit Committee and
the Board. A final list of significant risks is
confirmed after thorough communication
and discussion.

the responsible department of the
identified risks formulates a risk response
plan by properly applying methods
such as risk avoidance, risk reduction,
risk sharing or risk acceptance, with
consideration of the Group’s level of
risk tolerance. This allows the Group
to properly allocate resources for risk
mitigation or improvements on risk
response measures, with an aim to
reduce the overall risks of the Group to
an acceptable level.

Risk monitoring and reporting are carried
out by integrating the use of risk warning
indicators, internal auditing and periodic
summarized risk reports.
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3.3 Significant Risks 3.3
The Group has conducted a corporate risk review and
assessment for the year 2022 to assess the nature and
extent of risks that the Group is willing to assume in order to
achieve its strategic objectives. During the risk assessment
process, significant risks that may affect the Group’s
strategic objectives in responding to changes in the business
and external environment have been identified. These risks
are prioritised according to their likelihood of occurrence

and the degree of importance of their impact on the Group’s
business. In addition, the Group has put in place corrective
measures to control the risks to an acceptable level.

Risk Type
R B EE R

Macro economic Risks

REEERR

Risks Relating to Market
Competition

Risk Description

LB gt

Macro economic volatility risks

Advertisers’ advertising investments are affected by the macro-
economic and market conditions in their respective industries.
When the macro economic fluctuates, advertisers will adjust their
marketing and communication promotion strategies according to
their business objectives at different times, and industry demand
will show a significant positive correlation with the fluctuation of
the macro economic accordingly. Therefore, if economic growth
slows down or there is a recession in the future, resulting in a
decline in marketing demand from existing customers, and the
Company fails to adjust its operating policies in a timely manner,
the Company’s operating revenues and results of operations will
be adversely affected to a certain extent.

REEERB RS
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Risks relating to market competition

China’s advertising market has a large number of participants
and is in a fully competitive state. With the further maturation
of emerging media such as Internet media and mobile Internet
media, media platforms and advertising carriers have become
more diverse, and the types and number of enterprises competing
in the market are constantly increasing. In order to compete
for customer resources, some media operators often use low-
price competition, which has lowered the overall profit margin
of the industry and made the market competition in the industry
increasingly intense. If the Company is unable to cope with such
competition in the future, advertisers may choose other low-priced
media channels or media resource operators for advertising,
and the Company is at risk of decreasing its market share and
profitability.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
EREHETS R

The Company will strengthen market
survey and research and analysis,
integrate domestic and international
macroeconomic trends, and formulate
a comprehensive market strategy to
enhance the Company’s ability to resist
risks.
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The Company will improve its
competitiveness through various
measures such as service innovation
and upgrade, marketing regulation
and marketing policy support, brand
promotion, based on customer needs,
improve service quality, expand brand
awareness, and continuously adjust itself
to the competitive market situation.
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Risk Type Risk Description
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Risks Relating to Human Risks relating to the outflow of talents and risks relating to

Resources staff stability
The development of the Company’s media resources and the
quality of advertising services are closely related to the resources
and quality of the employees. The Company is already facing the
problem of staff turnover due to the macroeconomic environment,
and if timely adjustments are not made to maintain a good talent
cultivation and motivation mechanism, the Company’s operating
conditions will be adversely affected.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
BT R
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The Company will continue to improve
and enhance employee compensation
and benefits, and optimise the
performance appraisal mechanism that
is sharing and responsibility oriented. At
the same time, the Company will ensure
the cohesion and competitiveness of the
team and reduce the risk of talent loss
by establishing a sound talent cultivation
mechanism, creating a good atmosphere
for the rapid growth and development of
talents, strengthening the introduction
of professional talents, promoting an
effective performance management
system and strengthening the humanistic
care of the team.
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Risk Type Risk Description
BB R e g g
Liquidity Risks Operating cash flow turnover risks

Due to the characteristics of the advertising industry, the media
in the advertising media agency business generally requires pre-
broadcast payment, and the Company generally provides a
certain credit period for quality customers; at the same time, the
exclusive advertising agency business and customer tenders
require payment to the media and customer deposits, and the
timing of payment from customers to the Company is relatively
uncertain, resulting in a certain amount of capital occupation

pressure on the Company.
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Financial Management Risk relating to large scale and high concentration of

Risks accounts receivable

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had a
relatively large balance of accounts receivable. The closing
balance of accounts receivable from the top three customers
accounted for 89% of the closing balance of accounts receivable,
representing a relatively high concentration of accounts
receivable. If factors such as the macroeconomic environment,
industry fluctuations and the tightening of the monetary and
capital environment affect the liquidity of customers in the future,
or if the Company is unable to collect a large amount of accounts
receivable in a timely manner for various reasons, the Company
is exposed to the risk of prolonging the aging of accounts
receivable, decreasing the recovery rate, increasing the provision
for bad debts, and the need to provide for bad debts for some
customers’ accounts receivable, which will adversely affect the
Company’s cash flow and consequently the Company’s profit.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
BT R

The Company manages capital flows
scientifically, formulates capital plans,
rationalizes the use of the Company’s
capital, improves the efficiency of capital
utilization and relieves the Company’s
capital pressure. The Company keeps
track of customers’ credit and provides
them with payment terms for specific
projects based on their current credit
levels.
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The Company requires the business
department to sort out the billing period
and recovery status of the existing
accounts receivable, verify each of
the accounts receivable with overdue
period, and clarify with customers the
recovery arrangement to reduce the
risk of accounts receivable recovery.
The Company will take into account
the market conditions, contractual
arrangements and historical payback,
and set a reasonable number of turnover
days for accounts receivable and
conduct strict two-way control by the
Finance Department and the Business
Department, and if necessary, legal
professionals will intervene and take legal
measures such as litigation, seizure and
freezing to recover.
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Risk Type
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Customer Management
Risks
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Risk Description

B B 4

Risk relating to loss of core customer and issue of
customer structure

The Company attaches great importance to long-term and stable
cooperative relationships with its core customers. The Company’s
top five customers account for 83% of the Company’s total sales.
If there is a significant adverse change in the operating conditions
of the core customers, or if the core customers are lost and the
Company is unable to continue to develop new customers, the
Company’s results will be adversely affected.

61% of the Company’s revenue came from agency customers
and 39% from direct customers, and the gross margin of agency
customer projects was 47% lower than the gross margin of
direct customers. If the Company cannot improve the customer
structure and increase the proportion of direct customers, the
Company’s profitability will be affected to a certain extent.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
BT R

The Company will continue to focus
on exploring sub-sector customers,
developing direct customers, promoting
a diversified and balanced customer
structure, forming a diversified revenue
structure, enhancing the related
risk resistance, and contributing to
sustainable and stable development
with a broader coverage and a more
diversified and balanced structure.
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4. Internal Control

4.1

4.2

Internal Control Objectives

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to supervise the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system, and
a sound and effective internal control system is achieved
through a management structure with explicit authorisation
and internal monitoring accountability. The objectives are:

o to reasonably assure that the enterprise is operated
and managed in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the safety of assets, and the authenticity
and completeness of its financial reports and related
information;

. to enhance operating efficiency and effectiveness; and

o to promote the achievement of the enterprise’s
development strategies.

Internal Control

The Group has referred to the COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission)
framework, and incorporated the Company’s business
management characteristics in the design of its internal
control system, independent from operational management
and was granted full access to information subject to access
information which was needed for internal audit inspection.
The Group has conducted a risk-oriented internal control
review of key processes such as sales and collections,
daily fund management, procurement and payment for
the major operating entity companies in 2022. During the
internal control and audit process, recommendations for
improvement were made to address the identified internal
control deficiencies and weaknesses, and internal audit
findings and control weaknesses were communicated
with the internal audit team and management, who are
responsible for ensuring that internal control deficiencies
are improved within a reasonable period of time. The
Company will continue to follow up on the rectification and
improvement of internal control findings to ensure that the
rectification plan is implemented. The management and the
Audit Committee reviewed the internal control assessment
reports, and assessed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. The scope
of the review included the Group’s major control and risk
management functions, such as financial control, operations
control and compliance control.

As of 31 December 2022, the Board considered that, the
Group had carried out internal control’s “plan, review, report
and follow-up” processes of the close-loop management
system, that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate, that the
Company’s procedures on financial reporting and the
compliance of the provisions under the Listing Rules were
effective and adequate and that no significant areas of
concern that might affect the Group’s financial control,
operations control, compliance control and risk management
functions had been identified.

In the process of the review, the Board considered that the
resources, qualifications, experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting, as well as their training
sessions and budget were adequate.
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4.3

Inside Information

The Company is aware of and strictly complies with the
requirements of the currently applicable laws, regulations
and guidelines, including the obligations to disclose inside
information under the SFO and the Listing Rules, and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission, at the time when
the relevant businesses are transacted. The Group has
established the authority and accountability, as well as the
handling and dissemination procedures in relation to inside
information, and has communicated to all relevant personnel
and provided them with specific trainings in respect of the
implementation of the continuous disclosure policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s handling and
dissemination procedures and measures in relation to inside
information are effective.
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1.  ABOUT THIS REPORT

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company” or “we”) are pleased to present our Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (hereinafter referred to as the “ESG
Report” or “the Report”). The action, plans and performance in
environmental, social and governance (hereinafter referred to as
“ESG”) of the Company and and demonstrates its commitment and
to facilitate a better understanding of stakeholders on progress and
development direction of the Company in respect of sustainability
issues.

1.1

Reporting Standards

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (hereinafter referred to as the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board
Listing Rules published by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Under the four principles of
“materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance” and “consistency” as
stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide, and the requirements
of “Directors’ responsibilities”, the ESG Report has strictly
follow such guideline for disclosure in each chapter.
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The ESG Report follows the requirements of the Stock Exchange’s materiality principles,
the process of identifying and disclosing in the Report the material environmental, social
and governance factors and the criteria for their selection, the materiality issue identification
process and the materiality matrix, as well as the description of material stakeholders and
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The statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/or calculation tools used in this
ESG report for reporting emissions/energy consumption, if applicable, and the sources of
conversion factors are described in the Definitions of the Report.
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This ESG report presents the Company’s performance for the Reporting Period in an
unbiased manner, avoiding selections, omissions or presentation formats that might
improperly influence readers’ decisions or judgments.

RESGHRE ME T EMEWMARNAMEHANKER - BRI M B EEEREK

The statistical methods used in this ESG report are consistent with previous year.

Materiality

the process and results of stakeholder engagement.
BE

FARRE T B R R AR 5 2 AR AR -
Quantitative
21k
Balance
¥

FlEr R R BRRE®RER -
Consistency

Changes, if any, will be clearly stated in the Report.
—Ht
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Readers may refer to Appendix Il - The Stock Exchange
ESG Reporting Guide Index of the Report for quick referral.
The Report should be read in conjunction with the section
“Corporate Governance Report” contained in the Annual
Report for a comprehensive understanding of the ESG
performance of the Company.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022

BEU2HANERSE - BXACORE g
RERMEES) ROMFREEN - NS
fEEAFEHAH[EEERRSE | BH — 5
B AEEEERAAFINESGRE °



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERRE

1.2 Scope of Report

Unless otherwise indicated, the Report focuses on core
business performance of the Company for the period from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Year”). The KPls
of environmental scope have covered four office locations
including Beijing Ruicheng’.

1.3 Reporting Language

The Report is published in Traditional Chinese and English
versions, in case of any discrepancy between the two
versions, the Traditional Chinese version shall prevail.

1.4 Approval and Confirmations

The Report had been reviewed by and obtained approval
from the Board on 30 March 2023.

1.5 Feedback Mechanism

We truly value your comments and suggestions to the
Report and you are welcome to contact us by email (email:
rcpr@reach-ad.com).

2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate philosophy, vision, mission and core values
embraced by the Company are “creative innovation and
entrepreneurial innovation”, “building up the most trusted advertising
brand in China”, “building a bridge between brand and customers”
and “treasure reputation with essence and sincerity’respectively.
We are committed to achieve harmonious development of values
on corporate, employees, investors and society, and through
practicing active and lengthy outstanding corporate behaviors with
a focus on own impact on sustainable development, striving for
building a more benevolent sustainable society.

2.1 Board Statement

We see ESG management as part of our responsibility and
are committed to incorporating ESG issues into our decision-
making process. We believe that a robust and sustainable
governance structure is critical to our corporate development.
We have established a robust ESG management framework,
with the Board overseeing the Company’s ESG strategy
and assuming ultimate responsibility for reviewing ESG
strategy, risk management, materiality assessment,
prioritization of ESG issues and managing ESG issues, as
well as reviewing progress on environmental objectives to
ensure that management practices are effective in reducing
the environmental impact of the Company’s operations.
We will continue to review our ESG targets to ensure that
our management practices are effective in reducing the
environmental impact of our operations. In the future, we
will continue to review our ESG related targets to seek
opportunities to improve our ESG performance.

' During the Year, the Company’s overall operations were mainly concentrated in Beijing
Ruicheng

1.2

1.3

1.4
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2.2 ESG Management 2.2

For the purpose of strict compliance with relevant listing
provisions of the Stock Exchange, the Company has
established a complete ESG management system, facilitating
the integration of ESG management into decision-making
process of the Company and daily work of each department.
Our ESG management system consists of three components,
namely the board of directors, the ESG Working Group and
each functional department, and each of them is responsible
for different responsibilities as follows:

e The

. Supervise

EE

Board is the highest
decision-making body for the
Company’s ESG work. It is
responsible for determining ESG
management objectives and overall
strategy, assessing ESG-related risks,
setting up an effective internal control
system, and performing reviews and
evaluations against the Company’
ESG strategies and reporting.

EFXSRARAESCIIENREARE
WiE - BREEEARFESGERER
FAREHB - FHAESCGHERAR - &
SEMH NS RL - WHART
FESGHE I FE HE1 TR MY

ESG Working Group
ESGI e/

Each Department
18 AR

Subject to the overall policy
formulated by the Board, the ESG
Working Group organizes the
Company’s ESG management work,
and is responsible for formulating
relevant systems and procedures,
maintaining and updating ESG
indicators system, and carrying out
related consulting work. It also guides,
facilitates, coordinates and supervises
ESG management work of all
departments, and performs
assessment on implementation
results.

EEZSHENREITHT  ESGT
1/ B A RERFREA R FMESGE
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Subject to the Company’s ESG
management policy, strategy,
planning, annual work and target
deployment, requirements and
division of labor, each department is
responsible for organizing, promoting
and executing all ESG tasks assigned
by the ESG Working Group and
regularly reports the status and
progress to the ESG Working Group.

RRANBESGER T E - 5K - 1R
B FETHERBEEFNEE  ZRAM
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T A BEHAESGT {E/ M AE R

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2022




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRS

2.3

Communication with Stakeholders

In order to enhance stakeholders’ understanding of the
Company, strengthen the transparency of the Company’s
information disclosure, improve corporate governance, build
a good corporate image and maximize the Company’s value
and investors’ interests, the Company has been striving to
establish and maintain multiple communication channels with
its stakeholders. The Company’s major stakeholders and
communication measures include the following:

Stakeholder(s) Communication Channel(s)

MR BERE

Shareholders/investors ®  Annual general meeting and other general
BREE WA E meetings
e REBAFAGHHMBRIAE
e nterim report and annual report
o FRHEREHFR
e Results announcements
o EENE
e Announcements and Circulars
o NERIBH
e Senior management meetings
s EREBAEECH

Employees e  Staff Trainings
8T o BT

e Performance Appraisals

o BHERZ

e Internal meetings

o ANEEHE

e Business Briefings

LI S A LE

e Publications (e.g., employee newsletters)
o TM(EIEA)

e Staff Intranet

o BT WM

Customers e Market research
LSS o THiZAR
e Demand Analysis
o FkaoMr
e Point-to-point communication services

o HEEEBIRTS

Government and e  Study on policy issues and guidance
regulatory institutions documents
BT N BB o WBHERBMIEGEX M

e Participation in trainings organised by
relevant authorities and associations

o Z2BEFHEM - HEEBNIE

e Seminars and symposiums

o EELEHKE

e Compliance management

o AHRER

Business Partners e Centralised meetings
SERLE e EHEE
e Daily communication
e HEES

2.3

MEHEELER

A TIRENSARE T H AR MERE - R
AERHEERE  WEQFAE HIUR
HOEETR  BRLOREESALMRE
ENHBZEAL  ARR—ER NP EF
BRI MRIEZTABRE - ARATE
B ERARRE D) SR B e e

Expectation(s)

HE

Continuous improvement on operations
performance

SR L AT

Compliance operations management
BREEER

Timely and complete information disclosure
R ST S

Protection on employees’ rights and interests
HEES T HMm=

Caring for employees’ health

AR B TR

Provision of training and learning opportunities
RHUEIIRB2EHKE

Reasonable promotion channels and effective
performance incentives

IR E R IS K A R RO

Quality improvement on services and products
RaRBREMEE

Satisfaction of diversified needs of customers
WEREPZ I bHEK

Compliance with laws and regulations
BABER

Integrity in business operations

BRI %

Timely and complete information disclosure

REEHNEERE

Open, fair and just procurement

/NG IS SN

Commitment to contracts; mutual benefits and
win-win achievements

FT648  BEFHRE
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2.4

Identification of Important Issues

In accordance with the requirements of the Guide of the
Stock Exchange, the Company identifies and assesses
significant ESG issues through the ESG Working Group,
and conducts materiality assessment in conjunction with
concerned issues of stakeholders, allowing the Company
to provide related information disclosure of operations
management in a more accurate and comprehensive
manner as well as to demonstrate key areas of corporate
ESG practice and information disclosure in a more specific
manner. As there were no significant changes in the strategic
direction and business development of the Company's
operations during the year, taking into account the mutual
importance of each ESG issue to stakeholders and the
impact on the Company's business operations, the Company
has continued with the issues identified in 2020, which have
been finalized by the management and are highlighted in this

24

Report.

Environment Society

BE HeE:

. Carbon emissions management . Equal and diverse employment,

o HREFRER
° Green operations, lower energy o

consumption o
o HEEE - BREERER
° Compliance with laws and o
regulations of China .
o ESFEFEEER
. Green operations .
o  EEE .
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and employees’ care
FERZTLER  ETEF
Occupational health and
employees’ safety
BERERREREIZR
Employees’ development and
training

BTIEFIREER

Prohibition of child labour and
forced labour

ZIrET KRGS T
Open and fair procurement
NGNS

Customer services and boycott
false advertisements
BERIRERIEFIERES

EEEERA

RIBEZFT B3 MBS + KARIFBIBESG
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FZBETEENER  ETEEHT
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BF2020F EAHEAIMNERE  WEEEEE
BRHER  RARERIEREIIFE -

Goverance
= -
B/ -

° Anti-corruption and integrity
promotion

s REEER

° Community welfare

. MR AR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRS

3.

OPERATING PRACTICES

3.1

Quality Assurance

Our professional service system is designed to provide
comprehensive and efficient marketing communications
services to our clients, and we continue to advance our
position as one of the leading integrated advertising
communications service platforms nationwide. We offer our
clients four types of advertising and marketing services:
content marketing, vertical marketing, digital marketing and
scenario marketing. Detailed information is shown in the
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table below:

Content marketing

Vertical marketing

Digital marketing

Scenario marketing

Leveraging on excellent resource integration capability, the Company provides customers
with integrated marketing services of content implantation in TV variety shows, intemet
variety shows, TV dramas, web dramas, movies and large-scale network movies.
KELENERBEEN  AEFRMHERGE  PREE  BRE 88 E¥
BREZEANDEAES EHRE

Conducting precise marketing targeting on specific groups, the Company creates a
precise industrial chain vertical marketing model with unique operations’ methods and
capabilities to provide customers with vertical marketing services on programmes such as
parent-child and fashion style.

T ARRRBESH  WEROREFENENITESREEX B EEESER -
REFPRESFH KREVASHEENERSHRS

Based on big data analysis and comprehension on targeted groups, the Company
provides customers with professional searching engine marketing, mobile effect
marketing, programmatic purchase, socialisation marketing and precise integration of
brand placement services

ERRBIBEST REBEARNERE  REFPRHEEXERSIELH BIURLH
BFEEE et gk REEEBRS MR -

Conducting communication advertising in real-life scenes in where the audiences are
located, the Company provides customers with marketing communication services
including outdoor advertisements (such as mobile TV advertisement in subways and

airports), radio advertisement in private cars and outdoor advertisement integration

In order to ensure that our clients receive high quality
advertising services, the Company arranges third party
teams and professional staff to monitor the entire advertising
process. We also keep records of the advertising campaign
and keep them on file. We will regularly evaluate and
analyze the effectiveness of the advertising campaign on
a monthly basis. After each key project is completed, we
will also evaluate and check the project status to find room
for improvement. If we find any errors or omissions, our
sales team and monitoring team will immediately notify the
Company and work with the media and the client to solve
the problem to ensure that the client's rights are protected to
the greatest extent.
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3.2

3.3

Customer Services

The Company highly values customers, strictly abide by
the Law of the People's Republic of China on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests ((FREARLMBEEEE
TEZSIRFEL)) and other relevant laws and regulations, and
provides various channels to receive customers' opinions
and suggestions, including mailboxes, complaint telephone
numbers and online complaints. After receiving a complaint,
we will seriously record and analyze the content of the
complaint, formulate a corresponding complaint handling
plan, communicate and negotiate with the customer, and
finally solve the problem and improve customer satisfaction.
In this year, our customer service received O complaints.

Customer Information Security

We always regard customer satisfaction as the core
standard of our continuous service improvement, treat every
customer with care, and professionally solve the needs and
demands of our customers. The Company strictly abides
by the Law of the People's Republic of China on Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests to protect the legitimate
rights and interests of our customers. The Company strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations including the
Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China ({/
= AR HEMB ML 25%)), Provisions on Protecting the
Personal Information of Telecommunications and Internet
Users KBEMMEHBERFEAREERERTE)) and the
Personal Privacy Policy on Mobile Internet ({5 &) B B 48 1 A
FEFLERSR)). The Company has formulated and implemented
internal systems such as Confidentiality Management System
((RZEESE)) and Information System Management
System ((E B EZHEEHIE)). All customer information is
encrypted by the Company, and the database is managed
by a designated personnel that any other person is not
entitled to access such information without management
approval. Meanwhile, to strengthen network security, we
have used related applications such as firewalls, routers,
etc., to prevent attack and illegal access from the Internet.

We attach great importance to customer experience, and
we sign contracts with third parties such as customers and
partners with privacy protection constraints to avoid the
transmission and disclosure of any information about the
company and other information leakage behavior. If there
is an unexpected information security incident (such as a
disaster or an incident that would have a significant impact),
we will handle it in a timely manner. During the year, we
have not received any complaints regarding the leakage of
customer information or breach of customer privacy.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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3.4

Advertising and Intellectual Property

We use true and reliable advertising and promotional
information to ensure that the Company is legal and
compliant, and cy abides by laws and regulations such as
the “Advertising Law of the PRC” ({FFZE AR HEFBIEEA))
and the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC” ({fFZE A
REMBRTIEE#HFE)) and other laws and regulations.
To this end, the Company has formulated the Brand
Management System ({@IEE R )) to strictly examine
the content of advertisements, and has set up a number of
legal and compliance check sessions before advertising.
Through these sessions, we are aware of the requirements of
the advertising laws for our advertising programs and remind
our employees to avoid compliance risks. In addition, we
strictly review the content of our advertisements to eliminate
all unreasonable use of words, false statements, exaggerated
facts and infringement of rights.

We place great importance on communication with
customers and the media, should the aforesaid problems
be observed in the advertising placement process, the
Company will validate and revise advertising content in a
timely manner to comply with the requirements of laws and
regulations.

The Company pays attention to legal compliance, attaches
importance to intellectual property rights, respects relevant
rights and interests, strictly abides by the Copyright Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({H & A FR A0 B0 14
7)), the Trademark Law of the People's Republic of China
((rhiE A RETMBERGIZESL)), the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({1 A RHEMBEEF]E)), and the Tort
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#F % A R £ AEH
BHEEEA)). We advocate our employees to protect the
intellectual property rights of others and pay attention to the
protection of the legal rights of stakeholders in the production
and placement of advertisements, such as portrait rights,
copyright rights, trademark rights and restrictions on the use
of advertisements, in order to reduce the risk of intellectual
property issues.

3.4

EERAEERE

BMREREEASENESNEERER - B
KRBEEER - WETF(PEARLMBE
FE) MR EARAMBR TNEE #HFE)
FRERER o Btk ARFRFIE T (R ER
BE)  HESATETEERES  THEE
ERMARLZEEE  SRIERERE -
EBELIRE - HPHRBGBEEERR
ETEE  RREIIERESRRER - It
S RPIBERBERENE HBABETE
B ERRL  BAETENERESSE

BHMREEREATFSMEENER  BES
BHPCBRTIRERA LAHEE - HASLZ
REMERESENE @ WEESERFEERE
MER -

ARAPIERZAHR ERMNBERE 85
MR BRET(PEARAMBEEE
HE) - (P EARANEERE) - (FEA
REMBEEMNZE) R(PEARRNBERER
DRV FERRER - BEETHEMAFM
EiE - EESRENRMGBRTIIEEERN
SRMTOEGE  EFE  BREVNES
ERARNEE ZRE  BREMNBEERER

B o

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

57



58

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRS

3.5

Supply Chain Management

The Company implements strict and standardized
management in the access to suppliers, and has established
internal rules and regulations such as Procurement
Management System ((REERH/E)) and the
Procurement Supplier Management System (CEREE (L fERE S
I H|Z)), which include strict budgeting, procurement and
settlement plans, and procurement processes.

For major purchases, the Company engages professional
consulting firms and accounting firms to conduct special
audits and report the audit results to the Company's
management. The Company strictly regulates the tender
procurement process and prohibits undercover operations
to ensure that the entire process is open, fair and equitable.
We examine and classify suppliers based on their quality of
supply and credit level, classify procurement methods and
establish reasonable entry and exit mechanisms. We divide
the procurement method and develop a systematic supplier
entry, classification and exit mechanism.

The environmental and social impact of suppliers is also a
factor we consider in the supplier selection and evaluation
process, such as the environmental and social responsibility
of suppliers. In addition, we actively promote the importance
of environmental protection in the evaluation of our suppliers
and business partners. In addition, the Company actively
promotes the importance of environmental protection
and gives priority to working with suppliers who provide
environmentally friendly products and services when
evaluating suppliers and selecting new suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had 38 major
suppliers and was not aware of any major suppliers that had
any significant actual or negative impact on business ethics,
environmental protection, human rights and labor practices.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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3.6

Compliance Operations

Business integrity is the cornerstone of the Company's
ability to achieve its business objectives and maintain stable,
healthy and sustainable growth. The Company is committed
to maintaining high standards of business ethics and
governance and has zero tolerance for any form of bribery,
fraud and corruption.

The Company does not tolerate any form of corruption,
including bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
We are committed to building a corporate culture of fairness
and integrity. The Company has strictly complied with the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China ({# %
AR FEFMEIARED), Provisions of Anti-money-laundering
through Financial Institutions ({& Bi#E R IEERTE)),
the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((F#EARKLMEIR%EEL)), Measures for the
Administration of Financial Institutions' Reporting of High-
Value Transactions and Suspicious Transactions ({4 i &
KEBRSMAI R HHEEIEPE)) and Interim Provisions
on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery (B2 152 BEERTT
ARETTHREY), and in order to clarify the relevant incentives
and penalties in the Integrity Guidelines, the Company
has formulated the Corporate Ethics Conduct and Ethics
Handbook and Code of Conduct ({2 RIEEEFMEEF
fit 237457 A1)), the Anti-Money Laundering Management
System ({%EEEIEH|E)) and the Anti-Corruption and
Anti-Bribery Management System ({88 - < B5EEE 12
f£)) in accordance with these laws and regulations. We have
also arranged for the administration department to review
the progress of anti-corruption work in each department to
ensure that employees do not engage in any form of corrupt
and fraudulent behavior.

We also encourage our employees to report and complain
about any corruption or irregularities they discover or are
informed of through email. In order to protect the rights of
the whistleblower, we guarantee that the whistleblower data
and all information provided by the whistleblower are kept
strictly confidential. During the year, we have conducted
anti-corruption training for our directors and employees
in an effort to enhance the integrity and awareness of our
employees and directors and to actively foster an internal
culture of integrity in our business. During the year, the
Company was not aware of any litigation arising from
violations of anti-corruption, anti-bribery, anti-fraud and anti-
money laundering laws and regulations.
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GREEN OPERATION

The Company attaches great importance to environmental
protection, energy conservation and emission reduction,
seriously implements the national development strategy of energy
conservation and emission reduction, and strictly complies with the
laws and regulations such as s the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC ({F#E A RHAFIBIRIZIREE)), the Energy Conservation
Law of the PRC ({(FFEARLFMBEILEEIRE)). In order to
improve the efficiency of energy use, the Company has formulated
the Internal System ({AELHIE)) and the Public Resources
Management System ({(AHEREILSIE)), which regulate the
requirements for the use of paper, electricity and water resources
and urge employees to save energy and reduce emissions. The
Company is committed to promoting the sustainable development
of its business and has not experienced any major non-compliance
with environmental laws and regulations. At the same time, the
Company strives to reduce its environmental impact through
measures such as energy conservation, water conservation and
material conservation.

During the year, the Company did not encounter any material non-
compliance with environmental laws and regulations.

4.1 Emission Management

In the course of operating advertising and communication
services, the Company's emissions are mainly direct
greenhouse gas emissions from its official vehicles and
indirect greenhouse gas emissions from the use of electricity
in offices. To deal with these emissions, the Company
has developed different methods. In terms of reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, the Company encourages
its employees to conserve energy in their offices and to
implement a strict system for the use of its business vehicles
and green travel. As for hazardous waste, the nature of
the Company's business does not involve the emission of
industrial hazardous waste. During the Reporting Period, the
Company did not waste or discard any electronic products
and did not generate any significant hazardous waste,
therefore, it is not disclosed. As for domestic sewage and
office waste, the Company classifies them as required,
complies with relevant laws and regulations, and transfers
them to municipalities for uniform treatment. In order to
reduce the discharge of sewage and office waste, we
encourage our employees to conserve water, promote the
use of electronic means of office contact, and use reusable
office supplies.
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4.2

The Company is actively implementing the Company's
energy conservation and greenhouse gas emission reduction
measures in accordance with the Company's target to
maintain or gradually reduce greenhouse gas intensity
(Scope 1 and Scope 2) emissions on a 2021 basis. We
have reviewed the targets set last year and we are making
good progress with the reduction in consumption intensity
compared to last year.

Emissions Information Disclosure

Indicators BE

Greenhouse gas emissions from direct sources

Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect sources P HERHAZEREBHNE

=

.
ZRA

ame

)
Fol

Total greenhouse gas emissions

Bi

Nu =

Greenhouse gas emissions per $million operating BETL ¥WAZEERE

income?

Notes: The scope of emissions data covers the Company and all its
controlling companies;

greenhouse gas emissions is calculated with reference to “How
to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” of the Stock Exchange, and

the total office domestic waste generation is calculated based on
estimates on per capita emissions.

Conservation of resource usage

The Company is committed to promoting the concept of
resource conservation by streamlining office processes so
that employees can use resources more efficiently. The
main resources we consume include gasoline for vehicle use
and water, electricity and paper for office operations. Our
operations do not involve the use of packaging materials.
In terms of water use, we have an adequate supply of high
quality fresh water at all of our operating locations and do
not draw water from water stressed areas. We encourage
our employees to value water and reduce waste, to use
drinking water in moderation, to turn off the water faucets
in the restrooms after use, and to comply with all property
arrangements. In terms of paper usage, we use the Office
Automation System (OA system) for online office work to
reduce paper usage. We encourage our employees to use
email as much as possible to send messages and reduce the
need for printing, photocopying and faxing. At the same time,
we promote duplex printing patterns and condensed layout.
In terms of energy use, we encourage employees to turn off
all lights and computers before the end of the workday by
posting energy usage tips in the office; we consider energy
efficiency and energy labels when purchasing electrical
appliances; and we encourage employees to climb stairs
instead of using elevators and use public transportation to
travel.

2The Company's $million operating income this year amounted to RMB412.659 million.
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4.3

The Company is actively implementing the Company's
electricity and water conservation measures and aims to
maintain or gradually reduce the consumption intensity
of electricity and water resources on a 2021 basis. We
have reviewed the targets set last year and are making
good progress, with a reduction in consumption intensity
compared to last year®.

Resources Consumption Information Disclosure

Indicators b=l

Gasoline consumption FUBREREE

Total electricity consumption BEEE

Electricity consumption per $million operating BETEEUAEER
income

Total paper consumption BERAE

Note: The scope of resources consumption data covers the Company
and Bejjing Ruicheng, and water consumption of all office locations
were centrally managed by the Company in 2021 and 2022.

According to the Company’s material saving and waste
classification measures, we are actively implementing them
and aiming to maintain or gradually reduce the density of
waste generation from the base of 2021. We have reviewed
the target set last year, and we are making good progress
with a reduction in consumption intensity compared to last
yeart.

Natural Resources

We are an advertising and communication service provider
and our daily office operations do not involve any production
processes and the impact on the environment and natural
resources is minimal. Nonetheless, the Company has
complied with various laws and regulations such as the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment ({2 A REFBEIRIZFZETER)),
the Land Administration Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({fh#E A RHAME + 3 I8%)) and the Water and
Soil Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China
((REARAEMBKLREFIE)). As a socially responsible
enterprise, we actively fulfill our environmental protection
responsibilities and strive to reduce negative impacts on the
environment and natural resources during our operations in
order to protect the natural ecological environment.

3The water used in our current office belongs to public sector which does not need to be

borne by the Company.

4During the pandemic period, no hazardous waste was generated during office hours.
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4.4

Coping with Climate Change

The Company takes climate related issues very seriously
and therefore we are committed to managing potential
climate related risks that may affect the Company's business
activities and developing strategies to manage the identified
risks.

The Company identifies and evaluates climate change risks
and closely monitors the impact of climate change on the
Company’s business and operations. We have identified an
increase in the frequency and severity of extreme weather
conditions, which pose an acute physical risk to the
Company's business. Under extreme weather conditions,
employee safety is at risk and productivity will be reduced,
which has a direct negative impact on our business and
revenues.

To minimize potential risks, the Company has mitigation
plans in place, including flexible work arrangements and
precautionary measures to deal with severe or extreme
weather conditions. In addition, we recognize that
stakeholders are increasingly concerned about sustainability,
which poses a market risk to us. If we fail to meet our
stakeholders' sustainability requirements, our reputation
could be damaged and we could lose our competitive edge.
Therefore, we plan to use high-efficiency equipment and
regularly review our internal environmental practices.

5. PEOPLE-ORIENTED

We believe that our employees are our greatest and most valuable
asset and the core of our competitive advantage, and provide
the driving force for our continuous innovation. At the same time,
we strive to ensure the occupational health and safety of our
employees, protect their interests, fully respect and value the
motivation, mobility and creativity of our employees, and strive to
build a harmonious labor relationship. During the Reporting Period,
the Company had no litigation cases arising from employment
issues.

5.1

Employee Remuneration

The Company attaches great importance to the protection of
employees’ rights and interests and complies with y laws and
regulations such as the Labor Law of the PRC ((F# A R 1t
MEIEENE)), the Labor Rights Protection Law ({4 8 #
FHIRFER)) and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC ({FFZE A
RAFBE LB ARE)), and has formulated internal policies
such as Employee Handbook (& LF 1)), Company
Recruitment System (A FIHBEH|Z)) and Ruicheng
Resignation Management System (i B B EEHIE)),
regulating aspects on employees’ admission and resignation,
daily work, learning, promotion and rest and vacation,
training and promotion, etc. At the same time, we also
pay attention to the diversified development of employees,
providing a variety of training and exchange opportunities to
help employees continuously improve their skills We provide
a variety of training and exchange opportunities to help our
employees continuously improve their skills and quality.
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We strive to promote mutual communication and respect
in an inclusive work environment. The Company firmly
oppose any form of discrimination and unfair treatment in
recruitment, appraisal and compensation system, and ensure
equal opportunities for all employees. For example, in the
recruitment process, appraisal and procedures, we prohibit
the differentiation of treatment based on gender, ethnicity,
age, religion, marital status and cultural background of
employees. We rigorously review employee information and
strongly oppose any form of forced labor and child labor. In
order to avoid the employment of illegal workers, including
forced and child labor. We will immediately report to the
relevant administrative department and register for internal
records if we discover any labor violations. During the year,
there were no cases of child labor or forced labor in the
Company.

As of 31 December 2022, the total number of employees
of the Company was approximately 25 employees, and
the numbers of female and male were 17 employees and 8
employees, respectively.

We are committed to creating a fair, transparent and orderly
recruitment and management environment to provide
better job security and development opportunities for our
employees. The Company follows the Company Recruitment
System and Ruicheng Resignation Management System and
strictly follows the prescribed procedures for the hiring and
termination of employees to protect the rights and interests
of our employees. As of 31 December 2022, the Company's
employee turnover rate® was 33.33%, of which the annual
turnover rate for male employees was 26.47% and the
annual turnover rate for female employees was 24.24%>°.

Health and Safety

We complied with the Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances ({ T{&RKE551)) and the Prevention and the
Control of Occupational Diseases Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((fZE A RAFMBE B ZHPE%)) and
other relevant laws and regulations, formulated relevant
safety system, and provide our employees with five-year
insurance and one pension allowance and regular medical
checkups to ensure their health. In the office area, we are
equipped with necessary fire-fighting and medical facilities,
and regularly check the safety hazards. We also provide
our employees with emergency response guidelines for fire,
electrical shock, earthquake, and other situations, as well as
safety protocols. Through these safety policies, we strive to
provide a safe working environment for our employees and
ensure that they can work in good safety conditions.

In the past three years (including the current year), the
Company had no potential risks of occupational diseases
as mentioned, no major health and safety incidents, and no
work-related fatalities. In the current year, the Company had
no workdays lost due to work-related injuries.
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MBEREE - AQRBER(ARBEGE)
R BB EESE)  BISIERATER
EITE TR  #ES TH#ER -
HZE2022F12A31H » AREE TRkl
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SEmployee turnover rate= number of employees lost = (number of employees lost + K=K EEBAH - (RAEEAZFLREEAZ) X100

number of employees at the end of the year) X 100%
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5.3

Training and Development

The development and training of our employees is very
important to the Company, so we have developed a
comprehensive training, promotion and performance
management system to realize the potential and ability of
our employees and to meet the demand of the society for
talents.

Our employee training is divided into three categories,
including induction training, pre-service training and on-the-
job training. Employees will receive training according to
their different work stages and needs. Through training, we
hope to help employees quickly understand the company,
familiarize themselves with the work environment and
responsibilities, and continuously improve their skills and
qualities through work experience and learning.

In addition to regular training, the Company also organizes
regular team building activities such as wilderness survival
and special training camps to train the teamwork ability and
personal will quality of our employees. To help employees
understand the latest information and policies in the industry,
we also organize various training and seminars, such as
media presentations, Internet media training, departmental
training sessions, new product presentations and policy
interpretation sessions. We are committed to helping our
employees achieve career development and providing
them with a good working environment and development
opportunities.

COMMUNITY CARE

As a socially responsible company, the Group has been actively
involved in various community activities and supports social
development by giving back to the communities where we operate.
Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, we are temporarily
unable to provide community services during the current year.
However, we will do our best to assist the community in the future
by organizing relevant activities and projects to give back to the
community and help solve community problems.
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA SUMMARY

The following is a data summary of the Year on sustainable development
in the environmental scope:

The Environmental Scope RIFEE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions BEREHRE

Greenhouse gas emissions from direct sources ERREREHR (EEN)
(Scope 1)

Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect sources IR EREEHEI (B1E2)
(Scope 2)

Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 & 2) BEREHHAE (HE1R2)

Greenhouse gas emission per $milion operatng ~ AETAERAEEREHNE (BE1%2)
income (Scope 1 & 2)

Waste BEYN

Paper Consumption KRAE

Paper consumption BEAE

Paper consumption per $million operating income BB LEENAKREE

Energy Consumption MR

Total electricity consumption BREE

Electricity consumption per $million BETEZERARER
operating income

Gasoline consumption FBFERE

Total energy consumption BERERE

Total energy consumption per $million BETEERAGERRERE

operating income

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022

Migx—  IFARRBIERE

UTRAFENREEBBAFEZREMEE

Unit Bfy

Tonnes CO, equivalent AW —F/HEE

E

o oo oo

Tonnes CO, equivalent AW — ik &
Tonnes CO, equivalent A — (LB &
Tonnes CO, AR RE

e —

equivalent/$milion B8

E

E

kg TR

kg/$millon TR/EEL
KWh ThRE
KWh/$milion THE/BEL
me STHA

KWh TEK
KWh/$milion THE/BEL

/

2022
quantitative
values

002FEELE

6.28

13.94
20.23

0.06
21.88
0.06
24,000
58.16
25

46,976.71

113.84
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The following is a data summary of the Year on sustainable development

in social scope:

Social Scope

Total employees®

Total employees

Number of employees by gender
Female

Male

Number of employees by category
Full-time junior staff

Full-time middle management
Full-time senior management
Number of employees by age
Below 31

31-40

Above 40

Number of employees by geographical region
Beijing

Shanghai

Xizang

Employee Turnover Rate'

Total employee turnover Rate
Employee turnover rate by gender
Female

Male

Employee turnover rate by age
Below 31

31-40

Above 40

HEER

BT AES

BTHH
BMRIBSNETAY
peqid

i
BESERIAINETIAR
2BMFET
2BALEEE
2BefEEE
BRERERBINETIAR
31U T

31-40%

40BMA L
BHEESNETAY
b7

B

i

BTkt
BIMRAR
BMRIBINET Rk R
peqid

i

RERARBINETRALE

SIHEAT
31-407%%
MEAE

51t is referring to the number of employees for the Year ended December 31.

AT RAGE E AR B AL & 805 7] A B R S R

B
2022
quantitative
values
Unit Bl 20225 EEE
Number of employee AH 25
Number of employee AH 17
Number of employee AE 8
Number of employee AH 1
Number of employee AH 6
Number of employee AH 8
Number of employee AH 2
Number of employee AH 8
Number of employee AH 15
Number of employee A 23
Number of employee AE 1
Number of employee AH 1
% % 40.48
% % 24.24
% % 26.47
% % 0
% % 26.47
% % 24.24

S RAFEEIII2AIEMNET A -

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®

67



68

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRIE > HERERRE

Social Scope

Employee turnover rate by geographical region
Beijing
Shanghai
Xizang
Occupational Health and Safety
Number of work-related fatalities
(Year 2020, 2021 and 2022)
Rate of work-related fatalities
(Year 2020, 2021 and 2022)
Lost days due to work injury
Development and Training
Percentage of employees trained by gender
Female
Male
Percentage of employees trained by category
Full-time junior staff
Full-time middle management
Full-time senior management
Training hours of employee by gender
Male
Female
Training hours of employee by category
Average number of training hours per junior staff
Average number of training hours per middle
management
Average number of training hours per senior
management

HEHR

BHEESNETIRALER

Bl

i

[ie)

BERERZ2

EIFT AZR00FE « 20215 R2022F )

BT EQ005E » 20215 E k20225 [E)

RIGEAXTERE

BREE
RUREANZIEEE DL

peqid

2t
BESERBANZHIREETE AL
2BYGET

2BPREEE

2BEREEE

BHRES NZEE FEISH
2t

peqid
REREREINZIEETIEIRE
SENRE TS
SEDRE T

BEBHRE T TIEIRE
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Unit By
% %
% %
% %
Number of employee

A
%

%

Number of day(s) AE
% %
% %
% %
% %
% %
Hour AN
Hour N
Hour K
Hour

N
Hour

TN

2022
quantitative
values

202FEELE

34.21
13.79

81.82
18.18

271.27
54.55
18.18

0.11
0.50
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APPENDIX lI: THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING

W

GUIDE INDEX

Environmental Scope
BE

Atl: General
Emissions Disclosure

Al
Al.2

A1.3

A1 —HEE
3¢y

Al4
A15

A16

Information on: (a) the policies, and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facilty).

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (€.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

BEHERREERBHN  KRLBNGS BEREZERNNELS

B : (a) R M)&#ﬁ%ﬂAﬁE FENBRERRADINER -
PRI RIS
(AR E) K (ER) ~ BE

E& (BE1) RecREE (BE) BERBHNE
(I BES BN - tﬁﬁm? ) e

MESEZEENEE QIBAE) L (ER) BE MASES £ - §BR
HeEtE) °

FELRERENLE (U E) R (WER) BE WASESEM - §ER
HEEE) o
WAL AP E B R R ARG L B R ATRERAD R -

RRREAERESBERNNIE  REEMET L RORER R R AEEIELR
BRI SR o

Mgk =  BERPTCRIR - HEREARMEES) Rl

Relevant Section
HEREH

4. Green Operation

Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
4.1 Emission Management
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

The Company is a non-manufacturing enterprise and
does not involve any discharges of industrial hazardous
waste, and there were no scraps or discards of
electronic equipment of the Company during the Year,
and no substantial hazardous waste was generated,
hence, no disclosure would be made to this provisions.
4.2 Conservation of resource usage

4.1 Emission Management
4.1 Emission Management

4 BEEE

Mgk — : IBERRENEE
4155&;5@

Wﬁ RERRENAE
AABFREELE M PRTLEEEEMIN

ﬂ$®i%¥%ﬁ&ﬁ%%@%ﬁ@~%i%%~$é
EEAGEEEY  WTRE -

426 B REE R

LAYREER

LIBMEER

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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RIS -

HERE

Environmental Scope

BE

A2:
Use of
Resources

A2:
BREM

A3:

The Environment
and Natural
Resources

A3:
BRERAAER
Ad:

RIRE(

Social Scope
Ein =)

B1:
Employment

B1:

General
Disclosure
A2.1

A2.2
A2.3
A2.4

A2.5

— R
A2.1

A2.2
A2.3

A2.4

A2.5
General
Disclosure
A3.1

General
Disclosure
A4 A

R
A31

—fRE
A4

General
Disclosure
B1.1

B1.2
—IEE

B1.1

B1.2

/l:l—’F&l:

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil
in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
apphcable with reference to per unit produced.

BRERER(BERR  KREf Mﬂ)ﬁ’]ﬂ(%“
RN SNEER, SRR ( QDEE Kskoh) &

REE (ASESSN - §EREHE) -

H=tE) o

ERKBREE MASESEN - BER6:HHE)
R MR RE A B R R AEREL A R RAN SR -

HHCKEE KR TR AR - RISk NG B R R AEREL
BRI SE o

SR mATAREMH RS CAEE) R (NER) BEEEMEE -

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources.

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

ﬂ&?ﬁAﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁﬁLﬁiﬁi“ BR -
L%ﬁé@ﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁﬁM$ﬁ%ﬂ&E%Waﬁﬁﬁ%§MHE

BRI REHE AR AR EUTTAELVENEARREBSEORE
ESURECYY mgﬁﬁﬁAFE ENEARIF NS &Fﬂﬂ@

EATETREE)

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or parttime),
age group and geographical region.

Employee turnover rate by ender age %ZOU p and geographlcal region.

BEHMLEE - FER ﬁ TfeBR - BY TSR Sl REE
PAREMFFBRAETN « () R R(b) BTHETAREATENBBLE

RIRPINER] o
FRERERAINESLH -

RIEH - R
RIUR - FRANREDNERRALE -
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Relevant Section
HEREH

4.2 Conservation of resource usage

4.2 Conservation of resource usage
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

4.2 Conservation of resource usage
4.2 Conservation of resource usage
4.2 Conservation of resource usage

Businesses of the Company do not involve packaging
materials

4 2B BRI
4 28 K1 BRER

Wﬁ Tﬁ ERRANBE
BHERER
4 ZEﬂi’],fJ?ﬁﬁ%

428 NERER
REEB TS RBENH

4. Green Operation

4. Green Operation
4.4 Coping with Climate Change

4.4 Coping with Climate Change

4, 5
4, B
4AEHRER
LAEHRIRE

Relevant Section
HEREH

5. People-oriented
5.1 Employee Remuneration

5.1 Employee Remuneration
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
5. MARK

51818
51BI1%8

ek—: ABERRANBE
Wek—: RERRANRER
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e > =
RIE - HEgRE
Social Scope
Ei= )

B2 : General
Health and Disclosure
Safety

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3
B2 : —fREE
fEREZ2

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3
B3: General
Development Disclosure
and Training B3.1

B3.2
B3: —REE
BRI B3.1

B3.2
B4 : General
Labour Disclosure
Standards

B4.1

B4.2
B4: —FRE
]

B4.1

B4.2
B5: General
Supply Chain Disclosure
Management B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4
B5: —REE
it i b s B5.1
HERER Boo

B5.3

B5.4

/l:l—’F&l:

Information on: (a) the policies, and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year.

Lost days due to work injury.

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they
are |mp|emented and monitored.
BRREZ2THERERRERSHEBENLEN : @) BEK  Rb) BTH
BIIANBEAY RO EEZRATINER -

BEZE (ORERER) BERTIUHMABRLE -

TBEATIERE -
HRPRANBERFEL 2 - ARRERTRERNE -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g
senior management, middle management).

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee

categol
ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ@@ﬁIW%zmﬂﬁ&& AR o HiUE)
RURRSTHEHWSREEE +REEES) ANNTIIR

P BRET TR TR -

RERRETENES

Information on: () the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
BEMIEETHRHETH - (@) BE  kb) BTHETAREAZENRE

ERREPIER .
R R NS E TRESAT -
AR R BB BB RRNSE -

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers and
monitored.

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

ERMEENRS L ERREE -

RN HERHE o

ROLARERAERNED  RARTERENNEREREE  ARAREE]
RERSERONRERLERRNED - UREBARTRER

mmn& ERE o
HIA BB

Tk e

RUEREEEREREZARREALRENEN  ARABITRERS
o

Relevant Section
HEREH

5.2 Health and Safety

5.2 Health and Safety
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
5.2 Health and Safety
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
5.2 Health and Safety

52 FHL R

52[EFELE

Mgk —: ATRERRENBE
52RFER D

Mg —: IRERRANBERE
52RFERE

5.3 Training and Development

5.3 Training and Development
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
5.3 Training and Development

Apgenﬂlx I: Sustainability Data Summary
53153162
531ME¥E

Mek—: ARERRANBER
5.3 YIRER

Wek—: TRERRANRBE

5.1 Employee Remuneration

5.1 Employee Remuneration

3.5 Supply Chain Management

3.5 Supply Chain Management
3.5 Supply Chain Management

3.5 Supply Chain Management
3.5 Supply Chain Management

35T R
35 HEREER

S5t ESEE R
S5 EEE R

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®
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RIS -

Social Scope
HEHR

B6 :
Product
Responsibility

B7:
Anti-corruption

B8 :
Community
Investment

B8 :
HERE

HERE

General
Disclosure

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5
R

B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5

General
Disclosure

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3
—IRHE

B7.1

B7.2
B7.3

General
Disclosure

B8.1

B8.2
—IRBE

B8.1
B8.2

/l:l—’F&l:

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

Description of consumer data protectin and privacy policies, and how they are
|mp\emented and monitored.

BRMRMERNRBNERERS  BS  RERLEBSEURERAE
@ BE R BFHBETABEAYENEREERANINER -

Eﬁiﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ¢Etéﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁéﬁwmﬁ
ERBNERLRBORFHE AREETE -
@gﬁ@%&\;ﬂ&émﬁ%mrJ

L SR AR REOIER - o
HOREEHBRERLEEE - L REBRITRERA %

Information on: () the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

Description of anti-corruption trainin prowded to directors and staff,
BEMILESR BR  BEFRAREN - (@) BE  Rb) BFHETABER

YENERERTENNAR 3
RERHA LA SRR B IR TR BN A S FARAOHA R

Ro
R E R BRI - U RBBRTRER R
mAES L8 TRENRESE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities” interests.
Focus areas of contribution.

Resources contributed to the focus area.
FAEM R2EREREENTHERE
B -

EIERISE -
TEASEMYRLER -

MEREEBEDEZEUEF|EH
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Relevant Section
HEREH

3.1 Quality Assurance

3.3 Customer Information Safety

3.4 Advertising and Intellectual Property

Businesses of the Company do not involve any sales or
delivery of products

3.2 Customer Services

3.4 Advertising and Intellectual Property

Businesses of the Company do not involve any sales or
delivery of products
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15 January
2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws
of the Cayman Islands. The Shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 12 November 2019. Pursuant to the Global
Offering, the Company issued 100,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company on 12 November 2019 with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each
at a price of HK$1.25 per ordinary share for a total cash consideration
of HK$125,000,000, before deducting professional fees, underwriting
commissions and other related listing expenses. The IPO Net Proceed per
share is HK$0.788.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group include the provision of the following types of advertising
services to our customers (i) TV advertising services; (i) digital advertising
services; (iii) outdoor advertising services; and (iv) other advertising
services in the PRC.

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period,
including an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of likely future
developments of the Group’s business are set out under the sections
headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business operations and results of the Group may be affected by
various factors, including but not limited to the risks relating to the Group,
our industry, conducting business in the PRC. The Board is aware
that the Group is exposed to various risks. Except as disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report to the Group's risk and uncertainties, the
other principal risks and uncertainties affected the Group are summarised
below:

i) The Group has a concentrated customer base and the strong
market positions of our major customers may limit our bargaining
power when entering into contracts with these major customers;

(ii) The cash flow of the Group may deteriorate due to material
payment delays by our customers which may negatively affect our
business, financial position and results of operations;

(iii) The Group has a concentrated supplier base and any increases in
cost of the advertising resources provided by our major suppliers
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial position and business prospects;
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(iv)  The Group may experience fluctuations in the gross profit margin
for our advertising services; and

(v) The business of the Group may be affected by seasonal fluctuation
in demand for our advertising services of customers in different
industries.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and protecting the environment and giving back
to community. The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to reduce energy consumption, water consumption and paper
consumption.

Details of such are set out under the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. This discussion
forms part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep abreast of requirements of the relevant laws
and regulation.

The Group had complied with all relevant PRC laws and regulations in
all material respects including the Advertising Law of the PRC ({F# A
REFMBESE)), Interim Measures for the Administration of Internet
Advertising (( BB 8 E 45 2 E7#H%) ) and the Company Law of PRC
(¢ EE A R MB QALY ) during the Reporting Period. The Group
has obtained all requisite licenses, permits and certificates necessary to
conduct the operations in material respects from relevant PRC regulatory
authorities.

The Group had also complied with all relevant Hong Kong Laws and
regulations in all material respects including the Company Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices

adopted by the Company is set out under the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY PARTIES

Relationship with Employees

The remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and
allowance, performance related bonuses and retirement benefits
contributions. The salaries of our employees are generally determined
by the employees’ respective position, qualification, experience and
performance. The performance related bonuses are calculated based on
our employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance
of our employees. In order to attract and retain our employees, we assess
the remuneration package offered to our employees on an annual basis to
determine whether any adjustment to the basic salaries and bonus should
be made.

We provide training programmes for all of our employees to enhance our
employees’ knowledge, skills and capability relevant to the advertising
industry. All of our new hires will be provided with an induction programme
to familiarise with the Group, followed by on-the-job training based on
departmental needs and the development strategies of the Group. We
also provide promotion opportunities for capable employees as we have
policies and procedures setting out the assessment criteria for promotion.

The Group’s relationship with our employees is satisfactory in general. Our
Directors consider that the management policies, working environment,
career prospects and benefits extended to our employees have
contributed to a good employee relations and employee retention rate.

For further details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument
policy of the Group, please refer to the sections headed “Directors’ Report
— Emolument Policy And Long-Term Incentive Schemes”.

Relationship with Suppliers

We generally source advertising resources from advertising resources
providers and advertising agents. Advertising resources providers
(i.e. ultimate advertising resources suppliers) are generally companies
possessing advertising resources directly, examples of which include TV
stations, owners of websites, search engines, social media platforms, and
outdoor platforms. Advertising agents are advertising companies which
source advertising resources from the ultimate advertising resources
suppliers. As advertising agents may establish strong relationships with
the relevant suppliers or possess some specific advertising resources, we
engage these advertising agents as our suppliers, which is consistent with
the industry practice. The Company’s system clarifies the mechanisms
for supplier access, level management and exit and strictly abides by
implementation. For core business procurement, the Company values the
dynamic inspection of its licenses and qualifications to ensure it complies
with the relevant requirements and amendments of national policies and
regulations.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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Relationship with Customers

As an established advertising services provider in the PRC, our major
advertiser customers are generally large-scale national enterprises. In
order to guarantee the service quality to customers, the Company will
organise professionals and third-party teams to monitor the delivery during
advertising period and summarise the project after the end of project to
improve the service quality to customers.

For further details regarding our major customers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and cost of revenue

attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
Reporting Period is as follows:

The largest supplier SAHER
Five largest suppliers AR ER
The largest customer BAREP
Five largest customers AREF

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their close associates or any Shareholders who owned more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital had any interests in the five largest
customers or suppliers at any time during the Reporting Period.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period and the Group’s state of
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

The Company currently does not have any predetermined dividend payout
ratio. A decision to declare or pay any dividend and the amount of any
dividends depends on a number of factors, including but not limited
to our results of operations, financial position, working capital, capital
requirements and other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Company has adopted dividend policy. For details regarding the
dividend policy of the Company, please refer to section headed “Corporate

Governance Report — Dividend Policy”.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period and as at 31 December 2022 are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 96 of this
annual report.

As at 31 December 2022, The distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution amounted to approximately RMB82,460,000.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Xin, Chairlady of the Board

Mr. Feng Xing, Vice Chairman of the Board, General Manager"
Ms. Li Na

Mr. Leng Xuejun, Vice Chairman of the Board

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Xue

Mr. How Sze Ming

Mr. Wu Ke

Note:

(1) Mr. Feng Xing resigned as an executive Director, Vice Chairman of the Board and
the general manager of the Company with effect from 30 March 2022.

RATFHE DA

H2022F12 A31H » KARIMBE AR
THMFIIFESS o

EVREHERTIRN AR A B

MERZRE

REEN - AEBMYENEBEOEEF B NEGRE I
wERMFE1S -

RIT R H A AR

2022912 A31H « AEBRITREMERNFBIHIIR
ERA BISRRMITES -

;&N

REREHA RR2022F12 A31H » KA TIRARNEEF1S
PN RERE B SRR M 27 -

]

REREAN - AR EEENEBFEHINNAFREE Y

BHRERME2 R FCEFA R E TR -

EE2022F12A31H » AR RMESIRE A 2R E L A
ARH82,460,0007T °

ZERE

o

RIERAN - REBARELEMEZRE

=
REEHANEEAFHRANNRERZESS

HITES

IW?iv%%AIP
BELSE  BEEGEITE - BEED
Fifzt

REFERLE  BERZGRTE

BYFHITES
FEELE
ERBAEE
R[REbes

Mt -

(1) BRI L RO022F3 A0 ABHI AR R AJ#iTEE - EECHFE
RAGHIEEE o

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

77



78

Directors’ Report
EE=EmE

In accordance with articles 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Li Xue,
Mr. Wu Ke and Mr. How Sze Ming will retire at the AGM, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Mr. Feng Xing has resigned as an executive Director, Vice Chairman of
the Board and general manager of the Company with effect from 30
March 2022 due to his decision to devote more time to his other personal
commitments.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”, during the Reporting Period, there has been no change in
the information of the Directors as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company. The principal particulars of these service contracts are (i)
for a term of three years commencing from their respective effective date
of appointment; and (i) are subject to termination in accordance with their
respective terms.

None of the Directors has entered into, or has proposed to enter into, a
service contract with us that is not determinable by the employer within
one year without the payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY AND LONG-TERM INCENTIVE
SCHEMES

To attract and retain employees of the Group, the Group provides
competitive remuneration packages to its executive Directors and senior
management. These comprise salaries and allowance, performance
related bonuses, retirement benefits contributions and long-term incentive
plan which includes Share Option Scheme. The remuneration package of
executives Directors and senior management is reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The performance related bonuses are calculated based on our
employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance of
our employees. The Group assesses the remuneration package offered to
our employees on an annual basis to determine whether any adjustment
to the basic salaries and bonus should be made.

The remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and
allowance, performance related bonuses and retirement benefits
contributions. The salaries of our employees are generally determined
by the employees’ respective position, qualification, experience and
performance. The performance related bonuses are calculated based on
our employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance
of our employees. In order to attract and retain our employees, we assess
the remuneration package offered to our employees on an annual basis to
determine whether any adjustment to the basic salaries and bonus should
be made.

We provide training programmes for all of our employees to enhance our
employees’ knowledge, skills and capability relevant to the advertising
industry. All of our new hires will be provided with an induction programme
to familiarise with the Group, followed by on-the-job training based on
departmental needs and the development strategies of the Group. We
also provide promotion opportunities for capable employees as we have
policies and procedures setting out the assessment criteria for promotion.

The non-executive Directors’ remuneration relates to the time commitment
and responsibilities. They receive fees which comprise the following
components:

i) Directors’ fees, which are usually paid annually; and

(ii) Share options which are rewarded subject to the discretion of the
Board.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 24 full-time
employees (31 December 2021: 36). Compared with the total number of
employees in 2021, the number of employees in 2022 has decreased due
to the COVID-19 pandemic.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant staff costs amounted to
approximately RMB7,509,000 (2021: approximately RMB11,357,000). For
details, please refer to note 13 to the financial statements of this annual
report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC. The
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan to fund the
employee benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions. No
forfeited contribution under this scheme is available to reduce contribution
obligation in accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC.

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes operated by the Group are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Neither the Directors nor any entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party subsisting during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period was the Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or any
of their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate
or had exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
Save for service contracts of the Directors, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of

the business of the Company was entered into by the Company or existed
during the Reporting Period.
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INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS'’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur
or sustain by the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
covering the potential legal actions against its Directors and Officers. The
insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis. For the Reporting
Period, no claim has been made against Directors and Officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save and except for the interests of our Controlling Shareholders in
our Company, during the Reporting Period, neither our Controlling
Shareholders nor any of our Directors and their respective close associates
(other than members of the Group) has any interest in a business, apart
from the business of the Group, which competes or likely compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group which would require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and/or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise should be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

BEAXRES=EIRE
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Name of Directors Nature of Interest and Capacity

EEHA ERMEREH

Ms. Wang Xin® Interest in a controlled corporation

Fmrzt@ REEEE R

Ms. Li Na® Interest in a controlled corporation

L@ REE LB

Mr. Leng Xuejun® Interest in a controlled corporation

REBEFLEN REEEBE R

Notes:

(1) All interests stated are long positions.

) Ms. Wang Xin is interested in 563.38% of Youyi which holds 6.31% of the
shareholding in the Company. Ms. Wang Xin is therefore deemed to be
Interested in the Shares held by Youyi by virtue of the SFO.

3) Ms. Li Na is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jujia which holds
9.19% of the shareholding in the Company. She is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Jujia by virtue of the SFO.

(4) Mr. Leng Xuejun is interested in 52.43% of Jing Gen which holds 3.70% of

the shareholding in the Company. Mr. Leng Xuejun is therefore deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Jing Gen by virtue of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined under Part XV of the SFO which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise should be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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Number of percentage (%)
Shares held" in the Shares
FERGHE® RESNB L
25,246,606 6.31%
25,246,606 6.31%
36,761,102 9.19%
36,761,102 9.19%
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14,781,639 3.70%
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, the following persons (other than the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company) or companies had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange in accordance with
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FTERRRRORABRO P ZEERAR

R2022%12A31H - MEBFTIFRA © RIBARRIRRBES
M EIEDIEI36IEFEEMERLMAAEEEE - A TAL (R
RNRAEBHmBITBABBRIN AR 7R AR &R AR
AR P HEIRIEES RS EFIEXVEIE2 M37 E7E M
AAR KRR BEAERIAR

Name of Shareholder

Nature of interest and Capacity

Approximate
percentage of

REERE EEMERSH
Yingheng Beneficial owner®
&8 EmEEAR

Ms. Wang Lei Interest in a controlled corporation®
FTERL REEEE R RO
Jujia Beneficial owner®
Ef& BEmER A0

Mr. Shi Rui Interest of spouse®
SRS feiBiEz©
Ruichengtianhe Beneficial owner
AR ERBAA

Youyi Beneficial owner®
B EmaAY

Mr. Wei Chunlei Interest of spouse®
BREELLE [

Mr. Wang Pingpin Interest in controlled corporation®

TRk E PR EE R
Ms. Zhang Miao Interest of spouse®
SRER AL Ao

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of the
SFO) in such Shares.

2) The Company is held directly by Yingheng as to approximately 40.43% of the total
issued share capital. Yingheng is wholly-owned by Ms. Wang Lei. Ms. Wang Lei
is deemed, or taken to be interested, in all the Shares held by Yingheng for the
purpose of the SFO.

3) The Company is held directly by Jujia as to approximately 9.19% of the total issued
share capital. Jujia is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Na. Ms. Li Na and her spouse, Mr.
Shi Rui are deemed, or taken to be interested, in all the Shares held by Jujia for the
purpose of the SFO.

(4) The Company is held directly by Youyi as to approximately 6.31% of the total issued
share capital. Youyi is owned as to approximately 563.38% by Ms. Wang Xin. Ms.
Wang Xin and her spouse, Mr. Wei Chunlei are deemed, or taken to be interested,
in all the Shares held by Youyi for the purpose of the SFO.

(%) The Company is held directly by Youyi as to approximately 6.31% of the total issued
share capital. Youyi is owned as to approximately 46.62% by Mr. Wang Pingpin.
Mr. Wang Pingpin and his spouse, Ms. Zhang Miao are deemed, or taken to be
interested, in all the Shares held by Youyi for the purpose of the SFO.

Number of Shares interest
or securities held™ in the Company
HAAERER

FERORNBSHED BHES
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
26,284,188 (L) 6.57%
26,284,188 (L) 6.57%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%

Mt -
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@) AR AE]A)Z EEFITIRA M & BB FFH#)40.43% » BIEH T
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WEERE B FLITER D FHEE#a ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors was not
aware of any other persons (other than the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the Reporting Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted by written resolutions passed by
its Shareholders on 22 October 2019.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to eligible participants ("Eligible Participants") (including (i) any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (i) any Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; (iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries and (iv) such other
persons, who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Group) an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(0} motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(ii) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going business

relationships with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.
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The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Details of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme are set out below. The Directors may, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant options to any employee of the
Group, any non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors), any suppliers, any customers, any adviser or any participants
who shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis
that the Directors’ opinion as to his contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. The maximum number of ordinary shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue upon the Listing
(the Company may refresh this 10% limit under certain conditions) or 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time where there are options to be
granted and yet to be exercised. As no offer for grant of share options has
ever been made under the scheme, the total number of Shares underlying
the share options available for grant is 40,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued shares as at the date
of this annual report. As there are no options granted under the scheme
and hence there are no outstanding options under the scheme, the total
number of Shares available for issued under the scheme is zero. The total
number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options which would result in
the number of ordinary shares exceeding 1% requires a Shareholder's
approval with the relevant participant and his/her close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the Eligible Participant
is a connected person) abstaining from voting. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date the offer
together with the consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised more than ten years after it has been granted. All
outstanding options shall lapse, among other circumstances, when the
grantee ceases to be a participant of the Share Option Scheme by reason
of the termination of his/her employment/death. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
by the Shareholders of the Company (the “Adoption Date”). Subject to
earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Adoption Date.
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The exercise price a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less
than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

@iy~ the nominal value of a Share.

As at 31 December 2022, there was no option outstanding, granted,
cancelled, exercised or lapsed.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which should be
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that all the related party transactions disclosed
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under
the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting, annual review,
announcement, or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at the date of this report, there was no material outstanding or pending
litigation and arbitration for the Group.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules during
the Reporting Period and as at the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no major subsequent events since 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The of the Company will be held on Tuesday, 6 June 2023. The notice of
AGM will be sent to Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the following
periods:

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 6 June 2023, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1 June 2023
to Tuesday, 6 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 31 May 2023.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 26 November 2020. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited had been
appointed as the new auditor of the Company. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 26 November 2020.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect form 11 August 2022. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 11 August 2022.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited (formerly known as UniTax Prism
(HK) CPA Limited) has audited the attached financial statements, which
were prepared pursuant to International Financial Reporting Standards.
Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Prism Hong Kong and
Shanghai Limited as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and to authorize the
Board to fix their remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Xue (the chairman), Mr. Wu Ke and Mr.
How Sze Ming. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal of external
auditors, review of the Company’s financial information, and oversight of
the Company'’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control procedures.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk management, internal
control and financial reporting matters.

By Order of the Board

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited
Wang Xin

Chairlady

30 March 2023
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RUICHENG (CHINA) MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ruicheng (China)
Media Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 155,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unqualified opinion on those statements on 30 March 2022.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A-1905, 19/F, 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T: +852 2774 2188 F: +852 2774 2322
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

HRFLEE

HRECZERBRBEENEZIE  RRAUAFESRS
BBBRIBUKAERZER - GLEREAYNSAH
BHRREBETERATZRBERINE R TETREN - &
FIHUEFFAESINEHRER

opinion on these matters.

LOSS ALLOWANCE ON OF TRADE RECEIVABLES AND

CONTRACT ASSETS

Refer to notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies from pages 113 to 116.

The key audit matter

As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amount of the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets
are approximately RMB249,047,000
and RMB131,714,000, net of
accumulated loss allowance on
trade receivables and contract assets
of approximately RMB32,461,000
and RMB9,438,000, respectively.

In assessing the loss allowance
made under the expected

credit loss (“ECL”) model, the
management of the Group and
the independent valuer used
judgements and estimates to
determine the historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking
information specific to the debtors
and their economic environments.

We have identified the loss
allowance on trade receivables
and contract assets as a key

audit matter because the carrying
amounts of trade receivables and
contract assets are significant

to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and there is
involvement of a significant degree
of judgements and estimates made
by management of the Group and
independent valuer.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our audit procedures were designed
to review the management estimation
on ECL model adopted for the loss
allowance on trade receivables and
contract assets.

We have obtained an understanding of
the methodology for the ECL model,
development processes and its relevant
controls through review of documentation,
discussion with management of the
Group and independent valuer.

We have challenged the reasonableness
of the significant judgements and
estimates, including use of significant
unobservable inputs adopted in the ECL
estimation by the management and the
independent valuer.

We have also assessed the appropriateness
of the methodology and examined the
inputs data used with reference to the
latest available general economic data
and the repayment record against the
Group’s historical trends and credit loss
experience.

EZRUFEREGNEENBERE

E2MSEAMERRMFE20M 21 AR EI13E116E FTH

BT -
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A-1905, 19/F, 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T: +852 2774 2188 F: +852 2774 2322

RE M BBRRRZBATRE AIPWER

EAFREEAHHMENAR - RMERNBRTIENER
AOFFEER  ETEESAWBHRRRES 2 REER

=

EEHEAVBRRCERE TREREMER - FFZTFT

HZREEMERBREMT A 2 ERER

HEEESHGRAMBHRR L ER  EEZEERMEEM
R HURIRT - ZEEMENTE RES UMK
EEEEZEREPA TR ZENFEERNEERE LT
FEERERBRZBER - EREFENTZ2THE - IR
EERREMBENFEERERRL - EEFTEREZF
Lo EEH - BERAEARE -

mi 1

\

BERARESRENEEERGREUBBRAAEZEE

BEARERALERBER S LIRSS RM 2 BRI
BREENRBERRGHI 2 BBERERHREEM AT Z
FAMBWmE  YARERRA/ERAMBRR ZHET
FREMPNRFFRERME R EABRERAATMFZ A
S

EREGAFBRAE - AXREFREANE BE&E
FEGENEE ) YEERBATRERSELEFH
FEARERKECERSHER  BIF BEQRES
BEHK BEREBEREFLEE  IHIBAGERZER

FE

]

ERZEQRAEEE BREZMBRHRE -

\

LEEBE M EEAARAR
BN BRI EZBESH19151903A-1905F
TAE 486227742188  {HE : +8522774 2322

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

91



92

Independent Auditors’ Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A-1905, 19/F, 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T: +852 2774 2188 F: +852 2774 2322
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Fung Shing Bun, Spencer.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fung Shing Bun, Spencer

Practising Certificate Number: PO7451

Hong Kong
30 March 2023

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A-1905, 19/F, 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T: +852 2774 2188 F: +852 2774 2322
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BL22022F 12931 HIFFIZ

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Selling and marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

(Provision for) reversal of loss allowance of
financial assets and contract assets, net

(Loss) profit before tax
Income tax credit (expenses)

Was
Y g PR A

EH

HipA - Wz K gsia

SHE R

(G1EGE

CREERANEEFHRER
Bim GHE BE

BT (B 1R) HE A
PSR % (F2)

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expenses) A (B518) &AM M 2@ (Bis)

income for the year

WaskeER

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expenses) FEfE (E518) & FI M2 m (Fis)

income attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted (RMB)

Wss 4E%E
—ARAEEEA
e

BR(ER BF
ERREEARE)

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022

Notes
Hi3E

10

11

12

13

17

idated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARETT
412,659 441,051
(402,032) (423,752)
10,627 17,299
3,103 3,939
(3,696) (7,132)
(7,678) (8,916)
(6,471) (11,872)
(27,958) 10,984
(32,073) 4,302
20,411 (3,839)
(11,662) 463
(11,384) 445
(278) 18
(11,662) 463

(2.85) cents 7

0.11 cents %




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R 3R
As at 31 December 2022
R2022%F 12 A31H

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables

Amounts due from related companies

Contract assets

Bank balances and cash

Total assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Tax payables

Contract liabilities

Bank and other borrowings
Lease liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Other borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

FRBEE
UEISE3
BVEE
BIETRIRE E

RBEE

B 5 RMGIE - TR FUR R E MR

HIE
JFE 2 BTG /8 R FRIR
BREE
RITRESBER S

BEEAE

RA R A1

AR

(&1
RRREB ARG &R
FRER R

SR

RBEE

B 5 MEMERN IR
FERHTRIR

BHARE

BRIT R EABLE R
HERE

FRBEE
Hi &k

BEARE
EEREERRE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 155 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Leng Xuejun
REE
Director

=

Notes 2022 2021
BiaE 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETF T

18 343 429
22 27

19 10,532 3,542
10,897 3,998

20 426,262 341,100
29(b) 211 831
21 131,714 23,472
22 5,081 34,865
563,268 400,268

574,165 404,266

27 3,578 3,578
202,682 214,066

206,260 217,644

(136) 142

206,124 217,786

23 212,450 39,007
148 14,570

24 38,259 16,612
25 87,184 115,984
26 = 307
338,041 186,480

30,000 =

30,000 =

368,041 186,480

574,165 404,266

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®

Wang Xin
Em
Director
EE

FUAE 15 E MR A M MR D EESTEN2023F3A30
BEEREETE WA THIESREEE
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Conso

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E

idated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRERARLE
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BHER/
Bx  BROEE  AKRE  EARE  EERE  REER & FERER  EREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR
Note (i) Note (i) Note ()
HEE ) Btz ik
At 1 January 2021 202151 A1 3578 89,940 90,734 (62,481) 8,808 76,620 217,199 124 217,323
Proft and total comprehensive income Brai k2 ENR LS
for the period - - - - - 445 445 18 463
Transfer to statutory resenve ERTETRE - - - 106 (106) = = =
At 31 December 2021 #2021F12A31A 3578 89,940 (62,481) 8914 76,959 217,644 1482 217,786
Loss and total comprehensive expense BREERZ AR AT
for the period - - - - (11,384) (11,384) (278) (11,662)
Transfer to statutory reserve BEEETRE - - - 7675 [7,675) = 5 S
As at 31 December 2022 12022512318 3578 89,940 (62,481) 16,589 57,900 206,260 (136) 206,124

Notes:

(i)

(i)

In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations,
these subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after tax,
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to a statutory reserve (including the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion
fund, where appropriate). Transfer to this statutory reserve is subject to the
approval of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when the balance
of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of the respective company.
Statutory reserve can only be used to offset accumulated losses or to increase
capital of the relevant subsidiaries.

On 27 March 2019, Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye Advertising Co., Ltd.” (B Sk
EELEHMRAF) (“Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye’) acquired the entire equity interest in
Bejjing Ruicheng with the consideration of RMB2 million when the then net assets
value of Beijing Ruicheng was approximately RMB92,734,000. The difference
amount of approximately RMB90,734,000 was credit to merger reserve and the
then issued capital of Bejjing Ruicheng of RMB80,800,000 was transferred to
capital reserve upon the completion of the reorganisation.

Capital reserve represents ) the difference between the consideration paid for the
acquisition of addiitional equity interests in subsidiaries and the carrying value of the
additional equity interests of the subsidiaries acquired; i) the difference between the
consideration received for the disposal of equity interests in subsidiaries and the
carrying value of the disposed equity interests of the subsidiaries; (i) the difference
between capital contribution from an owner of the Group and paid-in capital;
(iv) adjustment arising from the Group Reorganisation in note (iij); (v) deemed
distribution as part of the Group Reorganisation in note (iv); and (vi) distribution to
the former owners of the Group's subsidiary.

English name is for identification purpose only

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN EE=
%/T\ == IE%/JILEWZE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022F 12931 HIFFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property and equipment
Interest income
Finance costs
Write-off of a property and equipment
Government grants
Provision for (reversal of) loss allowance of

financial assets and contract assets

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables, prepayments
and other receivables
Increase in contract assets
Increase in contract liabilities
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Interest paid

Guarantee fee paid

Income tax paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Withdrawal of short-term bank deposit
Settlement of loan receivable
Advance to related parties
Repayments from related parties
Interest received

Refund of rental deposits

NET CASH GENERATED INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank and other borrowings raised
Receipts from government grants
Repayments of bank and other borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Interest paid for lease liabilities

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

REEH
BRIEAT (B51R) 7

AT SREHHE -
BIVAREME
MERRERE
FBHA
G EINEN
TRATH B
TREERANEEFRERE (EE)

EEESRBANEERSRE
SRR - BNFAR

H A REUFIR (80 D
AREEEMN
AtaEEm
g5 R EMENFEE N RD)

R&E (A AERE
RAREIYSS
BENERE
EAATSHR

ReED (A RS ER

REES
REE IR TR
EREREE

IR BARE T ZA 3R

BT B

[REVellYSS
HERERK
REFBELRSFE
MEED
LEMFILIRTT LAMER
YR R 465 8
EERITREMER
BEHEEaE
HERBEMHE

METBHEL (TR REFE

RERRESEYRD) BINFHE

RENHRERFSEEN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR, REXRNELRREZEY

REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH

RIARTEBRRS

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFT
(32,073) 4,302
5 6

58 1,385

(3) 63)

6,471 11,872

28 =
(2,028) (3,157)
27,958 (10,984)
416 3,361
(104,170) 17,186
(117,192) 2,727)
21,647 14,611
173,927 (7,055)
(25,372) 25,376
(5,384) (6,995)
(1,569) (5,065)
(1,001) (1,660)
(33,326) 11,656
= 16,700

= 13,000

(30) (531)

650 =

3 63

= 152

623 29,384
133,200 65,984
2,028 3,157
(132,000) (75,511)
(309) (867)

= (10

2,919 (7,247)
(29,784) 33,793
34,865 1,072
5,081 34,865
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability under Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, on 15 January 2019 and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 12 November 2019.

The address of the Company’s registered office is 190 Elgin
Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands
and the principal place of business is 1602, 13/F, Building 7, No. 63
Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”).

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of advertising
services in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Going concern

Notwithstanding that the Group has relatively low level of bank
balances and cash of approximately RMB5,081,000 compared
to bank and other borrowings which is repayable within one year
of approximately RMB87,184,000 as at 31 December 2022, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis as the directors of the Company are satisfied that the
liquidity of the Group can be maintained in the coming year taking
into consideration of the following matter.

(i) The Group will be able to obtain available financing from
banks through successful negotiations for extension or
renewal of those existing bank borrowings of approximately
of RMB82,200,000 that are repayable within 1 year from the
end of the reporting period; and

(ii) The directors of the Company will continue to take active
measures to control costs through various channels
including human resources optimisation and also speed up
the collection from settlement of trade receivables to improve
operating cash flows and its financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 1231 HIFFE
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Going concern (Continued)

The validity of the going concern basis on which the consolidated
financial statements are prepared is dependent on the successful
and favourable outcomes of the above measures being taken by
the directors of the Company and the outcome of these measures
as described above. Hence, the directors of the Company are
of the view that the Group would be able to generate sufficient
funds to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do
not include any adjustments relating to the recognition of provisions
or the realisation and reclassification of non-current assets and
non-current liabilities that may be necessary if the Group is unable
to continue as a going concern.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue operating as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to restate the
values of the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to classify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time, the

following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) which are effective for the

Group'’s financial year beginning 1 January 2022.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous contracts: Cost of fulfilling a
contract

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2018 -
2020 cycle

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
position for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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B2 2022F 12531 HIFF/E

3.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS(s)”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including the June Insurance Contracts'
2020 and December 2021
amendment to IFRS17)

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and Its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as Current
or Non-current?

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that, the application of the
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the

historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has:
o power over the investee;

° exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
All'intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.
Specifically, the Group uses a five-step approach to recognise
revenue:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a service that is distinct.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
The Group recognised revenue from the following major sources:

Advertising services, including Television (“TV”), online, outdoor and
other advertising services, are principal activities from which the
Group generated its revenue.

Television

Revenue from TV advertising services is primarily derived from the
placement of advertisements on TV channels or variety shows.
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date. The stage of completion is determined by the actual
broadcasted TV advertisements and verified by reports issued by an
independent third party with relevant qualification and experience,
which evidenced the advertisement actually broadcasted.

Online

Revenue from online advertising services is primarily derived from
the placement of advertisements on platforms such as websites,
mobile applications, social media platforms and search engines.
The Group utilised a pricing model based on specific terms of the
contract which are commonly based on cost per click or cost per
mille, which means the cost per 1,000 advertisement impressions
regardless of whether the advertisement is being clicked by the
viewers. The revenue from online advertising services on cost
per click or cost per mille basis is recognised over the service
period based on the actual clicks or views of the advertisement
and verified by reports issued by an independent third party with
relevant qualification and experience, which evidenced the actual
clicks or views of the advertisement actually performed.

Outdoor

Revenue from outdoor advertising services is primarily derived from
the placement of advertisements on outdoor platforms such as LED
screens on or in buildings, metros or advertising light boxes in car
shelters. The revenue is recognised over the service period based
on an advertising schedule confirmed by customers.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to
a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right
to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer. A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

FTEESFHEE @)

REEFEHZWE (B
KEEB TEERRHERBEA

EERBEFBER(ER] - 8F - PHREME
EIR - R EEELRENERERED -

EREERBREIZRARERIPEXLERGAE
BMES - REREASERRERS AHRRHH
TR BRIRLL BB HER - ST BRIRER D 1&
HAERESETE - WA EREREERERERNE
UE=DEHORERE  CRERSCHER -

¥

BT EESRG WS ERERB  BEEARSF
MZIREF A RRRSIEEFARMES - AEE
FAEBEARBAEEERGHENARET T AKX
RZ AW EBRRTE 8T ARAKES 1,000
REEHBENRA  THZESELHBEEHE -
ERNGHERALES T ARROETE SR WS
RIRBHAREES W ERMEEHEFRBE
R AHABHREEEMERNBYE = RHE
HhE - SRERSHEEIBARBECERNT -

F4

PoNES RIS e I B R B N8 THEEE MM LED
F&  HESRE=REESEESPIN A RIES
WERE PR ESRHERNREHBAER -

EHNBEREHNAE
BHEERAKBERECER TR RORS A #
WEREY B (R AR BEIES) o & HWEERIEEIR
M ImEER BRI HBIE - AL E - BUFIR
BARBUE BN EIRET - BMERER IR
BN ST RIEARAE -

ENEBEAKERCRAEFPRERE  MARE
PEZERS < BE - AEE MR MR R Y Al BE
BEEFZBRAENERN - ITEEREHNAE -
FEUEAT - AEE TR R R BUGRIR ©

BE-ANEBENANEERSNABERFREE
N E I

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

103



104

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the services transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract, that best depict
the Group’s performance in transferring control of services.

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract or modification date, as appropriate.
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is
the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option) and leases of low value assets.
For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. The lease payments are discounted by using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding adjustment
to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a significant event
or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using revised discount rate.

. the lease payments change due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to
a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised
discount rate is used).

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs, less lease
incentives received. Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for
costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is
recognised and measured under IAS 37 Provision, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The costs are included in the
related right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are depreciated over
the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the
lease.
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

The Group applies IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine
whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income/a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the defined contribution plans/state-managed
retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

FTEESFHEE @)

iy

[EENZZ

Wi - RERAEAREE MSEEFHERN—
BRI BEIERITRE Mgk i E) BB 2 FERUK
FREEAR FEEFFARERARGRIEER
B AZEENMRA

FREFERETAGHNEENHZATBED
% B M AUS AR E R - (A B A FRAF R
AR E AR o

FRARBSRRARNEEEHMAERR®R -

BAFRIB
fis B 50 I OR 78 7 S (B 5 & 3 <7 R T 470 B e Y s f
HARKEFEFHE - HERABBUTHED -

TR 8 B A AN 5= 18 5 P 1 470 18 B 47 BY 4B R A AR B
REAXOHBAE R ERRRER - BEME -
BNEMIAAEEEE &S TREIFRS
BE/T RGN  AIRGFAMBMNERPERBE
JEYES, HEREE ERREE R - W ERE B E 2 7]
FAFHANE R AR EE T -

BRESEZBREMAEREEELRNERE
TTHME - RAEERHR RN & E S ERK
A e BV B 754 B O PR URSR IR IO /S P MUK IR A
IR ER R -

B AREF KA

SUEH TS HERKENE R RES
SEICREEE )M REEREHRB M EE
FHHRREER/ML

EHRHARAESRER

EEEHMIERF FREBRZEAENIIR
REERERBERE - RS RERZ IR
ZARUMBRBEN SRR ALE

S HE B R NIRE R Y B B IR MR EUR R RS TR AR P
SRARMRBAN SR E -

B R RE BRI R A R A B E A E
R B MR ERBEBE RO A AR S
T2 A -

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

107



108

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
4

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022

FTEESFHEE @)

iy

BiIE
FRASTLR S 53R B A BUIA BURE R IR RO A ©

B ENBBEIRFRERBGE N E o BRTUE
MERIRERE B R A MEEKERA2RIFRIA
EA - TR BRAERMFR 2 BRI AT
M ARFZIRE - TN BIE KN AR S AT 05
BIEE - AEEDENSREDRCHITRERE
HErTR IR R AT E R ETIR A A

BB G E B REPEERBENREE
HEAREERRTGEF AR ENT R ZRE
RoREHBRE-RERAEERRGERFIEER
FUARER o RIETHIRE E— RN AT 8L A ERTUEF
AR AN A N E B R S X A N
MEBTNER - BEREZR IR FERA A
BAZEERBUEN T IR EEHE NN ST
BERBEMES  ATTHEREHREERAE -
AN HERZERDN B NFERRBENEE
RN XTI ERZEERAEMSIZ - A
THERRLEHIAAE -

EEBIR BB TR B QR 2R E £ R ER
BUE R M2 RRRER - MM AR E TR TR 2
Z P ARG EES TSR RS R
EIRON e MR ERERMNEERNA MR EREE
BELMETHRIAEEEN A 85 R AERT G
MBS BERMEEENME - BRI AT R
[EIE5 7 & T LARER

EEFELEENREENSREHRER  H1E
WA RAREFEN T ARNKE 2R BHEE
Bll& T LA, o

EEBREERGBENVREANEELBEXNERE
ERRERZHEAE - ARBEAOTE (RR) TS
REREHRCBHIELE L BRM -

BEEBRBEREENTERRAEENE RES
KBS EROSKEERLEENBENREIER
AP B HBER -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand
deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments rather for investment or other purposes.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-term
borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets including right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“*CGU”) to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the cost of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are classified,
at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-impaired on
initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses (“ECL”), through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including ECL, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and
the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost and
at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“Other income, gains and losses” line item (note 9).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost as
well as financial guarantee. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to
the Group’s operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor,
or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a
financial asset has been less than its amortised cost;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a low
risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not available, the
asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that
the counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no past
due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor;
or
° information developed internally or obtained from external

sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual

reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written-off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional
amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding
of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement
approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Group, are measured in accordance with the specific accounting
policies set out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-trading, or 3)
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically, the
Group categorised the fair value measurements into three levels,
based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1T — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 — Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis by
reviewing their respective fair value measurement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures
made in the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

Going concern basis

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
the validity of which depends on the outcome of these measures,
which are subject to the successful implementation of its operation
plans for controlling costs and also speed up the collection from
settlement of trade receivables to generate adequate cash flow
from operations. The directors of the Company consider that the
Group has the capability to continue as a going concern and the
major events or conditions, which may give rise to business risks,
that individually or collectively may cast significant doubt upon the
going concern assumption are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation/amortisation charges for its property and equipment
and intangible assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property and equipment and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation/amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Loss allowance for ECL of trade receivables, other
receivables and contract assets

The Group assesses loss allowances under ECL model for the
trade receivables, other receivables and contract assets. The
loss allowance for ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates such
as probability of default and forward-looking information. The
information about the loss allowance for ECL of the Group’s trade
receivables, other receivables and contract assets are disclosed in
note 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the
trade receivables, other receivables and contract assets are
approximately RMB249,047,000 (2021: RMB293,612,000),
RMB9,448,000 (2021: RMB11,128,000) and RMB131,714,000
(2021: RMB23,472,000), net of accumulated loss allowance
of approximately RMB32,461,000 (2021: RMB13,109,000),
RMB231,000 (2021: RMB575,000) and RMB9,438,000 (2021:
RMB488,000), respectively.

Provision for loss allowance on trade receivables, other receivables
and contract assets of approximately RMB19,352,000 (2021: nil),
nil (2021: RMB185,000) and RMB8,950,000 (2021: RMB334,000)
have been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022,
respectively.

Reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables, other receivables
and loans receivables of approximately nil (2021: RMB8,229,000),
RMB344,000 (2021: nil) and nil (2021: RMB3,274,000) have been
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022, respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to equity
holders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities, net of
short-term bank deposit, bank balances and cash, and equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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B 22022F 12931 HIFFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS £HTAR
Categories of financial instruments SRITHEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN AT ENSRIEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BRERSKBESEEY) 263,787 340,436
Financial liabilities EHans
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEN AT ENSRAE 327,231 153,873

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from related
companies, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other
payables, and bank and other borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments included interest rate risk, currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to certain
fixed-rate other receivables, loan receivables, short-term deposit,
bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities. The Group’s policy
is to manage its interest rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements based on interest
rate level and outlook so as to minimise the fair value interest rate
risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
bank balances which carry prevailing market interest rates. The
management considers that the exposure of cash flow interest
rate risk arising from variable rate bank balances is insignificant,
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is provided. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its bank balances at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

BHERKREEEERBR
AEETEERTABREZRUGIR  FREE
fib FEUSRIR - FEUR — IREES 0 BB - SRITAEER IR
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC. All the Group’s revenue and
cost of revenue are denominated in the functional currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB). As at the end of each reporting period, the Group
had the following financial assets and financial liabilities, which
are bank balances and cash and other payables denominate d in
currencies other than RMB.

Assets EE
HKD BT

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to HKD.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to foreign currency rates and includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusted their
transaction at year end for a 5% (2021: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes bank balances
and cash, other borrowing and other payables. A 5% (2021: 5%)
increase or decrease is used when reporting foreign currency
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign currency rates.

If 5% weakening/strengthening of HKD against RMB, the Group’s
post tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB1,000 (2021: increase/
decrease by approximately RMB5,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to long-term
deposit, trade receivables contract assets, short-term bank deposit,
bank balances, amounts due from related parties, other receivables
and loan receivable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
7.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

° Internal credit rating
. External credit rating
° Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations

o Actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower

o Significant increase in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the borrower

. Significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.

The Group monitors closely the economic environment and where
appropriate, takes actions to limit its exposure to customers that
are severely impacted.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group only
accepts bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if trade
receivables are settled by bills and therefore the management
of the Group considers the credit risk arising from the endorsed
bills is insignificant. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade
receivables and contract assets.

©WMI A
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. The management of the Group estimates the
lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract assets by using a
provision matrix, after considering credit risk characteristics based
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100% (31 December 2021:
100%) of the total trade receivable as at 31 December 2022.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 42% (2021: 35%)
and 90% (2021: 88%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on the following
credit risk characteristics:

©WMI A

MR EE B ERBCR (8

FEERRBETE
EFERELAEZBENHBEREVIEE (&

HREFERBHRBARANEENS - AREEEAE
BRI SR BRI EREHIAREERS
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AR AEENE ZEIGIERTET D BB 42% (2021
F 1 35%) 90% (20214F : 88%) R B AEBHR AR
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REHWEECRATERERRSEOE

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL

HHl it BRENCEBHENESE

Class A Indicates the exposure at default ("EAD") is still current does not have any  Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
past-due amounts ]

ASR FKAAEL R (BEXRR D DAFEL BERTEE S5 2 EFEHEEER(BEERE)

Class B The major portion of the EAD has been past due for less than 60 days. Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)

BiA EARREEED D BETEBRE0X 2HEHEEER(®EERE)

Class C The major portion of the EAD has been past due for less than 1 year. The  Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
risk of non-payment increases as the time period is longer than normal
expected payment process. )

CH BARKREET AT BB —F - BEREBAEFTHEAMNFRE - 2HEREEHEEEERE)
AR REBRIE N

Class D Indicates the past due aging of the debtor exceeding at least 1 year. It Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
indicates that the recovery of complete payments is likely to be difficult. )

D#F KPBESANBBRRBAZE D —F - HRAATREE MBI 2B - 2 EEEEE SR (BEERE)

Class E Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events  Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred. ) )

EfE ERE-AASHEUZEENGARAIRSREEE TR ENEHE - 2HRHREEER (EERE)
TRUEEWEREERIE

Class F There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty ~ Amount is written off
and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery.

Ffa EREBRAEBABGRRENTBREE  MARELERENEHIIR  SECME
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7.

FINANCIAL INST

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the

RUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. SRMIAGE

customers (Continued)

following categories:

Category
el

Description

i

MR EE B ERBCR (8

EEERRFETE (&)
EFARELNE BIEKABAREVEE (&)

FEENEREERRTAERBIEATER

Basis for recognising ECL
BRANEEFRNEE

Performing

FE1T

Doubtful

RER

Default

EH

Write-off

s

For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not
credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)

BRI ERBIE S B PIa R R ERRRIARRE L7 AW BERRER
TRAEMAFIHEE)

For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired (refer to as
Stage 2)

E{%)E MisERREERREE FAHETREERENEREE BRFE2ME
X

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)
ERESHSREEMRRRSRBERTHFEN —HRZHEH -
AEALRMEERTEREEREERENER)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

ERIEFRTESARNGRENBRE - MASEL SR EFIENIRE RS

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

12-month ECL

128 A EHERER

Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

EHENEEEREEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

2HEREEER(EERE

Amount is written-off

TRC

125



126

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

BT IR Y RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank balances and short-term bank deposit

Credit risk on bank balances and short-term bank deposit is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks with good
credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances and short term bank deposit
by reference to information relating to probability of default and
loss given default of the respective credit rating grades published
by external credit rating agencies. The 12m ECL on bank balances
and short-term bank deposit is considered to be insignificant. The
Group has concentration of credit risk as approximately 59.19%
(2021: 55.96%) of the Group’s bank balances is placed with a bank
at 31 December 2022.

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and long term
deposit

The directors of the Company make periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and long term deposit based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

The 12m ECL on amounts due from related parties is considered as
insignificant for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the
counterparties involved are considered with limited credit risk and
the ECL involved is not material. The disclosure of loss allowance
recognised for other receivables was made below in this note for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as approximately
22.83% (2021: 36.21%) of the Group’s other receivables is due
from a counterparty at 31 December 2022.
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B 22022F 12931 HIFFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. £RT R (E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BISEREERE B ZREBE (&)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R R A ETE (E)

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and long term E o fEK T - FEW BT T 5B R REIZ % (&)
deposit (Continued)

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate AREBMMBETEERE W%ﬁ/‘xﬁzﬁfﬂ_ﬁgﬁ
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, HEEAZZNEEE L  Ba ke #E’JF 5
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further BREVTETRAEETNRE P BEE— *Fli
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases. The AHNAEBEMEERANEEZEERR %Z
tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial LR EEITIEHEEEETE

assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

2022
Gross 2022 Net
Credit risk Average carrying carrying
characteristic  12-month or lifetime ECL loss rate amount Total ECL amount
H2022%F 20224
12A318 1 BHEE 12A31H
FERREE 12BAR2HRNEEFSE FYEEE REAE BEAE WEREFE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARMTRT ARET:R

Trade receivables (Note 20)
B 5 IR (i H20)

Class B Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 6.0% 70,101 4,181 65,920
Bz FHRBCEEE (BEERE)
Class C Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 8.2% 150,007 12,346 137,661
CH 2 HRBEEEE (BEERA)
Class D Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 26.0% 61,400 15,934 45,466
Dfg FHRBEEEE (BEERE)
281,508 32,461 249,047
Contract assets (Note 21) Class A Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 6.7% 141,152 9,438 131,714
BHEE (E21) A 2 HRBEEEE (BEEREA)
Other receivables (Note 20) Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired) 0.8% 1,845 14 1,831
H At FEURIE (P 520) BT 12(E A HEEEE (BEERE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credlt |mpa|red) 2.7% 7,834 217 7,617
REE 2 HRHEEHE(BEERE)
9,679 231 9,448

i (PE) EEEERRAE « —T_FFRK 127
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and long term

eWMIAGE

)

PR EE B R BCR ()

EEERRFETE (F)

HERF R ~ R T 7R R R (R)

deposit (Continued)
2021
Gross 2021 Net
Credit risk Average carrying carrying
characteristic 12-month or lifetime ECL loss rate amount Total ECL amount
20214 H20214F
1231 B EHEE 12A31H
sERMER  12EAXRBESREESE FHEEE REAE BEEE NRDFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables (Note 20)
B SRR (PiiE20)
Class B Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 1.4% 100,545 1,420 99,125
B 2 HRBEEEE (BEERE)
Class C Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 2.2% 153,603 3,404 150,199
CH FHREBCEEE (BEERE)
Class D Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 15.8% 52,573 8,285 44,288
Df 2 HRBEEEE (BEEREA)
306,721 13,109 293,612
Contract assets (Note 21) Class A Lifetime ECL (not credit- impaired) 2.0% 23,960 488 23,472
BHEE (E21) Ag FHRSEEHE (BEERE)
Other receivables (Note 20) Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired) 2.4% 10,653 252 10,401
H fth FEUHIE (PiF3E20) BT 2EABHEEFE (EEERE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 3.1% 750 23 727
RER 2HBHEEEHE(BEEREA)
Default Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 100.0% 300 300 S
EHX 2 HBEHEEHE(REERE)
11,703 575 11,128
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B 22022F 12931 HIFFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. £RT R (E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BISEREERE B ZREBE (&)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEREfER HEFE (E

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and long term E o fEK T - FEW BT T 5B R REIZ % (&)
deposit (Continued)

The following tables show the movements in lifetime ECL that TRINTBZREERE ZERFBERN 2 HTE
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified HEERBEZE) -

approach:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
ZHATEHEA ZHfEH
FEEE FEBE
(EBIZERE) (EERE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
As at 1 January 2021 #R2021F1A1H 21,338 - 21,338
Impairment losses reversed EERREER (8,229) - (8,229)
As at 31 December 2021 MR2021F12A31H 13,109 - 13,109
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 19,352 - 19,352
As at 31 December 2022 72022512 831H 32,461 - 32,461
The following tables show the movements in lifetime ECL that has TREFIBBEMOERENEERRNZIABE
been recognised for contract assets under the simplified approach: BBz 8 -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

ZHATEHEA ZHTEH

FEEE FEBE
(REERE) (FEERE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T T AR¥TF R
As at 1 January 2021 M2021F1 A1H 154 - 154
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 334 - 334
As at 31 December 2021 MR2021F12A31H 488 = 488
Impairment losses recognised EHERREEE 8,950 - 8,950
As at 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H 9,438 - 9,438

B (TE) EEEEERAR « 2 ZFFR 129



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and long term
deposit (Continued)

The following table shows of the movement in loss allowances that
has been recognised for other receivables:

©WMI A

PR EE B R BCR ()

FEERRBETE ()
E M EWAIE - JEWETH D SRR A (B
TRIRE A A EUGRIRRE R A B 1R B R

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total

2HEH 2HEH

12f8A FEFR FEFR
BHEEFR  (BFERE) (EERE) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

As at 1 January 2021 20211818 72 18 300 390
Impairment losses recognised EERRESE 180 5 - 185
As at 31 December 2021 20215127316 252 23 300 575
Impairment (reversed) loss recognised BRERAE (BR) BB (238) 194 (300) (344)
As at 31 December 2022 #2022 12 A31H 14 217 - 231

Liquidity risk /)/Lfiﬁf/—lﬁ‘%

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
of the Group. While recognising that the Group has relatively low
level of bank balances and cash of approximately RMB5,081,000
compared to bank and borrowings which is repayable within one
year of approximately RMB87,184,000 as at 31 December 2022.

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue, The directors of the Company are satisfied
that the Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future, after
taking into consideration of the measures as stated in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

130 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2022

ERERBECRREK  AEEERTHEFEIRER
7%@%@6’]/\@7}<¥E’]ﬁi&EEA””FWMFJZKEI
NEBREESLAKBESREFBNEE -

NREGAVBRERE  ARARNEZCHAEZE
AEBRRRHESD - WEE2022F12A31HA
R—FARNEENRITERLAREES,081,0007T4
tb o REBRITEBEIRSHERBEKEHARE
87,184,0007T °

BEZSHAVBHRRERENEAY  AQFE
FHEZRGE WS RARM MBI RER - A%
B A e R TS B IRBTT A A AR R B H A0 B
BHER -

TRFAVNAKEITESRABEREERBENRT
BRFH - ZRDVBRAEEIVHEERNHNRT A
HneRaERFRRSRER -
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e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022F 12931 HIFFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

7. SRIAGE

MR EE B ERBCR (8

Liquidity risk (Continued) FEEZRERE (&)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flow. To the ZERNEEFNEREASHERE - WAERERZ
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount BFREE - BIRBA SRS RERROF Rt
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of each reporting BRETHESH -
period.
At 31 December 2022
#2022%12831R
Total
Over 1 year contractual
Less than 1t03 4t012  andlessthan  undiscounted Carrying
1 month months months 5years cash flows amount
mEAZ BB-%FR KBRS
R-fEAR -Z=Zf8A +=f8A SREF REAE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT TR ARET TR ARET T ARETT ARBTTR
Trade and other payables 25 REMERFE 210,047 - - - 210,047 210,047
Bank borrowings BITER 1,275 20,819 61,734 - 83,828 82,200
Other borrowings HibfE R 4,984 - 1,800 33,075 39,859 34,984
216,306 20,819 63,534 33,075 333,734 327,231
At 31 December 2021
M2021412A31H
Total
contractual
Less than 1103 41012  undiscounted Carrying
1 month months months cash flows amount
mEAZE RURRE
R—EAR —Z=faA +Z@A MELRTE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTF T
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAERFRIE 37,889 - - 37,889 37,889
Bank borrowings RITIER 2,090 20,810 40,567 63,467 61,000
Other borrowings HMER = 20,000 38,234 58,234 54,984
39,979 40,810 78,801 159,590 153,873
Lease liabilities HERE 96 194 19 309 307

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 2022F 12531 HIFF/E

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements objectives and policies

The carrying amount of other borrowing as set out in note 25
was approximate to its fair values as the discounting effect is
insignificant.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of other current financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values due to their short-term maturities.

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue by services nature

$RMIA(E®)
AREFEEERBE

MisEobFE b AR REEREE R A ERE - T)
BHRITEZEL TEKX

ARREERS  HEPBRRPREBHERATE
MEMTHEMEELSRABBEZRAERELRAR
BER%E - TYRREEHER -

s K 2 BB E R

EREHE S RS

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
Television (“TV”) advertising services BIR(ER]) BERS

— Hard-sell TV advertising services (Note) — B ERES RS P 72,552 70,724

— Advertising solution packages involving — P RBMERESRENES
soft-sell TV advertising services (Note) fRRTTERAEA 29,838 21,097
102,390 91,821
Online advertising services HFEERS 295,237 221,491
Outdoor advertising services FINESE RIS 10,844 112,325
Other advertising services HAb B SRS 4,188 15,414
412,659 441,051

Note: Hard-sell TV advertising service is the placement of traditional
advertisements during TV advertising time slots; and soft-sell TV advertising
service is the implantation of advertisements in variety shows and TV series
such as product placement, title sponsorship, subtitle advertisement and
verbal slogan.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 1231 HIFFE
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8.

Revenue by services nature (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

Revenue by customer types

Advertisers
Advertising agents

il

off Off

3 Ht
W

Revenue by categories of products or services being

advertised

Household furnishings and electronics RERKE
Internet and mobile games B A8 K F T
Foods and beverages KR

Automobile RE

Tissue B
Telecommunications EE

Others A

Timing of revenue recognition

Over time BB

Wz 2 #RE ()

EIRBMEEE D WS (5

() HEFEXNELKZHIKD

HEFIEE 7AW
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
164,503 82,746
248,156 358,305
412,659 441,051
KB L2 EAR RS TEAEE) 77 M
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
185,581 303,489
136,510 =
87,435 12,425
618 63,702
- 28,434
- 14,647
2,515 18,354
412,659 441,051
Weas HEZR m A5 2T
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
412,659 441,051

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 2022F 12531 HIFF/E

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue by services nature (Continued)

(i)  Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group principally earns revenue from the provision of
advertising services which usually range from one to twelve
months. Advertising services typically meet the criterion
where customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefit of the Group’s performance as the Group performs.
Therefore, such revenue is recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time, using output method.

The Group acts as the principal during the provision of
advertising services and therefore recognised revenue
earned and costs incurred related to these transactions on
a gross basis where the Group is the primary obligor and
are responsible for (1) identifying and contracting with third-
party advertiser which the Group views as customers; (2)
identifying and contracting with media platforms to provide
advertising time or space where the Group views media
platforms as suppliers; (3) establishing selling price for the
advertising services; and (4) bearing sole responsibility for

fulfilment of the advertising services.

(iijj  Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligation for contracts with customers

All advertising services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to

the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

(iv) Segment information

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance, focuses on types of services provided. During
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the CODM
assesses the operating performance and allocates resources
of the Group as a whole, as all of the Group’s activities
are considered to be primarily the provision of advertising
services. Accordingly, the CODM considers there is only
one operating segment under the requirements of IFRS 8
Operating Segments. In this regard, no segment information is

presented.

No geographic information is presented as the revenue, non-
current assets and operations of the Group are primarily

derived from its activities in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 1231 HIFFE
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8.

Revenue by services nature (Continued)
(iv) Segment information (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as

follows:
Customer A EEA
Customer B2 ®F B?

! Revenue from TV advertising services and online advertising

services.
2 Revenue from online advertising services.
9. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9.

T RRF BN

Interest income on bank deposits

Government grants (Note (i)
Input tax additional deduction on
value added tax (Note (ii))

Loss on written-off of property, plant and equipment

Eﬂzﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ (BF3E ()

EER A EIEF NG
08k (B 5E (i)

MEEE - BE KE&E

Others HAth
Notes:
) The amounts represented subsidies received from the local governments

for rewarding the Group'’s contribution to local economies and for listing.
There were no specific conditions attached to the grants and the amounts
were recognised in profit or loss when the grants were received.

(i) The PRC subsidiaries were granted an input tax additional 10% deduction
on value added tax from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2022 according to

relevant law on value added tax of the PRC.

Wz 2 #RE ()
EIRBMEEE D WS (5

(iv) 7 EBEH (&)

FEEFEH
ERFELAERBKTE 10% A EHEFH
Uezsan T
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
92,689 128,493
136,521 105,000

! KE BREESIR REYF &R K as -

2 KEHFEESRFH Wz o

HA ~ s R EE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFIT
3 63

2,028 3,157
1,126 885

(28) =
(26) (166)

3,103 3,939

Hiat

) AR LA B I B YL BRIR LTS

EHBTRIRAT A -

(i) RIFF EIREF AL RE - B gL

AWM FIE R A
BRI ER BB T 1R85 AR

AJR2019%F4 A

1HE20224F 12 531 A #R T B 1 898 B 5B 0E

10% 717 ©
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10.

Interests on: AT B IEHF S
Bank and other borrowings HRITREMER
Lease liabilities HEAaRE
Guarantee fees on bank borrowings ITIERERE
11. PROVISION FOR (REVERSAL OF) LOSSES ALLOWANCES 11.

OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND CONTRACT ASSETS, NET

Provision for losses allowances of: BB HEHE

— Trade receivables — B2 RWGIE

— Other receivables = E‘nﬂﬁgﬂﬂlmlﬁ

- Contract assets —AHEE
Reversal for losses allowances of: ERRHERL

— Trade receivables — B IR

— Other receivables — B ftb EYRIR

— Loan receivable —FEUE R

Total provision for (reversal of) losses allowances

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES 12.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
Current year taxation
(Over-) under-provision in prior year

AEEFIA

FEIEFIAE (HFE 19)
FRiS i (GE%) s

Deferred taxation (Note 19)

Income tax (credit) expense
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B R R (B M) 4R

BEFE RRER BRI

N = 2%
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
4,900 6,797
2 10
4,902 6,807
1,569 5,065
6,471 11,872

THMEERGNEESRBEE D) B

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T
19,352 -
= 185

8,950 334
28,302 519
= (8,229)

(344) -

= (3,274)

(344) (11,503)
27,958 (10,984)

EERF BN RS M IFRRMET -

PRI EMER ([REMRER])

TS GE&) B
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFIT
566 1,017
(13,987) 73
(6,990) 2,749
(20,411) 3,839
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (“EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

The applicable tax rate of Xizang Wanmei Advertising Co., Ltd.* ( 7§
HEEREARATF)(“Xizang Wanmei”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, is 15% according to Circular Zang Zheng Fa [2018]
No. 25 (the “Circular”). According to the Circular, enterprises
located in Tibet and engaged in specific encouraged industries are
qualified for applying a preferential tax rate of 15% for the periods
from 2018 to 2020. As such, the EIT rate for Xizang Wanmei is 15%
for both years. Ministry of Finance in PRC issued 2020 notice no.
23 to extend the tax concession period to 31 December 2030.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands as
there is no income tax imposed in such jurisdiction.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

The income tax expenses can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss) profit before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25%
(2021: 25%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purposes

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses not recognised

Effect of different tax of subsidiaries operating
in other jurisdictions

(Over-) Under-provision in prior year

rEE
FSBIR%

Income tax expenses for the year

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 19.

BT AT (R51R) 4 A

12.

RERBIABIERTE
A RTERNIRE R
Et R ERELEMBRARTRESRE

BEFE ERER BRI

By 488
B

Fris®i (R %) B 32 (81)

RIBPECEMSBE(REMRSTED) REERMR
SROERERES  PEMBARMEFENHRER
25% °

RIRHE B EE 2018 F 25 spiman([3@A)) - ALEBE—
REEWNBARAREEESEGRAR((EHERE])
HEATR R A 15% © RIEEA - 1 2018 F = 2020
FHE UAARKES TSR EEENCERE
BHRBI5%NEBEHRER - A AMEEZRME
RERHDEMSHHEE 15% - hEIB EREiEH
2020 F 23 S A S ERHILEZR 2030 4 12 A
31 H -

RERSHSERRER - ARRAM T HRE L
AU F S B - UK B R AR L B0 2 BB A
B%i -

R ANEEMBALIFEQRRE TS - WAL EH
BETAELBYE -

ST R EGAIER M AR ERERA
FIBR T AT (&5 1R) B AR

RN T 2R 25964 4 80 B 1B
(20214F : 25%)
AR B S TS

TAMBAEHORETE

2022 2021
20224 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETF T

(32,073) 4,302

(8,018) 1,075

655 284

(13) -

v 954 2,253
o (48)

2 202

(13,987) 73

(20,411) 3,839

BB HIRN IS B9 -

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FR(HEB)EF

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

FREE) RN TIEMBIA T HIBEE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Staff costs BIKA
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments FEERFTETHRAENHES 1,265 1,803
Other staff: HMET :
— Salaries and other allowances — ¥ R HALERL 4,586 6,118
— Performance related bonuses (Note) — RIRAMAIEL (K/7t) - 1,143
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RAREFEFEER(TEEES
(excluding directors and chief executive) REBITBAE) 1,658 2,293
Total staff costs B8 TR 7,509 11,357
Amortisation of intangible assets ERAESE 5 6
Depreciation of property and equipment MENEREBITE 58 1,385
Total depreciation and amortisation e R EHeEE 63 1,391
Auditors’ remuneration 2 25 B 2 A 930 1,100
Cost of revenue recognised relating to short-term
leases B B B A SR A MR AR AR 6,416 41,099

Note:  Performance related bonuses are determined by the management of the WiF - RBEEHRAL AR R EREERERAFEEZS - 156
Company based on the Group’s performance, performance of the relevant MEA R A E R KRR A B ERTTSEIFET -
individual within the Group and comparable market statistics.

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 14. EERIFETHAE#MS

EERTBTRABNMEFHBNOT

Details of directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments are as

138

follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
e 2R BIRER
e REMER FHEIX Het
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TF T AR¥TR AR¥TR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZ2022F12A31HILFEE
Executive diirectors HITEF
Ms. Wang Xin (Chairlady) (note (i) TR L (ER) PHEE) - 148 36 184
Mr. Feng Xing (note (iv)) %Eﬁiffﬁ (H =% (iv) - 60 35 95
Mr. Leng Xuejun REERE - 254 56 310
Ms. Li Na (note (i) ?&ﬂﬁkt (P (D) - 204 45 249
- 666 172 838
Independent non-executive directors BUHRTEE
Mr. Li Xue TEEE 127 - - 127
Mr. Wu Ke (note (i) KBk A (MK (i) 127 - - 127
Mr. How Sez Ming EBALE 173 - - 173
427 - = 427
Total st 427 666 172 1,265
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B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

14, EBRIBTRAEME @)

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
e 2R RRET
we N E At i@ A FHEIfR fet
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT AR¥TT ARETTT

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE2021F12A31BLEFE

Executive directors HITEE

Ms. Wang Xin (Chairlady) (note ii) TR L () PHEE() - 223 56 279

Mr. Feng Xing (Chief executive) RS (TTHR B E) - 103 82 185

Mr. Leng Xuejun REFLE - 408 82 490

Ms. Li Na (note (i) iz (PfHEE() = 411 82 493

- 1,145 302 1,447

Independent non-executive directors BUINTEE

Mr. Li Xue FERLE 89 S S 89

Mr. Wu Ke (note (i) KB A (B3R (i) 89 - - 89

Mr. How Sez Ming ERREE 178 - - 178
356 - - 356

Total Hast 356 1,145 302 1,803

Notes: Bt :

) Performance related bonuses are determined by the management of the Ul KB TEAT DAL A EEERER N EELE - 166

Company based on the Group’s performance, performance of the relevant
individual within the Group and comparable market statistics.

(i) Ms. Wang Xin is the sister of Ms. Wang, the Controlling Shareholder. Ms.
Wang Xin was appointed and Ms. Li Na resigned as Chairlady of the board
of directors of the Company on 14 December 2021.

(i) Mr. Wu Ke was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2021.

(iv) Mr. Feng Xing resigned from executive director with effect from 30 March
2022. His emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as an chief executive during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was
no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

AN R ZE B 2 5 R A BB TTSRIFET

(i) TR+ BIFERRE T Z i1, I o R2021F 124
148 » TRRXLTEHEFARRAEESEE - MEH L%
EEREFGLE -

(i) REGEER2021F1 71 A EZEREA B LINTE
ES
(iv) PGS LR 2022F 330 A BFHEAR L BIHITEE o Lt

BER B2 BB E2022F 1231 A 1FFEAE
ITEAEE IR IRFS B

EXENBHTEENIS NEEREBERRARRAK
EEEBMmMIREREIESHENSE
EXEABSIERITE BN AR SIEAEARQF
EEMRBEHS

HE2022F M2021F 12 A31HILFE @ #EAQF]

EESTETBAEREXRERETMAFHMNZ
B

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for lost of office.
15. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees during the reporting period
included three directors and the chief executive (2021: two directors
and the chief executive), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 14 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two highest paid employees (2021: three) who is neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company, are as follows:

Salaries, wages, allowances and other benefits
Performance related bonuses (note)

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RIREFIEFEIHER

Note:  Performance related bonuses are determined by the management of the

Company based on the Group'’s performance, performance of the relevant
individual within the Group and comparable market statistics.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid to the five highest paid employees by the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for lost of office.

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

14,

15.

o TE  RBNEHMER
REMATEAL (D)

EERTETHRAESME (8

HE2022F K2021F12A31ALLFE - AEBEWE
SAEAME - (EABBEMASKINARERZ R
Bk {EARERE -

12 & %7 p

RBEMAREE LU RSFMNESBRE=2EF
REZTBAE (2021F : —RZEBFREBTHA
8) - EHBEHEHN XXM E14 - AEREBTMSG
(2021%F : ZR)WHEERETBITHABALTHR
SR ENFMFEOT

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
428 1,019

- 162

109 246

537 1,427

Wit - RBEAGEA AL A EEEERFEBXH - 166
AR E B TR AT AL BT EMETE

2022 K2021F12 A1 B IEFE » ANEE I
mEAREEHMIEE N EAME - ERBFENA
SN ER B 1% 1O BB SAE BB (E -

FHAATEENIERARFTZEENTSFIEEBA
E QN

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately £ 21,000,000/ 7T (HIE R
RMB896,000 (2021: RMB889,000)) AR #:896,0007T
(20214 : AK#889,0007T)) 2 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement for joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E

16. DIVIDENDS 16.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: nil), nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

17. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

(Loss) earnings for the year attributable to owners of
the Company for the purpose of basic and
diluted (loss) earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic and diluted (loss)
earnings per share ("000 shares)

P e S 159 8 ()

The diluted (loss) earnings per share were the same as the basic
(loss) earnings per share as there was no diluted potential ordinary
shares in existence during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

BRE

HZE2022%F 12 A31 BILFE &K KER
AR B (2021 F « ) - AREHRBINERRR
EREE -

B (E518) BF

RRFEE AEEBRER RS (BE) BN RIE
ATEBETESH

SHESRERREE (B1R) 28 (RE
REGEE AREFER (E1R) &)

STEESREARNEE (BR) BN TR

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

(11,384) 445
RIBE

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

’000 '000

TR T

2022 2021

000 ‘000

400,000 400,000

AR REE 2022 £ 2021 £12 A 31 BIEEEN

BEEESTER  WEREE (BB BNERE
BB (B1R) & A -

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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BL22022F 12931 HIFFIZ
18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 18. WERZE
Right-of-use Leasehold Motor Office
assets improvements vehicles equipment Total
FRESEE HEEKBER RE BAERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT
COST B
At 1 January 2021, R2021%E1R18 -
At 31 December 2021 ®2021412A31A
and 1 January 2022 &20220F1 818 2,328 229 5717 1,227 9,501
Written-off s (2,328) (229) - - (2,557)
At 31 December 2022 20226 12A31H - - 5717 1,227 6,944
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION A ERRE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 1,164 73 5,323 1,127 7,687
Charge for the year FRMG 1,164 128 47 46 1,385
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31B &
and 1 January 2022 2022F1 B1H 2,328 201 5,370 1,173 9,072
Charge for the year FRMG - - 47 11 58
Written-off WA (2,328) (201) - - (2,529
At 31 December 2022 72022512316 - - 5,417 1,184 6,601
NET CARRYING VALUES IREFE
At 31 December 2022 #W2022612A31H - - 300 43 343
At 31 December 2021 R2021%512A31H - 28 347 54 429

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives:

Right-of-use assets
Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Over the lease terms
Over the lease terms

5 years
3 -5 years

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

19.

The depreciation by classes of rights-of-use assets are set out as
below:

Depreciation recognised in profit or loss RiB=ERNITE
— Leased buildings —HEEF

The Group’s lease agreements did not contain any contingent rent
nor any extension, or early termination option or purchase option
for lease.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for advertising
light boxes in car shelters and billboards. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 January 2021 H2021F1 A1H

Charge to profit or loss EIIC=E b

At 31 December 2021 and #R2021F12A318 &
1 January 2022 20221 A1H

Charge to profit or loss EIIC=E b

As at 31 December 2022 #R2022F12H31H

18. WIEREE (&)
REAREESERZESHFTESINET ¢
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
- 1,164
AEBBEERERTEEEMIEES AT
IRANR BB B R -
REETF R IR = B E R R ES R E A
B o R2022F KX 2021F12A31H - GEAEHEE
PURELREMBHREMFISTFHBEEZHAEEAN
REHEHEE -

19. EEHIE
NTARRFRERBAFERRANEEZERERIAEE
REEH :

Timing

differences

in relation

to lease
ECL provision arrangements Total

HERH

BHEE FEEAH
BIREE REER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARETTT ARETT

6,288 3 6,291
(2,746) ) (2,749)
3,542 = 3,542
6,990 = 6,990
10,532 = 10,532

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E
19. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19. EEBIE ()
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends RIBDERBRE - 520084181 8i#E - AN B
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from RRAERMNPEIRRSEZNTEND - ARAER
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been BEFIB D TR EE R AR EBRIETE
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of Rl TERERER - At EpPENB A ZR
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the FHEFARE112,270,0007T (2021F12A31H © A
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB112,270,000 R#102,813,0007T) B E R ZENERE M HRE
(31 December 2021: RMB102,813,000) as the Group is able to EHIEER BB -
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of M2022F12A31H + AEBARPAFRIBBLBA
approximately RMB13,116,000 (2021: RMB9,301,000), available R#13,116,0007T (20214 : AR#9,301,0007T) A]
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been AR HERIE R o BRARICE TR TR -
recognised in respect of such losses (2021: nil), due to the W E BB IERERIELEHIEEE (20214 -
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax ) o RIERTIEEIBR N AT BEER :
losses will be expired as follow:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
2025 2025%F 189 189
2026 20264 9,112 9,112
2027 20274 3,815 -
13,116 9,301
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. EBESEWFIE > AREREMERRE
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Receivables at amortised cost comprise: REER AN B R FE IR BT -
Trade receivables — contracts with customers B RIWHIE — BEFAL 281,508 306,721
Less: loss allowance for trade receivables R B RRFCEREERE (32,461) (13,109)
249,047 293,612
Receivable from a supplier (note (i) 7R B 1 FE R B FE W R IR (B ST () - 4,238
Receivable from Investment A (note (i) REE A KWK (T FE (i) - 750
Rental and other deposits HekEMmiEe 2,327 3,061
Others Hitp 7,352 3,654
9,679 11,703
Less: loss allowance for other receivables B HAbFEMCGRIB B R (231) (575)
9,448 11,128
Deductible value-added tax ATHNBRIEER 7,065 4,293
Prepayments to suppliers (note (i) S R A TR R (BT (i) 160,702 32,067
167,767 36,360
Total 15T 426,262 341,100

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

) As at 31 December 2020, a prepayment for acquisition of a script of
RMB7,100,000 was made by the Group to a drama series production
company (“supplier”).

As a result of the postponement of provision of draft script, the Group and
the supplier entered into a termination agreement during the year ended 31
December 2021, and provided that the supplier promised to terminate and
refund the whole amount of the prepayment to the Group. Settlement of
RMB2,862,000 was received during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The amount as at 31 December 2021 has been fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the allowance for credit losses on the receivable
from a supplier was nil (2021: RMB127,000).

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the Group invested in a film (the “Investment
A”) with fair value of RMB1,050,000, which entitled the Group to share
certain percentage of income to be generated from the film based on the
proportion of investment amounts as specified in respective investment
agreement. The directors of the Company designated the investment as
FVTPL on initial recognition.

On 28 December 2019, a supplemental agreement in respect of
Investment A was signed which modiified the investment into a 15% annual
fixed return rate investment. Out of the aggregate amount of principal
and interest receivable of RMB1,365,000, an amount of RMB444,000
was settled in 2019 and the remaining principal and interest receivable in
aggregate of RMB921,000 would be repaid on or before 30 April 2020. In
view that there is a significant modification of the contractual cash flows of
the investment, the financial asset at FVTPL with fair value of RMB879,000
was derecognised and an other receivable was recognised accordingly
as at 31 December 2019. During the year ended 31 December 2020, an
amount of RMB129,000 was settled.

The amount as at 31 December 2021 has been fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the allowance for credit losses on the receivable
from Investment A was nil (2021: RMB23,000).

(i) The prepayments were made to the suppliers for the supplying of provision
of advertising services to the Group.

The Group generally determines the credit period granted to
customers with reference to the financial position, credit record,
duration of business relationship and the types of services the
Group provides. Credit and payment terms may vary for different
customers and projects. The Group generally issues billings to
customers after performance of advertising services according to
the terms set out in the relevant contracts.

For TV advertising services, the Group generally provides credit
periods ranging from 15 to 90 days (2021: 15 to 90 days) after
issued billings to customers.

For online advertising services, the Group generally provides credit
periods ranging from 15 to 90 days (2021: ranging from 15 to 90
days) after issued billings to customers.

For outdoor advertising services, the Group generally sets the
contract terms by instalments within the contract period.

For other advertising services, the Group generally demands
payment by instalments or in full prior to services being provided.

20.

B 5 RWRE - ANREREAENRE (5

i -

() R2020F 12731 H - KF B LK BRI 7 7 BEFIRIE
DA ([HRER ) S ITENFRARRE7,100,0007T ©

BRI IR BB R E TG - K[ R E R B 22021 F
1231 HIFFEET AR I ik - (RIEBIARGF A IFEVS
UL 1) K EE B 52 2 B0 TE (T - BLE2021F 124
31HIFFE - KEBEWEEEFIEA K #2,862,000
=0

R2021F 12431 HBIHEE RE 22022 12431 H 1F
FEPEZE -

R2022F12H31H » XK E R IEEH ER A 15 BB
BB BT (20214 - ARM127,0005T) °

(i) R2018%F1231H » XEFBE—FEZ ([IKEA]) -
AR EBALKET,050,0007T * (EXEBBEREZR
BIEm It RES B IS ZEHELN —TES
HHRA o B A EFIETEZIRE BRIBERIFIZ AT
BFf A B

RO019F 12280 - GLiREAZFT —h A i + %
BIEXKB15%EEFEIFERE o KA 2AEFREWF
B AREH1,365,0007TF + AL H444,0007T 212019
FA5/E R T A% R EWFIEABEEA R 921,000 #5
R2020FF4 A30H 262 FTfETT - BRI B AR 2T
SEEAIFEE AL EFAAEG ARR L ERZAR
#879,0007T 1) % A A B AL L HE R B R 2019F 12 7
31 HHEREMEWAIE - REZ2020F 12531 H IFF
B 2BARKE129,0007EA2E ©

R2021F 12431 ABIFHBEE RE 2 2022F 12431 H 1
FEHEIZEAEE -

R20229F 12318 + KE R EAER A B 5 BE1E
FEAZ (20214 : ARK23,0007T) °

(i) TR I3 735 A1 26 (B 12 04 o 2 R 5 T 5% 1 (A E T A9

I °

FEE-RBRUBRR - EELE  EBEERF
PEASERANREBEEEETEPNEE
B FTRAEPMABNEERIMERAIEESR
REE—RNIRIFRE S NOABENIERETESR
BirAEPHARE -

RERESREMES - AEE—RREFFELE
BEREENT 1520 AMEEHHQ21 F:15 &
90 K) °

RBFESREMES - ZEE—RRAZFFEHE
BRIEHENT 15 XE 0 AWEEH (021 F : N
FAI5E QO K) °

HREINESREME - AEE—RNEOHADH

RER DGR -

SEMEEREME - AEE—RERD MK
PIRERRTE A 28 -

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20.

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the date of billing,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates, at
the end of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days 0FE 30K
31 - 90 days 31 290 K
91 - 180 days 91 £ 180 K
181 — 360 days 181 £ 360 X
Over 365 days 365 KA L
Total st

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately RMB249,047,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB293,612,000), which are past due as at the reporting date.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances or
charge any interest thereon.

Details of impairment of trade receivables and other receivables are
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

21. CONTRACT ASSETS 21.

Current B
Unbilled revenue of contracts KAZE W
Less: loss allowance on contract assets W BREEBIBRE

Upon entering into a service contract with customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer and
assumes performance obligations to perform advertising service
to customers. The service contract is an asset if the measure
of remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the
satisfied performance obligations. Contract asset is recognised
over the period of the contract in which the service is performed
representing the Group’s rights to receive consideration for the
service performed because the rights are conditioned on the
Group’s future performance of remaining advertising service. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional, i.e. advertising services performed are
verified by an independent third party with relevant qualifications
and experience and confirmed by customers.

Details of impairment assessment for the year are set out in note 7.
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AT SREIRE B A (Sl HERR B #ARID) 2770
HEPHREHREEBERBENE S RUGIEN R

BT
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
63,710 139,483
2,210 25,754
17,143 37,794
120,518 72,787
45,466 17,794
249,047 293,612

B2022F 12 A31 B ZEENE ZERKER
BEEHERSEEINHNEBA - HEREFES
4 A AR 249,047,000 7T (2021 F 12 A 31 B :
ARHE 293,612,000 7T) © AKEIEFRILAREISH

EARTHEAR G SRR 7S,

BRI B EUGIR R B A R E R IFE R

A HRARMET -
BHEE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
141,152 23,960
(9,438) (488)
131,714 23,472

REEPITRBANER  AEEESARPWE
RENERN  IRERATPBRITESRENENE
£ WMBTHAKRERERNEBBERTNE
WEME AIRBENA/EE - ANBEERETRSE
MENHRER  RRAKRERETREKRIKE
EVRER - TOl N B RN ES AEERN B RETER
THESRIBET TR - BREMK ARG EIR
BAERERLERNBYE =T RECETNE
STRBALAEFPHERR)  ANEEBBEESEK

A -

BRAAFE BB FHIEHR T -
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

23.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.25% to 0.38% (2021: 0.30% to 1.10%).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B S ENRIE
Staff cost payables FEfF B TRA
Other tax payables Hh FEABIIE
Listing expenses payables B EmAE
Interest payable FERTRILE
Accrued expenses FERTRAS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
date of billing as at the end of each reporting period:

0 - 30 days 0FE30X
31 - 90 days 31ZE90K
Over 90 days Q0KIA +

The Group is granted a credit period from 5 to 60 days from its
suppliers, unless prepayment to suppliers is specified on the
contract. The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

22,

23.

RITEBRRE

RITEBDBIEN T0.25%20.38% (20214 :
0.30%Z£1.10%) KIS EET B ©

ESREMBENRE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
200,164 32,203
3,548 2,281
2,403 1,118
756 817
784 1,222
4,795 1,366
212,450 39,007

REREHR - UTRIZEEASMNE S ENFR
BRI AT -

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARKETT
149,839 11,237
22,776 17,352
27,549 3,614
200,164 32,203

AEEREHEHRTEEHNREE 60K ' BR3EE
DR BREEREEAAMNKIER - AEE ST BE
BREIERE - NERME RN FTENEERNES

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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BL22022F 12931 HIFFIZ

24.

25.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Current RED
Revenue from advertising services

Contract liabilities are recognised when the Company receives an
amount from customers before services are provided, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the beginning of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount
received. The Company typically receives a deposit range from
20% to 50% of total consideration from certain customers when
they enter into the contracts with the Company.

Revenue recognised during each reporting period included
the whole amount of contract liabilities at the beginning of the
respective reporting period. There was no revenue recognised
during the year that related to performance obligations that were
satisfied in prior years.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings RITIER
— Unsecured (Note (i)
Other borrowings

— Unsecured (Note (i) and (iii))

HABER

Carrying amounts repayable (based on scheduled — FEfEIZ IR E(E (IRIFE K
repayment dates set out in the borrowings) FrectElZs A ) -

Within one year —FRN

After one year but within three years —FIRERREA

Amounts shown under current liabilities MEBBE TR

Amount shown under non-current liabilities

Note:

) The bank loans were guaranteed by four (31 December 2021: six) third
party guarantors, who charged the Group an upfront guarantee fees range
from 1.50% to 1.98% (2021: from 1.30% to 2.08%) of the corresponding
loan principal amounts. The effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) of these bank loans range from 3.70% to 5.00%
(31 December 2021: from 3.85% to 6.50%) per annum as at 31 December
2022,

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ®* Annual Report 2022

— MR (M REG)

24.

BEEREES K

25.

— AR (PR R i) B (i)

FERBABTATER

aHEaE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT
38,259 16,612

BHBERARNR AR MRS A1 UENE P FRIA R
R BBEHSORBRELANEE  BEA
BEHNERRGEBEZTIARLL - ARE—RRN
ETEPEARRRLANK BT WEAREN
N F20%ZEE50%HI RS °

REBREHRERNREEENSHERNANAE
MEEERE -  FRTEERRRBEFECEITHE
WEEREENKE -

RITREMER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
82,200 61,000
34,984 54,984
117,184 115,984

HEH

87,184 115,984
30,000 =
117,184 115,984
87,184 115,984
30,000 =
117,184 115,984

1] FBERITES IS (2021 12H318 : NE) E=T#
RAFEIR - BEIgtER B A £ 58091.60% % 1.98% (2021
F : 1.80%F2.08%) WK EBFEITIEREA - K2022
F12H31H + ZERITEABIERFEFE (FEREH
FIE) BN F3.70%E5.00% (20214124318 « I F
3.85%%E6.50%) °
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HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E

25.

26.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

(1)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group borrowed a
loan of RMB50,000,000 with a repayable term of two years of which
RMB20,000,000 is repayable on 16 March 2022 and RMB30,000,000
is repayable on 16 September 2022, and guaranteed by the controlling
shareholder of the Company. The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 6.50%
per annum. The borrowing was fully settlement during the year ended 31
December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group borrowed a loan of
RMB30,000,000 with a repayable term of three years of which is repayable
on 156 September 2025, and guaranteed by an independent third party
guarantor who charged the Group an upfront guarantee fees of 1.70%.
The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 6.00% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group borrowed a loan of
approximately RMB4,984,000 (2021: RMB4,984,000) from its shareholder
with a repayable term of unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

The loan agreements do not impose any covenants.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leases properties to operate its business. These leases
are generally ranged from 3 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different payment terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants,
but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purpose.

The Group also leases advertising light boxes in car shelters and
billboards with contract terms of less than one year. These leases
are short-term and the Group has elected not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

The exposure of the Group’s lease liabilities are as follows:

Current liabilities BB E
Non-current liabilities IERBBE
Lease liabilities payables:

Within one year —&FR

Within a period of more than one year —F LA BB

but not exceeding two years

25. SRITRHEMMER ()
Bist - (48)
(i) B 220209 1231 HILF/E - K& BEARKEZA
FEHy 5 —EEFNR50,000,0005T R fER 202243 5
16 A B8 8 B3 B #20,000,0007T & JEFR 20229 A
16 A 18E # B 3 A K #30,000,0007T » iF 1K 12 G115 A%
REIEIR o BAILEEFFIFR6.50%518 © ZEHRE
F2022F 12531 A 1F FEAZEEE -
B F2022F 1231 AILFE + ZEBBEAEHH A=
Fy 5 —EEFA K #30,000,0007T R ER20259 A
16 1E#E « Wl —E BT E=TERAER - WK E
EERE.70% ° B2 BT EFIF6.00%518
(i) REF2021F12A31 AL FE - NEBRIRRE G
ABESNEFAIN K 4,984,000 (20214 : ARK
4,984, 00075) EEEA BRI - ERIZEKE
&
BT R4]
2. HEAE
AEBEHEMENLLEHER - ZFHERTIRIE
S5FMEH - FERRIREREERERS - WEETRA
RGBS - HERZE T ENE L - B
EEAETMSHAEEENERR -
KEETUTE—FHNHEEEGNKIEERE=
ERERESRE 2EHERBHAEE - ﬁﬁ%@
ERETHRRAZSHEATAREEREEAR
AEEFENHESENT ¢
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
- 307
- 307
ERAEEAE
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
- 307
BT 2 HAA
- 307

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®
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B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E
26. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 26. HESE@E@E
Lease liabilities of the Group were measured at the present value AEEHEABNEEERFRIZMRZINNEE
of the lease payments that are not yet paid using its incremental NRBBEE - MEHEEHKREFEREIL - K
borrowing rate. All leases are entered at fixed prices. The Group SEVEREAEaEEREARERR - HE
does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease BREBETEENM B ER o NEIE2022F12
liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group’s treasury A31HILFE  EHAMEABENEHIOARE
function. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the interest 2,0007t (20214 : AR¥10,0007T) °
expense on lease liabilities of approximately RMB2,000 (2021:
RMB10,000) is recognised.
The total cash outflows for leases amounted to approximately REZE2022F12A31HIEFE - HERS R TR
RMB6,725,000 (2021: RMB41,976,000) for the year ended 31 A ANR¥E,725,0007T (20214F : ARE41,976,000
December 2022, including total cash outflow for short-term leases J0)  BIEEE2022F 12 A1 B IEFEMEHEE
amounted to RMB6,416,000 (2021: RMB41,099,000) for the year REmL BTN ARES,416,0007T (20214F : AR
ended 31 December 2022, #£41,099,0007T) °
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BX
Share capital
(amount in
Number original
of shares currency)
BROBE BRAERESEHE)
’000 RMB’000
T ARETT
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each BREEIIBTNEER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, 20211 A1H ~ 2021F128318 -
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 202241 A1H k2022412 831H 2,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, 202141 A1H ~ 2021412A31H -
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 202241 H1H8 Kk2022%12 A31H 400,000 4,000
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Shown in the consolidated financial statement RGBSR AT 3,578 3,578
The holders of ordinary share are entitled to receive dividends TEEFEAEEKIIEERMRS - BE—&
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at MEBERRARIRERE LN —ERRE - TBEE
general meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally BRUEARRZEBEEMNS 2B REHL -
with regards to Company’s residual assets.
28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 28. RIKEFIFE

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan
to fund the employee benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions. The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
approximately RMB1,830,000 (2021: RMB2,595,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the plan.
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AEENHEREE APEBRMEFNEZRKERRK
BRI B E - ARBE P BB R RARZE
KEFFEHNTERANEEADL - UitES
BHBNES - AEBERRRENAIHE—EE
RELEERR - MERRANFAENARYE
1,830,0007t (20214F = AR#2,595,0007T) #5748
SE IR ER AR TR L R MZ S BB R M
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Notes to Consolida
A IS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

ted Financial Statements

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 20. BEEHAIRS

(a) Name and relationship
Name

Ms. Wang
Qingdao Economic and

Technological Development

Zone Chaogun Culture
Co., Ltd (“Qingdao
Chaogun”)

Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye Public
Relations Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Ruicheng Jiaye”)

Beijing Yuehe Management
Consulting Co., Ltd
(“Beijing Yuehe”)

(b) Related party balances

Qingdao Chaogqun
Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye
Beijing Yuehe

(@ HERER

Relationship ®H BA1R

Controlling Shareholder Tzt PERRAR R

A company controlled by B BB =B A A 4
Ms. Wang XALERATR([EEHE]) ®RAF

A company controlled by plgaNt Ere YN B 2
Ms. Wang BRAT(HERIGHEZED  HAF

A company controlled by

EREMERAXABRART BRI

Ms. Wang (HEREEFD) EO/NG]!
(b) EEEEFAEER
Maximum amount outstanding
during the year
FRABRSAREENIE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT AR¥TT ARETT
it 650 650 - 650
Rl 100 100 100 100
b 111 81 111 81
211 831

These amounts were non-trade nature, unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The Group measures the loss allowance for amounts due
from related parties at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
The directors of the Company considered that the amounts
due from related parties to be low credit risk and no recent
history of default, and thus no impairment losses recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

ZEFARFESMNE - BER  RENA

BEFIEE -

AEEZEN2ME A BHEEFEN S BT
SRR FRENEERE - ARRES
RE - EREBR S SFBEAKEERR B
BN EIE KSR - B E = 20224 2021
F12A31 A I FEWEERBERSIE

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR

151



152

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
RIS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2020F 12731 HIFF/E
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

30.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and other
members of key management personnel during the year was
as follows:

A M=

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key
executives is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
22 October 2019 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, the Company may
grant options to executive directors and full-time employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option was granted under the Scheme since its adoption.
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RRTREREH IR

29.

30.

B E R 5 (%)
() FEETEEBASZHE

FRAARREERHEMTIEETRABKED

BT
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
666 1,145
172 302
838 1,447
ARFEEREIEBTBRABNFHFMAFMNE
BE2EAARRETEBHBELET -

BREE

RIFARFNR2019F10 A 22 B IR 2 FE A
(I5t8l) B EHBEERAERET  ARAA
MAEERTEENEZRE TE TRRENRER
RERD

B R BIAR - BUERIRA 8IR TEMBARE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITY

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activity, including both cash and non-cash change.
Liabilities arising from financing activity is those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activity.

At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 A1H
New bank and other borrowings raised £ H #2817 M H 5K
Repayments of bank and other

borrowings EERITREMER

Finance costs A& KA

Repayment of lease liabilities EBEEEAE

At 31 December 2021 and M2021F12A31H K
1 January 2022 202291 H1H

New bank and other borrowings raised # £ H 1 R1T M H K

Repayments of bank and other EEBITREMER
borrowings

Finance costs A& KA

Repayment of lease liabilities EBEHEEAE

At 31 December 2022 72022512 831H

31.

METHEENEBEIR

TRFMAEERELTDELNEEES  2FER
SRR EY - RELTHELENABRABRSR
EREHRRRERERENAEBRARERE

RPDBEARETHRERENALE -

Bank and
Lease other
liabilities borrowings Total
HEREE RORHMBER #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT ARETT AREBFT
1,174 125,511 126,685
- 65,984 65,984
- (75,511) (75,511)
10 = 10
877) - (877)
307 115,984 116,291
- 133,200 133,200
- (132,000) (132,000)
2 - 2
(309) - (309)
- 117,184 117,184

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BL22022F 12931 HIFFIZ
32. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. ARRQFzHBEMRRKER
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARETT ARETFT
Non-current asset FREEE
Investments in a subsidiary R EARIEE 94,665 94,665
Current asset REEE
Prepayments TEfTFRIA 130 130
Other deposits EAbIFR 37 =
Amount due from a subsidiary fEU — M B A R 3RIE (@) 5,081 5,731
Bank and balances and cash RITHEHBRIAS 2 51
5,250 5,912
Total assets BEHE 99,915 100,577
Current liability REAE
Other borrowing EAbfER 4,984 4,984
Other payables HE M RIR 5,943 1,334
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIBI B A RIZIA 2,950 5,693
13,877 12,011
Net assets BEE 86,038 88,566
Equity s
Share capital R 3,578 3,578
Reserves (e (b) 82,460 84,988
Total equity R 86,038 88,566
Note: oz
(@) The amounts are unsecured, non-interesting bearing and repayable on (@) ZAEBAEIER - TiTE RBIZEKEE -
demand.
) Movements in reserves (b) FRIEZE
Share
premium Capital Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
R SE EXRfGFE E-50 ] @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBFT ARBFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021 ®202141 1R 89,940 23,114 (25,483) 87,571
Loss for the year FAEE - - (2,583) (2,583)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 2021F12A318 &
20221 A1H 89,940 23,114 (28,066) 84,988
Loss for the year FNEIE - - (2,528) (2,528)
At 31 December 2022 $2022412A31H 89,940 23,114 (30,594) 82,460
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 2022F 12531 H1FF/E

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 and

33.

AARIHE D RS

R20224F 2021512 A31 H AR BKME R BFES

2021 are as follows: AT -
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Percentage of equity interest and voting power
establishment/ ordinary share capital/ attributable to the Company
Name of subsidiaries Note  operation registered capital EDAEEREE I LR BEE
M/ m/ BETRAREER Direct Indirect Principal activities
WEARER Wi EERE BA/BRRA i TEED
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20215 20226 20215
Ruicheng BVI BVI UsDo.01 100% 100% - - Investment holding
HHARERES ERERES 0.01%T RAZR
Ruicheng HK Hong Kong HKD100 - - 100% 100%  Provision of advertising services
WHER 5 100/87T REBSERE
Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye (] The PRC RMB170,368,520 - = 100% 100%  Provision of advertising services
EEmIRE i AR¥170,368,5207 RBERE
Beijing Ruicheng (i) The PRC RMB169,992,000 - = 100% 100%  Provision of advertising services
LR i AR %169,992,000.007 RUEEERE
Shanghai Kailun Advertising Co., Ltd (i) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Provision of advertising services
L REEARAR i AR#5,000,0007T REBERE
Xizang Wanmei (i) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Provision of advertising services
BEES i AR5,000,0007C REEERS
Lingyu (Beijing) Cultrual Media Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC RMB1,000,000 - - 88% 88%  Provision of advertising services
BB (R UL EEER AT i AR¥1,000,0007T REEERE
Beijing Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC RMB200,000 - = 99% - Provision of advertising services
FRRBESERAR e AR 200,007 REERE
Note: MsE -
(i) The entity was established in the PRC as a sino-foreign investment 1} ZEBRAER T BRI E B -
enterprise.

(i) The entity was established in the PRC as a company with limited liability

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities outstanding
at the end of both years or at any time during both years.

(i) ZEBERFPER A LAERAA]

PR E 4 E RSk MR E A EARRE - SENEA

AR BHITERERES

W (T E) FEEEERLR « —FE-_FFR
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Five Years Financial Summary

A FEHFE

Result
Revenue

Gross Profit
Finance costs

(Loss) profit before tax
Income tax credit (expenses)

(Loss) profit for the year from
continuing operations

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

(Loss) earnings per share

Form continuing and discontinued

operation — Basic (RMB)
From continuing operations
— Basic (RMB)
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£
Yeas

EM

BERA

BT AT (B51R) i A
PrSTE R (R0

BV (518D S A

THIRIRREN
RAFRERR

FRE R A
FAUER) &EH
BEREE
FERBEE
RBEE
BE®RE

FEREBIE
mBEE

BEREE

FEE

BARRHE

[

]

RNABIRERALRENL
T BEE

FEIE A A =

A

BR(EE) BF

REFBERBRIELE
EB-EARANRE)
—ERARE)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETIT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
412,659 441,051 446,993 845,820 783,364
10,627 17,299 40,299 106,828 95,611
(6,471) (11,872) (8,519) (7,576) (6,043)
(32,073) 4,302 4,376 56,134 62,469
20,411 (3,839) (1,550) (19,830) (15,846)
(11,662) 463 2,826 36,304 46,623
(11,384) 445 2,844 36,282 46,149
(278) 18 (18) 22 -
(11,662) 463 2,826 36,304 46,149
10,897 3,998 8,290 8,364 25,625
563,268 400,268 399,119 571,630 260,112
574,165 404,266 407,409 579,994 287,980
30,000 = 50,307 2,464 2,795
338,041 186,480 139,779 363,033 196,274
368,041 186,480 190,086 365,497 200,049
206,124 217,786 217,323 214,497 87,931
3,578 3,578 3,578 3,578 80,800
202,682 214,066 213,621 210,777 7,011
206,260 217,644 217,199 214,355 87,811
(136) 142 124 142 120
206,124 217,786 217,323 214,497 87,931
(2.85) 0.11 0.01 0.12 0.16
(2.85) 0.11 0.01 0.12 0.16




Glossary
FAsAR

ABBREVIATIONS

‘affiliate(s)”

(B AL

“AGM”
[BERBFEAE]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

[R5 =2 4R ]
“Audit Committee”
[BZEE"]

“Beijing Lingyu”

[HEREE]

“Beijing Ruicheng”

Blgzst ol

“Board”

[EEg]

"Board Committees"
[EEZE®

“BVI’
[RBEREE]

“CG Code”
(B R<FAI]

“China” or “PRC”
[ B

“Company” or “we” or “our Company”
or “the Company”

AN

any person(s), directly or indirectly, controlling, controlled by or under direct or indirect common
control with another person(s)

BEESEERGS - ATHES - ATEFINETAL  KES-ALRIFEIEELR
B R AT

the forthcoming annual general meeting for the year 2023 of the Company
AR B]2023F FEE AR EAF A G

the amended and restated articles of association of our Company conditionally adopted on

22 October 2019 which became effective upon the date on which our Shares are listed and
Shares first commence dealing on the Main Board being 12 November 2019, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ARAFHR2019F10 22 A B IFHHRAEKERT R EF BB ERZMBY - LARHERT - fFEHIA
Hiv gk - WM E KRG BN EREE BB (B12019811 B128) £

the audit committee under the Board

EXZgE IE%LES

Lingyu (Beijing) Cultural Media Co., Ltd.* (?8& (3t ) X{HEHAF R A 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 29 October 2018 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Ruicheng as at the Latest
Practicable Date

EA LR UEEEER AT - 72018510 A29BRABEK I MAREEAR - BEAARN
ME2EMBEAR  REREERATAE  AIEREHZENE AR

Beijing Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd.* (3t =i 3 & & B BR 2 ) (formerly known as Beijing
Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd.* (At I 58 & &5 B (0 B BR 2 &)), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 9 April 2003 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

R HESARA T AL RIREES RO AR AR - K2003F4 A9B N F BB
REMAAR W ARQRNEE2ENBAR

board of directors of the Company
KRREEG

collectively, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee

EZEZBEE REZESRFMEESZHH

the British Virgin Islands
REERES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

EmRAIM SR AR E R B E AT R

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this annual report and for geographical
reference only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

P ARSANE - ERAFRREROHNSENHE - TREES - PERFIBIITRERE

N3

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (33 (1 Bl {2 # & B B BR A 7), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 15 January 2019

vl (R B EEEE AR AT - 12019F1 15 BN SRS M W ER R AR AR

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®
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Glossary
FisA=

"Controlling Shareholders"
[T PRER |

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Global Offering”
[ZIREE]

“Group”, “the Group”, “we”, “our”, “us” or
“Ruicheng”

[ANS= 8 ) 3k [ #h AP ok 3t

“HK$” or “HKD”
[%&7t]

“Hong Kong”

(&8

“IFRS”

[ B % B 75 e 5 2E B

“Independent Non-executive Directors”
B IENITEE]

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

B E=7]

“Jing Gen”

“Listing Date”

[EmRHE

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and unless the context requires
otherwise, refer to Ms. Wang and Yingheng

BB ETRAMME T 28E - BXESEMEIN 5T LTRAE

director(s) of the Company

KRARMES

the Hong Kong Public Offer and the International Placing (as defined in the Prospectus)
BBLREERBERES (ERRBRER)

our Company and our subsidiaries at the relevant time or, where the context refers to any
time prior to our Company becoming the holding company of our present subsidiaries, such
subsidiaries and the business carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) our
predecessors, and “we”, “our” or “us” shall be construed accordingly
RRRREMBRRIN B - SN EIER AR BN REIREHE D REIER A FA]
EAIRER - AR BB R RIARZERB AR (R FERME) BRIPIRAT S QB FTEE R
55 - RSB ] IMERERE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

EREEERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PREEBRIITTHR

International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards, amendments and
interpretations promulgated by the IASB and the International Accounting Standards and
interpretation issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee
BRI B EER - RERRSFTHERRESRMANER BT RERE - UKERSEHER)
ZEGBHOBERGHEL RZE

the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
RATNELIEMITES

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are independent of and not connected

with (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) any Directors, chief executive or substantial
Shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules), of our Company, our subsidiaries or any
of their respective associates

BURARE - EINBARRREEMESEHEAZEMNES - FTETHRAEHFERR(CE
FR AR BRRSHEEMEE(EER LTRAD ZALHAF

Jing Gen Holdings Limited ((¢ E %5 FR A 1), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 52.43%, 18.65%, 21.96%
and 6.96% by Mr. Leng Xuejun, Ms. Lin Zi, employees of Beijing Ruicheng and an Independent
Third Party, respectively

REEBRABRAT - K2018F12 198 REBERFSTMAZNBREERR - DHlE~L
BEEA  MELZT - IRUGRIEE R —BBUE = HE52.43% * 18.65% * 21.96% &
6.96%

Jujia Co., Ltd (EfEABR A R)), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Na

EEBRARF - R2018F12 A 198 R EBH R HSEMRUNERETAR - AFHzta
EWA

the date on which our Shares are listed and Shares first commence dealing on the Main Board,
being 12 November 2019
BRONRER EHRRGERXEE 2 HE - B120195F11 B12H
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Glossary
FAsAR

“Listing Rules”
[ LAl
“Model Code”
[P Al

“Ms. Wang”
[Et]

“Nomination Committee”

REEE®
“Prospectus”

(TR ERE]

“Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye”

(B eHnEL

“Remuneration Committee”

[FEZ=8e]

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
AR

“Reporting Period”
[REH)

“Ruichengtianhe”

[Bha AR

“Ruicheng BVI”

[ By 30 S8 A R

“Ruicheng HK”

&S]

“SFO”
[ 5 K EE %D

“Shanghai Kailun”

[ Eigslfal

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as
amended from time to time
BEBERXHBRRAEF ETR AT RERT)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules
FARAIMEE10PAE E T EITAEFETES R HMIRESTR

Ms. Wang Lei (E%), one of our Controlling Shareholders

FTELL  BEMOERERZ—

the nomination committee under the Board

EFgRTREZEY

the prospectus of the Company dated 31 October 2019 in connection with the Hong Kong
public offering of the Company
RATHERB2019F10A31 B AR RIEREAREENBRERE

Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye Advertising Co., Ltd.* (& Snii s % E 4 AR 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 7 December 2018, and an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

EEnNEERSEERAR - M2018F 12 A7ARFEK I HBRETLRR © AEAARIKM
B2 EMEA R

the remuneration committee under the Board
ERGE TFNEES

the lawful currency of the PRC
FEIEEEBARE

the year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12A31AILFE

Ruichengtianhe Co., Ltd (& kR A R A 7)), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 32.17% by Ms. Wang Zeli
and 67.83% by Independent Third Parties, respectively

HMARBRAR - K2018F 12 198 REBRERFSTMAZABREERR - AEEE
R+ RBIE=F 5 RHE #32.17% 5% 67.83%

Ruicheng Media Co., Ltd (M #{E B R A 7)), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 28 January 2019 and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
HEE AR AT - R2019F1 A28 AR EB#ERHES MM EREERT  BRELRF]
BEEZ2EWNERR

Ruicheng (Hong Kong) Media Co., Limited (& (B 78) E R AR A 7)), a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 February 2019 and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

Ik (B8 EHEBR AT - K2019F2 A21 AR EBEMKLHBRAT - AAAREES
)SYNS]|

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEREDIESNEE S MG IR ETIRHER] - MR I EMTT R ER)

Shanghai Kailun Advertising Co., Ltd.* (L/&3lfm/E S BR A ), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 17 June 2010 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

EERESARART - R2010F6 A17ARFEKIHEREEAT - BEAXARMES
YN

W (FE) EEEEERAT c —E-__FF®

159



160

Glossary
FisA=

Share(s)”
&5 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
(A& 3R ]

“Share Option Scheme”
[RERTRERTEl]

“Stock Exchange”
(Bt 32 P |

“Yingheng”

(&1 ]

“Youyi”

“g
(%]

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company
AR R A P FRREE.01E T TR

holder(s) of the Shares
BROFEA

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 22 October 2019, the
principal terms of which are summarised in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus

RATRR2019F10 422 B B M SRR ERTE) - B X 2IEEHRRN B E 12 EEr
[D.fE R EI] —&n

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERMERHMARAT

Yingheng Co., Ltd (B8R A 7)), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is wholly-owned by Ms. Wang, and one of our Controlling Shareholders
BEARIDF - R2018F12 A 19N RBRREEEMKINEREERR  AELLRA
AREEP—RIERRE2EHE

Youyi Co., Ltd ((BZEBR A &), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVl on 19
December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 53.38% by Ms. Wang Xin and 46.62% by
Mr. Wang Pingpin, respectively

BEBERARF] - N2018F 12 19R ELABRRHSHMAINEREEAR  BEML TR
F TR A RIER #)53.38% £ 46.62%

per cent.
Ao
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